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SPONSORS AND PARTNERS
AUSTRALIAN SPORTS COMMISSION 	 Principal Sponsor and Partner 
AND AUSTRALIAN INSTITUTE OF SPORT	

JAYCO	 Major sponsor of Cycling Australia national teams and High Performance Unit,  
		  men's road continental team, professional track and women’s road trade teams,  
		  and Cyclist of the Year Awards

AUSTRALIAN OLYMPIC COMMITTEE	 International competition funding

AUSTRALIAN PARALYMPIC COMMITTEE 	 National program and competition funding 

AUSTRALIAN COMMONWEALTH	 Elite and junior national program funding 
GAMES ASSOCIATION

SUBARU	 Major sponsor of partnering broadcast production, vehicle supplier to Cycling Australia  
		  and Cyclist of the Year Awards

NINE NETWORK                           	 Broadcast partner – FTA

FOX SPORTS                   	 Broadcast partner – STV

CITY OF BALLARAT	 Host partner of the Cycling Australia National Road Championships

SPORT & RECREATION VICTORIA	 Support of the Melbourne to Warrnambool Classic

EVENTS TASMANIA	 Support of the Tour of Tasmania

SOUTH AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT	 Support of the Cycling Australia National Track Championships and Tour Down Under

TOURISM EVENTS QUEENSLAND, 	 Support of Cairns MTB World Cup 
TOURISM TROPICAL NORTH  
QUEENSLAND AND CAIRNS REGIONAL  
COUNCIL 

GREENEDGE	 Support of Cycling Australia’s High Performance Unit

SMS SANTINI	 Supplier of clothing for Australian national teams,  
		  Jayco-AIS World Tour Academy and professional track trade team

MAPEI	 Cycling Australia High Performance Unit sponsor

MARS	 Major sponsor of the Cycling Australia Road National Championships

BIKE TECHNOLOGIES (BT)	 Sponsor of bikes for the Australian track team 

SCOTT BIKES	 Supply of road bikes to the men's continental team, AIS women's road team,  
		  women's track endurance team and the track sprint team

VITTORIA 	 Provision of tyres to national and AIS cycling teams

SHIMANO 	 Supply of bike componentry to national programs 

NESTEC LTD 	 Sponsor of Cycling Australia High Performance Unit sports nutrition program

SHEPPARD CYCLES (GIRO) 	 Helmet sponsor of High Performance Unit

SINGAPORE AIRLINES 	 Supporting airline of Cycling Australia High Performance Unit and national teams

PREMAX 	 Sports cream sponsor of Cycling Australia

TRAININGPEAKS	 Official training software of Cycling Australia

MORGAN BLUE	 Official bike cleaning and lubrications products supplier to national and AIS cycling teams

ITALKTRAVEL GLYNDE	 Cycling Australia Awards Night sponsor and High Performance Unit support

ELITE                                      	 Supplier of bidons to Australian cycling teams and HPU

RECOVERY PUMP                                	 Official compression therapy aid supplier to Cycling Australia

BONT CYCLING    	 Supplier of custom made shoes to Australian cycling teams

KING & WOOD MALLESONS 	 Support of National Junior Track Series and Cycling Australia Awards

SBS TELEVISION 	 Broadcast partner (concluded December 2014)
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The past year has seen considerable 
success and progress for Australian sport 
on the world stage, for the Australian 
Sports Commission (ASC), and our elite 
sport partners and athletes. 
The Government’s 2014–15 investment of nearly $120 
million continues to be refined to ensure funding is 
aligned to sports with the greatest potential to contribute 
to Australia’s Winning Edge 2012–2022 targets and 
maximise our chances at success.

Since Winning Edge was launched, the AIS re-allocated 
$20 million of high performance funding among sports 
and boosted direct athlete funding (dAIS) by $3.6 million  
or 40 per cent.

The Sports Tally 2015 — the annual report card for 
Australian sports — revealed promising signs as we gear 
up for the Rio 2016 Olympic and Paralympic Games, while 
highlighting some of the challenges presented by our 
performance at the 2014 Glasgow Commonwealth Games.

In March the Commission launched Play.Sport.Australia. 
— our plan to help NSOs build participation in sport 
and make sure all Australians enjoy its benefits. Sports 
have the opportunity to attract more than 4.5 million 
Australians into their communities. It’s important that 
we work together to ensure that more Australians, 
particularly young Australians, participate in sport more 
often and that we have strong organisations that deliver 
the products and opportunities Australians want.

Some highlights in 2014-15 included: 

	 Personal excellence - The most significant 
	 athlete wellbeing program in AIS history, incorporating 
	 myAISPlaybook - a new high performance athlete 
	 learning and development platform.

	 AIS Sports Draft - Athletes selected in this fast 
	 tracked development came together at the AIS to 
	 share their journeys as they transition to Olympic or 
	 Commonwealth Games sports.

	 AIS Centre for Performance Coaching and Leadership -  
	 More than 45 coaches graduated from the centre, 
	 providing development and mentoring for our brightest 
	 coaches and administrators.

As our attention starts to focus on Rio and the major 
events leading up to the Games, I look forward to the ASC 
teaming up with your organisation to help put our athletes 
in the best possible position and enhance our chances of 
success.

JOHN WYLIE AM
Chair 
Australian Sports Commission

MESSAGE FROM THE AUSTRALIAN  
SPORTS COMMISSION

AUSTRALIA’S WINNING EDGE SPORTS
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Cycling Australia (CA) has had a challenging 
but productive year in 2015. The sport is 
booming and there are many opportunities 
ahead of us. The major challenge is to ensure 
that the governing body takes its place as  
the leader of the sport.
Our new board has been in operation for over twelve months, 
having been elected in September 2014. You will recall that 
the board members were hand-picked from a long list of 
interested and qualified applicants. My task is to ensure 
that they are stretched, challenged and provide first-rate 
leadership and strategic direction to CA. They have attacked 
the task with enthusiasm and it has been a pleasure to chair 
the discussions. We believe that we can see the way ahead 
for CA and are enthusiastic about its future.

It is widely recognised that CA experienced significant 
challenges in recent times, requiring its leadership to take 
stock and implement a clear and effective plan to put it  
back on track. It is time to move on from the problems of the 
past as there is much to be done.

At the core of the changes at CA is a renewed focus on 
financial management and governance. We have worked 
extremely hard to ensure that we continue to meet 
the standards expected of a leading national sporting 
organisation. This has led to changes of CA’s strategic 
direction and the introduction of a new leadership team. 

At a personal level, my focus has been on the development 
of the new strategic plan and implementing governance 
reforms, as well as chairing an important membership and 
insurance working party. This has provided me with first-
hand insights into the workings of our organisation as well 
as a valuable opportunity to discuss aligned strategies with 
our member states, partners, and the Australian Sports 
Commission (ASC).

Working in partnership must be the cornerstone for 
everything we do, and partnering with our colleagues across 
the states and territories will be imperative to achieving 
our future success. We value your input – it is critical to 
our undertakings at every level; and we are committed to 
ensuring the 2016 year sees greater collaboration of our 
organisations to ensure the sport reaches its full potential  
in Australia.

As we approach the Rio 2016 Olympic Games, it is important 
that we reflect on the outstanding season for our competitive 
cyclists, with notable achievements across the board with 
medals at World Championships in para-cycling, track,  
road and BMX.

While I am reluctant to point out any individual performances 
in an outstanding year, I was personally delighted to see  
Anna Meares OAM become the most successful female track 
cyclist in history with her eleventh world championship  
gold medal at the 2015 UCI World Track Championships. 

We continue to deliver on our medal targets identified in the 
ASC Australia’s Winning Edge high performance strategy. 
Our High Performance Unit, led by Kevin Tabotta and Paul 
Brosnan, has performed at a very high level. 

The support that we receive from the ASC across a wide  
range of areas is greatly appreciated.

In September, I was pleased to attend the UCI Congress 
in Richmond, Virginia, USA. The event brought together 
some of the most notable leaders in the sport and it was 
a great opportunity to gain insights and learnings from 
global experts. It was gratifying to see that Australia is well 
regarded and well positioned on the international stage. 
Tracey Gaudry represents us well as Vice President of the  
UCI and her influence across a wide range of areas has been 
most valuable for CA. Additionally, we have had two valuable 
international appointments this year - Anna Meares has been 
appointed to the UCI Athletes’ Commission, and our Director 
of High Performance Kevin Tabotta, has been appointed to 
the UCI Track Commission.

As we look to 2016, there are challenges and opportunities 
that lay ahead. The Rio 2016 Olympic Games will be our 
most prominent challenge. The board’s focus will be on 
implementing our strategic plan and restoring the financial 
viability of CA. 

We are also pleased to be moving to a centralised office 
space in Melbourne. It is an opportunity for greater 
collaboration and efficiencies as a result of centralisation  
of our resources. 

I thank Nick Green and his team for their efforts in a difficult 
year. Melinda Tarrant’s work as acting Chief Executive and 
Chief Operating Officer is greatly appreciated and we wish  
her well in her new role.

In closing, I would also like to make special mention of 
Gerry Ryan OAM, who stepped down during the year after 
serving as President and as a Director. Gerry is a tremendous 
supporter of CA. His involvement during difficult times will 
be acknowledged for many years to come, and I trust you will 
join me in thanking Gerry for his service. 

Regards,

MALCOLM SPEED AO
President

PRESIDENT'S  MESSAGE

9



CEO'S MESSAGE
I am pleased to be writing my first report  
as CEO of Cycling Australia (CA). 

Cycling is an amazing sport and I am excited 
to see an increasing number of passionate 
racing and recreational cyclists on a regular 
basis. I love the fact that cycling is accessible 
to all, extremely social and importantly, 
keeps people fit.
Over the past twelve months, I have taken time to listen 
and learn. This has assisted enormously in understanding 
the existing gaps as well as helping create a new strategic 
platform that will provide stability, growth and a solid base 
for future investment.

 
STRATEGIC VISION

As we move into 2016, it is clear that we need to focus on 
growing our membership base, with a particular focus 
on servicing our racing members whilst at the same time 
growing our recreational membership base. We will also 
focus sharply on women and our youth, which will support 
our performance, engagement and participation initiatives. 

The growth of cycling is a shared responsibility and our 
strategic vision will aim to unify the important industry  
and sport partners, and we will continue to collaborate 
with member states and clubs. We will protect, promote 
and uphold the values of cycling. In an important and new 
strategic direction for our organisation, we will lead, as well 
as partner on, important advocacy matters.

Our athletes, past, present and future, continue to be a 
focus of our organisation and play an extremely important 
part in showcasing our sport globally and at home. Their 
performances delight and inspire the many millions who ride 
a bike. We have detailed the significant achievements of our 
athletes in the results section of this annual report.

STRUCTURAL REFORM

Throughout 2015, an internal structural review saw the 
introduction of a new leadership team, as well as significant 
reforms to our financial management, governance, 
commercial operations and reporting. While changes are 
set to continue into 2016, these improvements and new 
appointments will position our organisation for continued 
growth, and the ability to deliver to our members, partners 
and supporters.

INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

Amongst the reforms throughout the year, it has also been  
a year of achievements and milestones for CA, and I’m 
pleased to reference a selected few highlights that I am a 
particularly proud of: 

 	 January marked the start of the summer of cycling,  
	 which really saw our sport profiled in a positive light.  
	 This included the inaugural hosting of the UCI  
	 sanctioned Cadel Evans Great Ocean Road race and  
	 the announcement of a new two-year broadcasting  
	 agreement with both Channel 9 and Fox Sports,  
	 which will continue to see our sport publicised on  
	 free-to-air and subscriber national television.

 	 Over the year our social and digital media platforms 
	 have seen a significant growth of 45% across many of our 
	 channels. 

 	 Our ‘She Rides’ programs participants doubled against 
	 its inaugural year. Pleasingly, She Rides also increased 
	 its reach, with availability in more than 50 locations and 
	 our first Let’s Ride programs commenced in 2015, after 
	 an extensive and detailed development process including 
	 consumer insights, product offering development, 
	 brand, marketing and design. 
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 	 We have invested considerable time and expertise in 
	 developing and adopting a new national junior and 
	 coaching framework to meet the objectives of our 
	 participation and performance outcomes.

 	 We have adopted the new World Anti-Doping Authority 
	 (WADA) anti-doping policy and are proud that as a national 
	 federation, we continue to drive a strong stance against 
	 doping. 

 	 In partnership with the Australian Sports Commission 
	 (ASC), member states and industry experts, we led a 
	 comprehensive review of the CA membership and 
	 insurance offering that will see significant improvements 
	 to our growing membership base over time.

 	 We have continued to forge strong relationships with 
	 the Union Cycliste Internationale (UCI), federal 		   
	 government, member states, Mountain Bike Australia 
	 (MTBA), and new and existing commercial partners.

GROWING OUR MEMBERSHIP BASE

Since the 2014 annual report, overall CA membership levels 
have risen by 3.5%. This is largely attributed to the continued 
growth of the recreational category, which now makes up over 
30% of our member base. 

In early 2016, we will enter into a longitudinal research project 
with the ASC to better understand the needs of the recreational 
riders. As we look to grow on our membership base, this 
research will guide our growth strategy on providing benefits 
to the millions of weekly bike riders, while delivering a better 
service to our existing members. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

As we close out another year for CA, I thank those who have 
been instrumental in supporting and driving the organisation 
forward. I would like to make particular mention of the ASC, 
our member states, the dedicated staff at CA, and of course, 
our loyal sponsors and partners who continue to allow us  
to do great work. 

On a personal note, my sincere thanks to our President, 
Malcolm Speed AO, for his guidance through my first  
12 months in office, as well as leading a hard working and  
diligent board of directors in implementing a platform for 
future success. 

Finally, I have thoroughly enjoyed meeting many passionate 
cyclists and volunteers who continue to shape our sport, 
and I am particularly proud that we will acknowledge their 
contribution with the establishment of the inaugural CA  
Hall of Fame.

I wish you all a very happy season of summer riding, and look 
forward to continuing this journey with you in 2016.

NICHOLAS GREEN OAM
Chief Executive Officer

School children take part in the Cycling Australia 2015 Aboriginal Bicycle Safety Program 11



2015 has been a successful year for the High 
Performance Unit (HPU), both in terms of 
program athlete progression and national  
team performances against Australian  
Winning Edge Bench Mark Event (AWE BME) 
targets. Subsequent increased financial 
support has been provided by the Australian 
Institute of Sport (AIS) to enhance priority 
disciplines preparation for the 2016 Rio 
Olympic and Paralympic Games. 
Given the overall financial position, the HPU made some  
difficult, but necessary decisions. With the support and 
understanding of our stakeholders and employees,  
we minimised the impact as best possible, and identified 
opportunities wherever we were able.

Rio 2016 Olympic and Paralympic qualification is progressing  
as anticipated; cycling is targeting 5 - 7 medals (2 - 3 gold) 
across 18 medal events at the Olympic Games, and 9 - 11  
medals (4 - 5 gold) at the Paralympic Games, and we remain  
on track to achieve this. Respective Olympic discipline 
preparation plans are currently being finalised in close 
consultation with the Australian Olympic Committee (AOC),  
Australian Paralympic Committee (APC) and AIS. 

The HPU continues to strive for excellence, reviewing and 
evolving our processes and systems, in consultation and 
collaboration with our valued stakeholders (State Institutes of 
Sport (SIS)/ State Academies of Sport (SAS), AIS, Australian 
Sports Commission (ASC), Australian Commonwealth Games 
Association (ACGA), AOC, APC), to achieve sustainable long-term 
success for cycling in Australia well beyond Rio 2016.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The stand out performances for 2015 include:

	 UCI Road World Championships, Richmond, USA, 19-27 
	 September: 2nd and 6th in the Elite Men’s Road Race;  
	 three elite women placed in the top 20 in the road race.  
	 4th Elite Women’s ITT; 6th Elite Men’s ITT (mechanical);  
	 7th U23 Men’s ITT (mechanical); 3rd Junior Women’s ITT. 
	 Australia finished the championships the third ranked nation. 

	 9 medals (3 gold) at the 2015 UCI Para-cycling Road World 
	 Championships, Nottwil, Switzerland, 29 July - 2 August.

	 4 gold, 5 silver and 3 bronze at the 2014 UCI Junior Track 
	 World Championships, Astana, Kazakhstan, 8-12 August. 
	 Australia finished second nation, however won the  
	 most medals (12 total).

	 1 silver (elite women) at 2015 UCI BMX Elite World 
	 Championships, Zolder, Belgium, 21-25 July. In addition  
	 two elite men made the final, and 1 gold in the U19  
	 Men’s Time Trial.

	 3 gold, 3 silver and 4 bronze (11 total) medals at the  
	 2015 UCI Para-cycling Track World Championships, 
	 Apeldoorn, Holland, 26-29 March.

	 4 gold, 4 silver and 3 bronze at the 2015 UCI Track World 
	 Championships in Paris, France, 18-22 February.  
	 Australia finished second, behind France, and won the  
	 most medals of any nation (11 total).

	 The World Tour Academy (WTA) claimed three major 
	 international wins in the U23 Tour of Flanders and Giro  
	 Valle d’Aosta prologue and overall general classification, 
	 along with 2nd overall in Tour de L’Avenir (U23 Tour de 
	 France). 

	 Orica-AIS Women’s Professional Road Team ranked No. 
	 5 in the world, had over the course of the season 16 
	 victories, 20-second places and 14-third places.

HIGH  
PERFORMANCE
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FACILITIES

A comprehensive refurbishment of the HPU facility at the 
Adelaide Super-Drome was completed in May following 
extensive consultation between Cycling Australia (CA), AIS  
and the Office for Recreation and Sport (ORS). This was 
funded by a capital works grant - provided by the ASC 
enhancement of athlete performance and we prioritised 
spaces and new training equipment. We now have a new  
heavy weights gym, air-conditioned ergometer room, athlete 
lounge / break-out area and physical therapy treatment  
rooms on site.

The HPU continues to operate satellite HP centres for BMX 
in Queensland and in Europe for endurance international 
competition and preparation, e.g., through U23 World Tour 
Academy and Orica-AIS women’s road teams. The AIS Pizzey 
Park facility on the Gold Coast in Queensland is integral 
for supporting BMXA HP program athletes, and maximises 
access to the Chandler Super-cross (SX) track in Brisbane. 
The AIS European Training Centre (ETC) in Gavirate (VA) Italy 
is a multisport facility and operates as the hub for specialist 
athlete support. The CA HPU occupies office space within the 
ETC, with self-contained rental apartment accommodation 
500m away in the village centre for the majority of our 
European program staff and athletes. The relationship 
between the CA and AIS staff at the ETC is excellent, providing 
an optimal performance support environment, which has been 
extremely beneficial, as we had a particularly high demand on 
medical support for the treatment and management of injury 
and illness experienced by our athletes and staff this year.

Additionally the HPU rents a warehouse in Italy, for the 
storage of program equipment and vehicles in Europe, 
located in an industrial area 20km from Gavirate. CA shares 
this building with Orica-GreenEDGE (OGE) World Tour 
team. Despite security measures, we had the unfortunate 
experiences of two professional break-ins this year, losing 
a large amount of equipment (primarily road bicycles). OGE 
have assisted us, both in replacing priority equipment items 
from their sponsorship stocks, and with insurance claims. 
CA and OGE have now further upgraded security measures 
with increased external alarm sensors, strengthened doors, 
internal lock-up storage containers, and on-site security 
surveillance, which we hope will reduce the risk of future 
break-ins. 

INITIATIVES AND PLANS

Some of the highlights of our plans include:

	 Upgrade of the CA HPU Adelaide-Superdrome 
	 administration / office space, meeting rooms and 
	 performance areas completed in May.

	 The SA Minister for Sport, Leon Bignell, visited the  
	 HPU in August.

	 CA HPU national athlete pathway framework document 
	 has been completed and circulated following close 
	 consultation with SSOs, SIS / SAS and our national  
	 network coaches.

	 AIS performance leaders courses have been developed 
	 and facilitated by the Melbourne Business School, have 
	 been undertaken by the majority of senior HP 
	 management and national coaching staff (ongoing).

	 The addition of Andy Warr (AIS), CA HPU performance 
	 systems manager, has raised our level of professionalism 
	 and is having a direct impact on performance and 
	 securing multiple AIS grants for special undertakings 
	 whilst managing these projects, and  coordinating our  
	 SSSM service team.

	 Transition of Ian McKenzie into a technical and 
	 programing role is having a major positive impact on  
	 the women’s track endurance program.

	 Alex Bird, 2012 London Olympic Games reserve, appointed 
	 as assistant sprint coach (i.e. scholarship coach), is 
	 working closely with the HPU sprint program in Adelaide.

	 Ongoing refinement and review of individual athlete 
	 performance plans and program performance plans 
	 continue to enhance the delivery of customised 
	 performance services and support.

	 Former PhD scholars secured in FTE positions aligned 
	 with priority HPU programs, through partnerships with 
	 the AIS, SIS / SAS and university system.

	 Recruitment of senior personal excellence adviser, 
	 funded by the AIS, employed by South Australian Sports 
	 Institute, embedded in the HPU environment in Adelaide,  
	 to further enhance and complement the delivery and 
	 coordination of athlete support, in collaboration with  
	 sports psychology and welfare services.
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	 Continue to support and evolve the national junior track 
	 series and our national junior programs to ensure a 
	 consistent identification and delivery of high calibre  
	 talent into our national programs.

	 In collaboration with the AIS, positive progress being  
	 made with online Athlete Management System (AMS),  
	 a centralised repository of all critical athlete data.

	 Dr Katie Slattery, NSWIS sports scientist, seconded  
	 to the women’s track endurance program to provide  
	 applied sports science support.

	 Inaugural “Teaming for Success Symposium”  
	 hosted by the CA HPU in Adelaide, 14-15 October, 
 	 with National Institute network directors, CEOs,  
	 program managers and coaches.

	 Continue to strengthen relationships with network 
	 stakeholders e.g. attendance by senior HPU staff  
	 at NSWIS 2017+ workshop in August.

	 AIS AWE Performance Planning Presentation – 2020 and 
	 beyond, was made by CA on 19 November in Canberra.

	 Two AOC/AIS campaign Rio forums attended in Canberra 
	 by NPD and GM-HPU.

	 Attendance at Rio Road Test event in August and BMX  
	 Test event in October.

	 AOC IGNITE sessions attended by all prospective Rio 
	 cycling shadow squad athletes and officials – AOC ASPIRE 
	 sessions to be conducted and attended in early 2016.

	 Internal Rio 2016 pre-mortem workshop conducted 
	 in September with key HPU and Olympic team staff  
	 to focus our attention on the fine  
	 detail, to ensure world's best  
	 processes are in place as we  
	 finalise respective program  
	 Olympic preparations.

	 Final Rio 2016 AOC NF pre-games preparation meeting 
	 attended by CA in Sydney, 18 November.

	 The HPU continues to work closely with BMXA and 
	 the AIS, to manage the BMX HP program, despite some 
	 governance challenges that are being resolved.

 
STAFFING 

The HPU is now operating with 33 full-time and 13 core  
part-time employees and consultants; 46 staff in total; 
including a PhD scholar and a scholarship coach; six are AIS 
employed and four are SIS/SAS employed. In addition the HPU 
contracts a dozen plus casual staff, engaged on a part-time 
basis, to provide specialist support, primarily soft tissue 
therapists/soigneurs and mechanics. The HPU discontinued 
the professional men’s road coordinator/neo pro mentor role, 
and planned BMX specific scholarship coach, along with a 
reduction in contractor positions.

In June, world-renowned and leading AIS sports scientist, 
Dr David T. Martin, accepted a two year contract with the 
Philadelphia 76ers NBA team. Dave has been instrumental in 
Australian cycling’s success over the past 21 years, working 
closely with our athletes and coaches as an applied sports 
physiologist, and CA’s sports science coordinator. Whilst 
we will remain in close contact with Dave, his departure is 
nonetheless a significant loss to our HP system. 

CYCLING AUSTRALIA ANNUAL REPORT 201514



Past and present sports science PhD scholars and staff have been 
hand-picked and groomed by Dave over the years including: Dr 
Scott Gardner; Marc Quod; Dr Tammie Ebert; Nick Flyger; Dr Eric 
Haakonssen; Jason Bartram and Dr Paolo Menaspa. All are major 
players and highly respected practitioners in the world of elite 
sport and either have, or continue to provide support to our  
HP system.

Mark Gregory commenced as senior personal excellence adviser 
in August, an initiative funded by the AIS, employed by SASI, based 
with the HPU in Adelaide three days, and SASI two days per week. 
The personal excellence program is athlete focused, providing 
career guidance, resources and educational opportunities to 
Adelaide and internationally based CA AWE categorised athletes. 

This role replaces the athlete career and education (ACE) 
program, and will work in close consultation and collaboration 
with existing CA HPU athlete welfare and performance  
psychology staff. 

Mark holds a Bachelor of Behavioural Science (Psychology), has 
over 11 years’ experience as a career development consultant 
at Flinders University, is a current member of the National 
Association of Graduate Careers Advisory Services (NAGCAS)  
and continues to volunteer his time supporting cycling clubs  
and events.

Rik Fulcher has commenced full-time employment with the  
HPU in Adelaide in the new role of logistics and administration 
team leader, filling the program administration position that has 
been vacant since August. Rik will be the HPU program 

administrator for para, BMX and junior programs, and will retain 
his current responsibilities as a national team manager and the 
U19 junior coordinator

Additionally, Shaun Stephens started in August with the AIS as the 
new performance manager for cycling, based in Canberra. Shaun 
replaces David Tillotson, and is essentially the conduit between 
the AIS/ASC and the CA HPU in Adelaide.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

It is a privilege to work with such a passionate and professional 
team of people, athletes and staff, who are committed, day in 
day out, to see Australian cycling achieve sustained, world-class 
practices and performances. The long-standing partnerships  
with our extensive network of stakeholders and sponsors  
continue to evolve and strengthen, without whom we could 
not optimally service or support our ambitious scope of HPU 
discipline programs (track, road, BMX, para, junior U19)  
– on behalf of the HPU, thank you.

KEVIN TABOTTA					   
National Performance Director

PAUL BROSNAN  
General Manager

Annette Edmondson (SA), Ashlee Ankudinoff (NSW), Amy Cure (TAS) and Melissa Hoskins (WA)  
all smiles after winning the team pursuit world title at the 2015 UCI Track Cycling Championships 15



Para-cycling as a discipline within Cycling 
Australia’s (CA's) high performance unit 
works cooperatively with CA's coaching and 
development department, and respective 
commissions. Para-cycling development, 
national level events and international 
competition are a priority focus, as are the 
Paralympics and world championships.
In 2015 we competed in world track and road championships 
and two road world cups with the clear objective, to secure 
qualifying points towards Rio 2016 Paralympics. With points 
available to secure a top ten placing, our strategy was to 
gain maximum points whilst also creating an international 
competition pathway for the development of identified  
para-cyclists.  

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

World Championships

Australia finished fifth on the medal tally at the para-cycling 
world track championships in Apeldoorn, Holland, 26-29 
March, with a total of 11 medals: 3 gold, 4 silver and 4 bronze.

The gold medal performances included Sue Powell and 
Michael Gallagher winning their respective Individual  
pursuits and Alistair Donohoe the men’s scratch race.

There was much uncertainty in regards to the venue and 
timing of these championships due to a concern with the 
Apeldoorn Track surface, which was originally deemed unsafe 
by the UCI due to splintering. The track was repaired and the 
dates confirmed, albeit very late, requiring expert planning 
and preparation for these championships.

The weather was cold and wet, and unfortunately several 
members of the team were severely affected by colds and flu: 
most affected was our tandem pairing of Matt Formston and 
Mick Curran, with Matt very lucky to compete, let alone come 
away with a silver medal.

Alistair Donohoe rode extremely well and continued to 
demonstrate his versatility with silver medals in the 1k time 
trial and individual pursuit. He also teamed with Michael 
Gallagher in the C4-5 combined scratch race, in what was 
the most exciting race of the championships, seeing Australia 
finish first and third. 

The standard of competition was very high with 153 competitors 
from 30 nations represented, with these championships being 
a priority qualification event for 2016 Rio Paralympics.

PARA-CYCLING  
HIGH PERFORMANCE PROGRAM
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World Road Championships  

Australia concluded the 2015 UCI para-cycling road world 
championships in Nottwil, Switzerland, 29 July - 2 August, with 
nine medals including three gold, four silver and two bronze, 
placing 6th overall on the nations ranking.

Australia’s breakthrough performance of these championships 
was the gold medal performance of Kyle Bridgwood in the C4 
ITT. Kyle, who is a relatively new member of the para-cycling 
team, was rewarded for his dedication and commitment with 
his first rainbow jersey. 

Carol Cook (trike 2) won the individual time trial but was beaten 
into silver in the road race. Competition has really stepped 
up as everyone progresses towards Rio. Alistair Donohoe 
defended his world championship jersey with a confident sprint 
in the men’s C5 road race.    

Sue Powell (road race) and Alex Green (ITT) both rode very 
well taking silver C4 medals with Simone Kennedy again 
demonstrating her consistency with bronze C3 in both the road 
race and ITT.

As part of para-cycling’s continued development of the 
discipline of hand-cycling, it is pleasing to note that in 
the H1 classification Grant Nichol qualified for the world 
championships and finished a very credible 5th in his first 
world championships. Emilie Miller was also selected for 
her first world championships to ensure her continued 
development and international classification as one of only 
several H1 women competing in the world. A very big thank 
you to Grant’s wife Trish, and Emilie’s mum Donna who 
travelled with the team.

UCI Road World Cup Champion

It was very pleasing to see Alistair Donohoe named as 2015 
UCI world cup champion, C5 men, following his outstanding 
performances during the world cups.

INITIATIVES AND PLANS

In cooperation with James Victor and the U23 men’s road  
high performance program, we have agreed for Alistair 
Donohoe and Kyle Bridgwood to be overseen by para-cycling 
coach Tom Skulander for training with the U23’s at an  
altitude camp in Livigno, Italy, in preparation for the world 
para-cycling road championships. This initiative proved very 
successful with future attachments being considered in our 
plans and preparation for Rio.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Thanks to the various state associations, their commissaires 
and volunteers for conducting events for para-cyclists; 
without your continued commitment, there would be little to 
no competition opportunities for para-cyclists. A big thanks 
to team manager Murray Lydeamore who works tirelessly to 
ensure efficient and effective management of the overall team 
- especially with regards to logistics - which are substantial 
when moving a big team of physically-impaired athletes. 

All athletes and staff are extremely appreciative of the 
Australian Paralympic Committee management and staff for 
their assistance and contribution across the various aspects 
of the para-cycling high performance program. I would like 
to recognise the support of SIS/SAS and their coaches as the 
para-cycling program strives to deliver on AIS/ASC winning 
edge targets, and thank the high performance management 
team and all staff who assist with the operations of the  
para-cycling program. 

PETER DAY
Para-Cycling Performance Director/Head Coach

Carol Cooke (VIC) won a third consecutive world title in the T2 time trial at the Para-cycling Road Championships  
and riders contest the Handcycle National Championships (top right) 17
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The 2015 sporting calendar showcased 
a number of fantastic national and 
international races. The inclusion of the 
inaugural Cadel Evans Great Ocean Road 
Race (CEGORR) ensured the ‘summer of 
cycling’ racing season was off to a great 
start. This event was a fitting tribute to 
acknowledge the significant contribution  
that Cadel has made to cycling.  
It was pleasing to have three UCI sanctioned events start the 
racing season, with the prestigious UCI World Tour Down 
Under and the Herald Sun Tour ensuring cycling fans could 
watch and experience world class racing first hand.

In January, Ballarat once again played host to the Australian 
championship for road cycling, which coincided with the 
announcement of a new two-year broadcasting agreement 
with both Channel 9 and Fox Sports, which broadcast many 
races on free-to-air and subscriber national television.

The nationals continued to drive strong economic results for 
the Ballarat region and I thank the City of Ballarat and the 
Ballarat community for providing their ongoing support in 
hosting this championship event.

We all watched with pride as our green and gold national 
champion jerseys were worn around the world by Heinrich 
Haussler and Peta Mullens. The nationals continue to be 
Cycling Australia’s marquee event and an important  
opportunity for us to showcase the sport.

The 2015 CA track championships delivered quality racing 
and we will remember this event for expert management 
by Cycling Victoria. Also, we commend the efforts of Jack 
Bobridge who’s world hour record attempt to beat the 
record set by Matthias Brändle in October 2014 - clocking up 
51.300km at the DISC Velodrome - will be remembered for a 
long time. We also congratulate Rohan Dennis who went on 
to break the world record later in the year, with a distance of 
52.491kms.

The 2015 Subaru National Road Series (NRS) has once again 
provided Australia’s finest men and women professionals 
with a world-class platform to showcase their talent at 
home. We were pleased that the women’s NRS expanded to 
ten events, with two new events in January coinciding with 
two of Australia’s international races – the Tour Down Under 
and the CEGORR. Overall, the NRS featured over 50 days of 
racing across 21 events, with features such as the Tour of 
Tasmania and the 100th edition of Australia’s oldest one-day 
race, the Melbourne to Warrnambool. 

There continues to be some key areas targeted for ongoing 
development across the NRS, and we will work with 
organisers, teams and commissaires to implement a review  
to address these, and plan for continued growth. 

National standard racing was offered to riders through the 
national junior track series, Subaru national road series and 
the national para-cycling series, along with a suite of other 
national championships from masters to our future stars 
in junior age group championships. These competitions 
will continue to be a focus for us, and we intend to further 
develop and improve these over time, to provide safe and 
sustainable racing for all.  

I would like to thank all of the sponsors and partners for 
their continued support with our events program.  
On behalf or our team, I’d also like to recognise the 
enormous contribution from the vast group of volunteers, 
officials and staff who make our events possible and their 
continued commitment to ensuring we deliver a world-class 
events program.

RIK FULCHER 	  
National Manager Sport 	
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Riders battle during a stage in the Subaru National Road Series 
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This year has been productive for participation 
and we’ve continued to focus on the 
establishment and development of national 
programs for women: She Rides, and children: 
Let’s Ride - that provide opportunities for 
Cycling Australia (CA) to talk and engage with 
new audiences, outside of our traditional 
racing channels. This is a critical step to 
further grow participation across active 
cyclists, to rider and finally racer. 
Participation in our entry-level programs provides CA with an 
important platform to support and communicate with target 
audiences of people who ride bikes, offering opportunities 
for further involvement through membership, rides and 
other programs. This investment continues to support our 
largest growing membership category: recreational cycling 
- which now makes up over 30% of our membership base. 
Importantly, CA has seen increased female membership in 
both recreational and racing categories for 2014-15, which  
is encouraging.  

In conjunction with establishing our participation programs, 
we have looked to align the junior policy and the coaching 
framework to meet both participation and performance 
outcomes. This ensures we have the capability to continue  
to grow and service member needs into the future. 

MEMBERSHIP 

Overall membership rose by 3.5% on figures reported in last 
year’s annual report. This is largely due to the continued 
growth of the recreational category, which grew by 11%. Total 
membership was 26,724 when recognising all memberships 
sold in 2014-15, including three-month memberships. 
Importantly, total female membership has increased by 3%  
this year with rises in both recreational and race categories. 

Our racing memberships for elite, U19, U15 and U13 
categories have continued to slowly decline over the last four 
years. The U23 and U17 categories have shown growth with 
the masters category remaining stable.  

This year has seen the establishment of a membership 
working party to review our existing member offering. We 
undertook consumer research with our existing members 
to better understand the needs and perceptions of current 
and lapsed members. This was an important exercise that 
assisted us in the simplification of our 2016 member offer. 
Additionally, the research findings have helped develop our 
strategies to improve communication with member segments, 
and establish a high level marketing plan to guide the 2016 
membership growth campaign. 

JUNIOR POLICY 

This year we conducted an extensive review of our junior policy 
for participation in cycling in consultation with states, coaches, 
race organisers, administrators and high performance staff. 
Released in May 2015, the updated junior policy included key 
changes needed to meet the changing landscape of Australian 
sport including alignment with the Australian Sports 
Commissions junior sport guidelines, current expectations 
of the provision of sport across the industry and the need to 
recognise and include recreational participation in junior ages 
as entry points to cycling participation. 

A key addition to the policy has been the inclusion of age-
appropriate activities for the competitive stream of cycling 
in both training and racing environments. These changes 
are aimed at ensuring the sport provides safe and positive 
experiences for all juniors, and to make our membership 
categories appeal to a wider audience. 

 SHE RIDES 

 
The second year of She Rides was truly successful. 
Participation in programs doubled on the inaugural year to 
804 women. The program expanded with the introduction 
of Basic and Together offerings to support our existing 
Confidence Program. This allowed the program to better 
cater for and support the varying ability and fitness levels of 
women participating. The program also increased its reach 
with availability in over 40 locations nationally and uniquely 
engages women aged 18 to 77 years old, proving you’re never 
too old to ride. 

One of the key strategies behind She Rides has been to create 
a branded program that appeals to women through a user pay 
model. This sees participant registrations contributing over 
60% of funding needed to deliver programs. Results show 
86% of She Rides participants have had no prior involvement 
with CA's network prior to She Rides; and from the outset 
the program has been able to show a transition (9%) of 
participants into recreational membership. The challenge 
remains balancing the consolidation of early success through 
improvements in the systems driving the program, and 
creating opportunities and pathways for participation through 
existing CA activities. 

PARTICIPATION 
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She Rides has attracted widespread media interest over 
the last 12 months including 54 published pieces in either 
print, radio, television and online sources with the highlights 
including national coverage on Channel 9, ABC News and 
Channel 9 in Perth. This awareness has assisted in growing 
the She Rides Facebook followers by over 46% on the 
previous year to over 5,300 followers.

Importantly the program is achieving significant shifts in 
riding behaviours. Results show improved confidence and 
abilities for women to ride safely in both traffic-free and 
traffic environments. The program has also seen significant 
shifts in women’s attitudes and behaviours to ride on shared 
pathways, with family, on quiet roads and in traffic.  

LET’S RIDE 

After an extensive and detailed 
development process including 
consumer insights, product offering 
development, brand, marketing and 
design, our first Let’s Ride programs 
commenced in Term 3 2015. This 
coincided with the introduction of 

the Sporting Schools Program, launched by the Australian 
Sports Commission, reaching over 5,000 primary schools 
over the next three years. CA is one of 32 national sporting 
organisations (NSO’s) involved in the initiative to get 
Australian children active and enjoying sport to foster 
lifelong participation.   

Let’s Ride is a series of bike riding programs designed 
for children to have fun through interactive and practical 
sessions that teach children progressive bike riding skills 
and to ride safely in a range of environments. We want to 
provide Australian children with the ability to ride their 
bikes for fitness, health and fun, opening the opportunity 
to connect to the sport of cycling. A key component of the 
program is engagement with parents, understanding the 
important role they play in a child’s early riding experiences. 

We have been delighted with the interested and support 
shown by accredited coaches and the cycling community 
in general towards the introduction of Let’s Ride. We have 
been progressively building our capacity to deliver programs 
nationally and have already identified 49 locations for 
delivery centres of Let’s Ride. To support this growth, we are 
planning a number of coaching courses to help develop the 
workforce supporting and delivering future programs.  

COACHING 

Earlier this year the Australian Sports Commission released 
changes to the national coaching accreditation scheme to 
address the changing sports landscape and the need for 
sport to better support coaching outcomes across both 
participation and performance. The national changes 
will see CA update and re-align its coach accreditation 
framework in 2016. This will involve looking at ways CA can 
be more innovative in the provision and delivery of coach 
education, and further utilise technology to assist learning 
to be more interactive, progressive and customer-focused. 
This approach is already being piloted in 2015 with the 
level 2 road and track course, through the introduction of 
a series of webinar sessions. Information and content is 
delivered in a more progressive manner to assist coaches 
in the application of knowledge and content. This has taken 
away some of the barriers created by distance, and cost 
of accessing world-class knowledge. We are excited by 
the results and feedback so far, and are already looking to 
develop similar approaches for other courses in 2016. 

AUSTCYCLE

AustCycle’s provider network has continued to deliver cycle 
training to assist Australians to enjoy riding bikes safely. 
Over the last 12 months this has included the provision 
of training to over 21,000 adults and children in over 30 
locations. The results each year highlight the importance 
cycle training has in enabling more Australians to ride in the 
community.  

2015 saw AustCycle continue its relationship with the Roads 
and Maritime Service NSW to conduct aboriginal bicycle 
safety programs across NSW. Held in both metropolitan and 
regional settings, AustCycle delivered 40 programs teaching 
910 children greater awareness and skills to ride safely.   

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to acknowledge and thank the CA staff, states, 
clubs, administrators, coaches and instructors who continue 
to assist and provide opportunities for new audiences to 
enjoy what cycling has to offer. I look forward to continuing to 
work with you to grow CA's role in community cycling.  

GARETH WATKINS  
General Manager Participation
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STATE ASSOCIATIONS 

CYCLING ACT
Membership of Cycling ACT 
has continued to increase during 
2015, almost reaching 1,000. We’re 
pleased to note that our rate of 
female members has continued to 
exceed the national average, at 20%+.
Cycling ACT has also become a founding member of Capital 
Cycling, an organisation intended to facilitate strategic 
integration and potential sharing of common services across 
cycling bodies within the ACT, namely Cycling ACT, Pedal 
Power ACT, MTBA local club CORC, and ACT BMX. Capital 
Cycling hosted the national capital tour on Cycling ACT’s 
behalf - introducing graded races for the first time in that 
event’s history - demonstrating their ability and potential to 
support us in our efforts to advance cycling in the ACT.

Cycling ACT continued the junior and women’s tour in May  
and, through Capital Cycling, the national capital tour NRS 
event in September. In addition to the regular club races 
taking place throughout the year, the Canberra Cycling Club 
also continued the annual Tour de Femme in November.

We have been strongly represented internationally:

	 Michael Matthews: A stand out season for Michael  
	 with stages and leader’s jerseys at Paris-Nice, 
	 Vuelta Ciclista al Pais Vasco, Giro d'Italia and Tour of 
	 Alberta. Plus podium finishes in classics Milano 
	 Sanremo, De Brabantse Pijl, Amstel Gold Race and 
	 Grand Prix Cycliste de Québec, and a silver medal at 
	 the world championships.

	 Gracie Elvin: A breakthrough season for Canberra’s 
	 Gracie, as the two-time national champion claimed her 
	 first win in Europe at Gooik-Geraardsbergen-Gooik, 
	 followed by a stage win in the Internationale Thüringen 
	 Rundfahrt der Frauen in the second half of the season.

	 Rebecca Wiasak: Rebecca made her track world 
	 championship debut in February, and in her first event 
	 rode to her maiden world title, and an Australian record, 
	 in the individual pursuit, and claimed two medals 
	 at the national championships.

Other ACT cyclists continue to perform well on the international 
stage with Matthew Hayman, Michael Rogers, Rory Sutherland, 
Chloe Hosking, Adam Phelan, Nathan Haas and Nathan Hart. 
Para-cyclists Sue Powell, Paul Kennedy/Tom Clarke (pilot)  
and Brandie O'Connor/Breanna Hargrave (pilot SA) have  
also achieved international podium successes in world  
cups, world championships and the Commonwealth Games.  

This year has seen significant changes at ACTAS with the 
departure of coach Ben Cook. A number of local Canberra 
coaches have stepped up to help us since Ben’s departure  
and we thank Michael Aisbitt, Bec Doolan and Vicki Whitelaw  
for their support. We will continue to work closely with  
ACTAS in developing an ongoing strategy to ensure our  
elite and developing cyclists are well supported.

The year ahead 
	 Strengthen our financial position, and our organisational 

	 effectiveness.

	 Further refine a development strategy for our athletes  
	 and coaches.

	 Continue working with the Capital Cycling initiative  
	 to further develop cycling in the ACT.

	 Continue to expand the national capital tour NRS event.

	 Solidify our growth objectives for track cycling and juniors.

	 Work with the ACT government for better access to 
	 Stromlo Forest Park criterium circuit for training, and 
	 improve approvals process for road racing.

	 Progress with planning to include lighting and additional 
	 in-field facilities on the Narrabundah Velodrome. 

We are also finalising the ACT Cycling Federation strategic plan 
for 2016-20.

Thanks to Capital Cycling for hosting the national capital tour 
as well as to all of our commissaires, officials, volunteers and 
coaches for their commitment, dedication and enthusiasm for 
cycling in the ACT. A special thank you to outgoing President, 
Adrian Marshall, for all of his guidance developing Cycling ACT.

LISA KEELING 
President
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Lisa Keeling - President

Jim Veal - Vice President

Jessica Laws - Secretary   

Laura Darlington - Treasurer

BOARD MEMBERS AND EXECUTIVE:

Jessica Beitzel

David Kallir-Preece  

Marcel Lovelock

Michael Nelson

Paul Robey

Bill Walker
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Following operational 
consolidation, 2014 -15 was a 
period where Cycling NSW took 
the opportunity to assess its 
progress and consider its future 
direction through our strategic 
planning process, shared at our 
AGM in May. 
With a guiding statement of purpose being to provide each 
member with the very best of opportunities to pursue their 
passion of cycling, we identified four strategic pillars and 
associated objectives and milestones: 

1. 	 Clubs - clubs are a key provider of participation in  
	 our sport

2. 	 Participation - participation is fundamental in growing  
	 our membership

3.	 Pathways - high performance outcomes are the  
	 showcase for our sport

4. 	 Organisational Strength - organisational strength 
	 underpins all our goals and ambitions 

The board and management team have been working to 
develop operational strategies to deliver across these four 
pillars. Further governance work has been undertaken, 
specifically around development of commissions in women, 
competitions and discipline to ensure engagement through 
the membership, and a broadening of the base of expertise 
available to the organisation. 

Cycling NSW has taken a conservative approach to financial 
management and we have been able to expand staffing levels, 
including the appointment of a club and sport development 
co-ordinator. This role will work with clubs and members 
to develop organisational capability to better enable both 
Cycling NSW and our clubs to deliver a stronger proposition 
to members. This role has already enabled Cycling NSW 
to host numerous coaching courses over the past year, 
significantly increasing our ability to assist members to reach 
their riding potential.  

Cycling NSW has worked hard to take a more external-facing 
position for the federation across the Cycling Australia family, 

and with various stakeholders in New South Wales. Much of 
the work has been focused on relationship development with 
various government groups such as the NSW Police, and 
Sport & Recreation. We have regularly met with contacts – up 
to ministerial level - to advocate Cycling NSW’s position on 
a raft of issues that ultimately concern our members, such 
as rider safety, access to roads for race activities, and the 
ongoing viability and access to Dunc Gray Velodrome. Success 
with NSW Police in terms of a more amenable approach to 
cycle race approvals has been welcomed this year.

In terms of core racing activity, this was largely comparative 
with the previous year in terms of numbers racing in “open 
events” and the number of events scheduled. We have noted 
a change in rider activity at open events, something Cycling 
NSW is working to better understand. We intend to develop 
a race schedule that responds to the dual needs of meeting 
general member expectations, and delivers a structure that 
supports the development of high performance athletes.  

NSW produced many fine results on  
the road and track 
We produced a host of national champions across all 
disciplines and age categories, extending to several world 
champions: Ashlee Ankudinoff in the world record-breaking 
teams pursuit; Josie Talbot in the junior team pursuit; and 
Jamie Richardson a dual world champion in both the track 
and road time trial events in the C1 para-cycling category. 
NSW produced many outstanding masters results this year, 
headed by three individual world champions; Gary Mandy, 
David Willmott and Deborah Coulls, along with our sprint 
team of Gavin White, Daniel Ricard and Michael Smith.  

As defined in our strategic plan, clubs are the sport’s engine 
room – and we have one of the sport’s greatest grass roots 
contributors in Margaret Hazell being recognised with a 
lifetime achievement award by the NSW Sports Federation 
for her work with the Dubbo Cycle Club. Margaret has never 
competed, but there is scarcely a role within the delivery 
of the sport that she has not been involved with. Likewise 
we were able to acknowledge Terry Matheson and Patrick 
Robinson with life membership for their many years of 
dedication and commitment to cycling.

PHIL AYRES
CEO Cycling NSW

CYCLING NEW SOUTH WALES
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BOARD MEMBERS AND EXECUTIVE

Peter Beaumont - President / Chairman

Jeffrey Moloney - Director /  
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Rexine Jones - Director of Finance

Jacqueline Bogue (Appointed Position) - Director / 
 Chair of Women's Commission

Nathan Rees MP (Appointed Position)  
- Director / Government Liaison

Andrew Fisher - Director / 
Chair of Competitions Commission 

Vacancy  - Director

Ian Atkin - Public Officer
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Cycling in the Northern Territory 
has had an action-packed 
year. The collaboration of three 
cycling disciplines through the 
establishment of Pedals NT, the 
recruitment of Jason Bremner as 
executive officer, and advocacy 
group Bicycle NT is opening up 
a range of opportunities for the 
cycling community. Cycling NT 
is looking forward to seeing the 
results from this new development 
over the next 12 months. 
Darwin Cycling Club and Alice Springs Cycling Club have 
both had significant changes in their club committees over 
the last year, along with changes to Cycling NT’s governance 
structure and board members. Whilst this has taken a lot of 
hard work from all involved, we are benefitting from improved 
communication and efficiencies across the organisation. 
We’re pleased to note a surge in junior rider numbers over 
recent months, holding regular club rides both on the track 
and roads. Both the NT clubs have a passionate group of 
committee members who are working hard to reinvigorate the 
sport in their respective areas. 

Overall membership in the Northern Territory remained 
consistent with around 170 members. A significant number 
of non-CA recreational riders (over 350) took part in the 
2015 Sunbuild Gran Fondo, run by the Darwin Cycling Club 
in August. The engagement of Epic Events and Marketing to 
project manage the event, alongside Pedals NT’s support, 
ensured that the event moved to another level in terms of 
professionalism and capacity. 

The wider cycling community in the Northern Territory is also 
being well supported with the City of Darwin bike plan due to 
be implemented over the coming year, and the NT Government 
providing funding for a mountain bike master plan to upgrade 
the BMX tracks in the NT. A $1.5m investment has been 
granted to upgrade the Darwin velodrome to enable the 
cycling community to be well placed for the coming years.

Through the NT Government’s peak sporting body grant, 
Cycling NT has been able to support a number of initiatives 
over the last 12 months to further develop the sport, including:

 	 A junior development camp was held in Darwin in June 	
	 with 31 juniors from Darwin and Alice Springs with 
	 a number of coaches, providing access to professional 
	 development opportunities. Former Olympic champion, 
	 Brett Aitken assisted with the camp – Brett’s attendance 
	 was much appreciated and the juniors truly valued his 
	 input to their development.

 	 Cycling NT ran a commissaires course in Alice Springs 
	 in June, resulting in another six qualified commissaires  
	 for Darwin and Alice Springs. 

	 Riders were supported to attend national junior track 
	 series events and Level 3 commissaires were supported 
	 to attend national events to maintain their experience 
	 levels during the summer of racing.

	 The NT Championships were held in Alice Springs in 
	 October, bringing together more than 40 riders from  
	 both of the NT clubs for an exciting weekend of track  
	 and road competition.

Looking to the future
Cycling NT is looking to continue to build the capacity of its 
clubs, particularly through Pedals NT. We will focus on the 
exciting opportunities that exist with promoting new  
CA products to the recreational cycling market.

Cycling NT continues to be supported by sports consultant, 
Paul Mead, who provides strategic and operational direction. 
With a new governance model and board, Cycling NT is positioned 
to take full advantage of the opportunities presented by CA 
and Pedals NT over the next 12 months.

Thanks must go to the NT Government and the Department 
of Sport and Recreation who have provided financial support 
over the last 12 months. Thanks also to the team at CA who 
provide a constant level of support to our largely volunteer-
run organisation. And last, but definitely the most important, 
a huge thank you to the club volunteers who coach juniors, 
fix bikes, plan and conduct events, clean club houses, find 
sponsors, participate on committees and do all the things 
needed to keep our sport successful.

 

BEN KAETHNER 
Acting Chairperson

CYCLING NORTHERN TERRITORY
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Acting Chairperson - Ben Kaethner

Vice Chairperson - Stuart Crompton

Public Officer - Stuart Crompton

BOARD MEMBERS AND EXECUTIVE

Director - Reg Hatch

Finance Portfolio - Simon Murphy

Secretary Portfolio - Sonia Waller
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The last twelve months has seen 
some challenging times for 
Cycling Queensland, specifically 
as it relates to the stability of our 
team where we’ve seen higher 
than usual staff turnover – most 
notably our Chief Executive Officer, 
Geoff Rynne, resigned in February. 
We were pleased to have our past president, Mike Victor, 
available (in a voluntary capacity) to manage the day-to-day 
operations of the office and we thank him for stepping in to 
support us. The board of Cycling Queensland appointed myself 
as the new Chief Executive Officer in June, when making the 
move from Cycling Australia (CA) to the sunshine state and 
Cycling Queensland. 

There has been a concentrated effort by the board to address 
the financial position of the association, including the 
introduction of a new finance and audit committee, and a 
remuneration committee, to ensure we have the appropriate 
checks and balances in place. Further, we are reviewing and 
updating the Cycling Queensland strategic plan, with financial 
prudence at the centre of our efforts.

Ongoing discussions are progressing with key stakeholders 
in the state in regards to the conduct of road racing. The 
regulations and costs currently associated with road racing 
are a concern. With police and Traffic and Main Roads (TMR) 
open to discussions, we are treating this as a real opportunity 
for Queensland for the future. 

Even with a substantial schedule of state championship and 
Queensland road team series events on the calendar, Cycling 
Queensland staff and volunteers hosted the Australian 
under-19 road championships and the Australian masters 
road championships. These events have been well supported 
by riders, and the local clubs on the Gold Coast and northern 
NSW. The clubs throughout the state continue to organise 
professional, well-attended events, despite the distances 
riders have to travel to participate. 

The construction of the new indoor State Velodrome at 
Chandler is very much a talking point amongst the cycling 
fraternity and it will be a game changer for the sport in 
Queensland.

The new velodrome should be completed by July 2016. 
This Commonwealth Games legacy to the sport will be 
fundamental to the future of cycling in Queensland, and we  
are taking on the challenge of prior planning to play our  
part in ensuring it is hugely successful.  

Development programs such as the JETS and Queensland 
talent squad continue to grow and underpin the Queensland 
high performance program. Results from these programs 
have included a large number of riders representing Australia, 
and recently Queensland’s newest world champion: Kyle 
Bridgwood, C4 category. All of us at the Cycling Queensland 
team are confident that exciting times lie ahead for cycling  
in our state.

SEAN MUIR
Chief Executive Officer

CYCLING QUEENSLAND
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David Cook – Chair

Sloan Wilkins -  Treasurer

Russell Hinwood - Director

Desrae Cameron - Director

Ruth Marshall - Director 

Sean Muir – Secretary
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The last twelve months has seen 
a welcome turnaround in the 
financial performance of Cycling 
South Australia, while at the 
same time maintaining a focus 
on the delivery and promotion of 
quality racing. 
A thank you to our many commissaires, officials, and 
volunteers who so willingly give their time to make sure we 
have a safe and exciting racing environment. Our premier 
team series continues to grow each year, last year with the 
addition of a broader range of racing opportunities to appeal 
to greater numbers of our membership, including masters, 
women and junior members.

We have been successful in obtaining a number of grants 
from the Office for Recreation and Sport that will ensure 
that we can continue to develop cycling in South Australia. 
Particularly exciting is the substantial funding that we 
received as part of the junior pathways project. This project 
is set to have a long-term effect on our junior development 
strategy, promoting junior competition development and 
participation, as well as impacting on coach and club 
development opportunities.

Highlights from the past year include:

	 Securing a management agreement for the Adelaide 
	 Super-Drome through Office for Recreation and Sport, 
	 with increased use for training and racing, with a number 	
	 of sessions for juniors scheduled, along with support  
	 from the South Australian Sports Institute.

	 Victoria Park criterium racing has been well patronised 	
	 by both competitors and spectators, the highlight being 
	 the finish of the Santos Women’s Tour, as part of the  
	 Tour Down Under week, held in front of some  
	 3,000 spectators.

	 Cycling South Australia hosted the UCI C1 road event  
	 with 68 para-cyclists competing at Trinity College in 
	 Gawler. This was followed by the 2015 national  
	 road championships where over 50 athletes competed  
	 for national titles.

	 Improvements have been made in the processes and 
	 systems used in the operations of Cycling South Australia 
	 identified as necessary by the board to support effective 
	 governance – and this continues to be a focus area for  
	 the board. 

Our CEO, Peter Macdonald, and his team Kimberley Conte, 
Sean Turtur, Kim Murry and Ann McGee have shown an 
incredible amount of enthusiasm for the work they do. 
Their positive attitude is infectious and we thank them for 
their work. Finally, to the board of Cycling South Australia,  
thank you for your support and the work you have put in  
over the last year.

HARRY BURKE
President

CYCLING SOUTH AUSTRALIA
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Michael Bails - Director

Lynette Collins - Director

Richard Porter - Director

Kim Thomas - Director

Stacey Quinn – Treasurer

Peter Macdonald - CEO 
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Membership continues to grow, 
(albeit slowly) but nevertheless 
increasing all the time, 
demonstrating an encouraging 
trend with currently 682 members. 
The board of Cycling Tasmania 
have an ongoing commitment to 
continued growth in membership 
numbers, conducting frequent 
come & try days, all of which have 
contributed to a steady growth in 
numbers, particularly with juniors.
Tasmania continues to produce national champions, both 
on the road and the track. Some of our international riders 
have won on the big stage this year with Richie Porte winning 
Paris Nice and taking out the coveted national elite time trial 
championship.  Richie was a key member of the winning 
team (Team Sky) in this year’s Tour de France, the third time 
in recent years.

There is a lot to be enthusiastic about with the talent 
coming through the ranks of our membership: Tasmania 
can boast the best elite women’s team pursuit, winning 
the championship at this year’s elite/U19 National Track 
Championships. In the Under 19, James Robinson was a 
member of the gold medal team pursuit at the recent junior 
19 world track championships. Amy Cure continues to 
impress, both on the national and international stage, with 
wins nationally in the women’s IP and world championship 
TP. Lauren Perry - in her first year as a senior - won the 
national women’s scratch race championship, while Macey 
Stewart combined as a member of the women’s team pursuit 
in a round of the track world cup, to take gold.

Sincere thanks to all our coaches and mentors of these 
special athletes who oversee their development, ensuring 
they peak at the right time for both national and international 
events. We are indeed fortunate to have such expertise 
performing these roles and we know the athletes appreciate 
their efforts.

Looking Ahead
The board of Cycling Tasmania has endeavoured to meet all 
the highlights of our strategic plan and ensure we provide 
valued support for our membership. We continue to apply 
appropriate regulations in respect of road events and have 
continued to ensure strong legal, governance, and financial 
expertise. 

Also, we have continued to lobby for a metre matters trials 
in Tasmania and have strong support from our local state 
minister and Tasmania Police to provide a framework for 
increased safety of our membership on public roads. With 
both Queensland and ACT pursuing this, it is very positive for 
our membership. Further, we have overhauled our state by-
laws to bring these up to date with current conditions.

Board members of Cycling Tasmania report one newly 
elected member in the reporting period: Mrs Val James, 
a life member of Cycling Tasmania and a national level 3 
commissaire, was elected at the last AGM. Val brings many 
years of experience having been in many administrative roles 
within her local club Mersey Valley Devonport Cycling Club 
(MVDCC). We have a stable and strong team at board level 
that is providing attractive and proven pathways for athletes 
in our sport.

Other members include the CEO of Tasmania’s leading 
employer organisation, the Tasmanian Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry (TCCI), Michael Bailey, himself an 
active masters cyclist, who brings a range of management 
and business skills. Michael has attended an accreditation 
course and has been appointed to the role of member 
protection information officer for Cycling Tasmania.

The board extends a thank you to all our volunteers, who 
provide tremendous support and make competitions 
possible. We thank all our athletes who continue to 
support our road and track fixtures; and to our coaches, 
commissaires, clubs and their members who participate in 
our quarterly forums. And thanks to our CEO Collin Burns 
and administrative assistant Robyn Bailey. All of these people 
carry a significant workload throughout the year and we are 
grateful to them.

NOEL PEARCE
President

CYCLING TASMANIA
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Noel Pearce – President

Sam Pratt - Vice President

Val James - Executive Member

Andrew Youl - Director of Finance

Michael Bailey - Director

Jody Bush- Director

Phil Jarvie - Director
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CYCLING VICTORIA
We’re proud to share a number of key accomplishments 
over the past 12 months:

 	 Hosting of seven national championships, six national 
	 series and six national championship events.

 	 Introduction of new riding and racing opportunities.

 	 Simon Gerrans named Victorian male athlete of the year.

 	 Courtney Field named Victorian junior athlete of the year.

Cycling Victoria has established a new strategic vision: 
Building a Love of Cycling with the objective of more people 
riding, racing and watching. This vision includes five key 
areas of direction for our organisation:

More People Riding: The building of riding-based programs 
is important in Victoria, with new programs launched:

	 TryCycling: designed to provide riding skills for people 
	 with a disability.

	 Leading Rider: designed to provide skills to those  
	 leading bunch rides.

	 School Holiday Programs: designed to provide young  
	 kids with riding opportunities during school holidays.

The challenge series continued with four events: Whittlesea, 
Macedon, Marysville and Baw Baw. We also partnered with 
VicHealth to introduce two new programs for women: pop-
up spin classes, and older adults: touring by bike, lauching 
soon. 2014 saw the introduction of ‘The Women’s Ride’, this 
unique event allowed participants to take part in their own 
location in a variety of formats. This was a major success 
with over 50 events and 2,500 participants across Victoria.

More People Racing: In 2014 Cycling Victoria launched the 
inaugural Victorian interschools cycling series which saw 
in excess of 800 entries over the six rounds, and included 
the opportunity for schools to race on the Jayco Herald Sun 
tour final stage at Aurthurs Seat. Simon Gerrans has been 
instrumental in this series, as ambassador. The Victorian 
road series continues to be the highlight of the Victorian 
racing calendar, with 2,000+ participants. We are pleased 
Singapore Airlines joins us as the major naming rights sponsor.

We also introduced the first Victorian para-cycling series 
using the newly developed multi-class protocol. Victoria 
hosted seven national championships: junior track nationals, 
Australian omnium championships, Australian para-cycling 
track championships, Australian Madison championship, 
Australian cyclo-cross championships, Australian junior hill 

climb championships, and national elite road championships. 
Additionally, Victoria played host to several national road 
series events including the Tour of the Murray, Tour of the 
Goldfields, Tour of the Great South Coast, Melbourne to 
Warrnambool, Tour of Gippsland and Amy’s Otway Classic.  

A re-shaping of track has seen a continued growth in track 
racing via the winter track series and new Melbourne 
Omnium series. Also, a number of UCI races were hosted in 
Victoria including the Herald Sun tour, Cadel Evans road race 
(men), Austral wheelrace, UCI para-cycling track carnival, 
Melbourne Cup on wheels and Amy’s Gran Fondo.

To help support clubs and race organisers a new online 
planning program was rolled out for event organisers.

More People Watching: We hosted four UCI events including 
sell out crowds at Hisense Arena with the return of the 
118th Austral Wheelrace, and the Melbourne Cup on wheels 
moving to a new winter date at the Darebin International 
Velodrome. During the national track championships DISC 
was also the location for the Jack Bobridge hour record 
attempt, another sell out crowd.

Marketing: Most of our marketing has focused on increasing 
our digital footprint, and we now have over 25,000 followers 
on our various social media channels. A number of sponsors 
have joined, or continued to partner with Cycling Victoria, 
including: the TAC, Winning Edge, Singapore Airlines, 
Physiohealth, Specialized and Crodyon Cycleworks.

People: People are at the cornerstone of everything we 
do and Cycling Victoria has recently completed an online 
program to help support the management and training of 
volunteers. This now provides a significant capability for 
Cycling Victoria to train and develop our people. We have 
also developed a number of new resources to support clubs, 
specifically an inclusive club accreditation and club guide to 
behaviour. Further, we have launched a historical results site 
with over 250,000 individual results.

Cycling Victoria would like to thank the tireless volunteers 
and clubs whose ongoing support drives the sport. We also 
thank our key partners Cycling Australia, BMX Victoria, 
the Victorian Institute of Sport, VicHealth and Sport and 
Recreation Victoria for their continued support.

KIPP KAUFMANN
Chief Executive Officer
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Our focus over the last 12 months 
at CycleSport WA has been 
to stabilise the organisation 
financially, and we’re very pleased 
to share that we are now in a 
position to start to build capability 
that will deliver a higher level of 
service to members and clubs. 
2014-15 represented the first full financial year for 
CycleSport WA, post Cycling Western Australia. Under 
the leadership of the board of CycleSport WA and Clint 
Shaw – our CEO until February - the organisation is 
now in a financially positive position, which will allow an 
increase in services to Cycling Australia members and the 
clubs throughout Western Australia. The structure of the 
organisation allows the board to provide strategic direction, 
with WestCycle delivering the services of the organisation. 
Through this streamlined and efficient approach, a significant 
contribution by the Department of Sport and Recreation, and 
the hard work and dedication of Toby Hodgson, operations 
manager, CycleSport WA is now on the cusp of a new and 
exciting phase for cycling in Western Australia. 

We have seen a return to profit, largely by taking the 
organisation back to basics. Whilst this was a deliberate  
and required exercise, it is one that has impacted on the 
services we provide. We would like to take this opportunity  
to thank our clubs and members for the patience shown  
over this period as it now allows us to build for the future.   
In 2015-16 CycleSport WA will develop a new strategic  
plan for the organisation and will seek opportunities to 
reinvest to provide benefits to our members and clubs. 

Cycling has continued it’s positive growth in Western 
Australia over the last 12 months. Membership has grown 
by 5% over this period, and the number of events run has 
increased. We also note an increasing trend of members 
participating at club events. 

The success of our high performance program is driven by 
the dedication of Western Australia Institute of Sport (WAIS) 
and we thank Clay Worthington, Andrew Jackson and the 
entire team at WAIS. Their passion for the sport and the 
success of athletes is incredible. We have seen significant 
achievements from our athletes over the last 12 months at 
all levels, and we congratulate them all for their hard work 
and determination. 

Cycling is a sport that requires the services of numerous 
volunteers, without them the sport would not exist. From 
the mums and dads, the corner marshals, coaches and 
the commissaires, to the board of CycleSport WA, who all 
volunteer their time – your commitment to the success of 
cycling is what makes it possible. We thank you for the hours 
of service you provide. 

On a personal note I would like to thank Clint Shaw, 
departing CEO of WestCycle, for the energy that he put into 
the revival of CycleSport WA. He guided the organisation 
through some challenging times and without his expertise 
and passion we would not be in the position that we are 
today. I thoroughly look forward to picking up where Clint 
left off and I’m excited by the potential we have in Western 
Australia.

MATT FULTON 
Chief Executive Officer

CYCLING WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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MEMBERSHIP

STATE BREAKDOWN

GENDER RATIO

* INCLUDES PARAS, NON-RIDING, 3 MONTH, AUSTCYCLE COACHES AND LIFE MEMBERS       ** ADDITIONAL 3 MONTH MEMBERSHIPS

RACING 

RIDE 

COACHES/OFFICIALS

TOTAL

14%

25%

28%

20%

86%

75%

72%

80%

MEMBER TYPE	 ACT	 NSW	 NT	 QLD	 SA	 TAS	 VIC	 WA	 Affiliates	 Total

ELITE	 194	 615	 7	 496	 184	 54	 743	 187	 49	 2529

U23	 40	 175	 2	 105	 66	 26	 209	 56	 35	 714

U19	 23	 123	 4	 98	 44	 23	 145	 44	 27	 531

U17	 23	 181	 7	 127	 48	 34	 188	 72	 4	 684

U15	 18	 147	 9	 108	 38	 31	 171	 39	 5	 566

U13	 29	 310	 13	 176	 38	 28	 267	 68	 0	 929

MASTERS	 361	 3829	 44	 1840	 441	 312	 2521	 624	 76	 10,048

RIDE	 223	 2600	 72	 780	 474	 133	 1397	 601	 1311	 7591

OTHER*	 45	 311	 8	 205	 131	 41	 241	 87	 481	 1550

OTHER**	 3	 691	 11	 90	 1	 0	 81	 0	 705	 1582

TOTAL	 959	 8982	 177	 4025	 1465	 682	 5963	 1778	 2693	 26,724
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MEMBERSHIP  
TRENDS

ELITE U23 U19

U13

MASTERS

TOTAL

RIDE OTHER

U15U17

Please see membership trends below. Numbers are shown for the past three years in comparison with 2015.
1 Year (2015 over 2014)   2 Years (2015 over 2013)   3 Years (2105 over 2012)

1 YEAR 2 YEARS 3 YEARS

-9%

1%

-1%

-2%

0% 11% 162%

-9%

9%

-22%

14%

-10%

-10%

0% 18% 138%

-7%

2%

-26%

18%

-11%

-1%

6% 33% 168%

-5%-4%

10% 8% 15%
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

Lloyd Freeburn 	 9 November 2013	 15 October 2014	 0/1

Gerry Ryan OAM	 9 November 2013	 19 May 2015	 4/8

Malcolm Speed AO 	 30 April 2014		  10/10

Anthony Griffin 	 19 September 2014		  9/10

David Ansell 	 19 September 2014		  9/10

Matthew Dever 	 19 September 2014		  9/10

Leeanne Grantham 	 19 September 2014		  10/10

Linda Evans 	 19 September 2014		  9/10

Justin Quill 	 19 September 2014		  6/10

BOARD COMPOSITION 

Cycling Australia's nominations committee was responsible for recruiting the new board in 2014 with the appropriate  
mix of skills to meet the organisation’s strategic goals. Since this time, the committee has initiated the recruitment of  
two additional directors (in October 2015) to complement the existing board.

 
BOARD OPERATION 

Since the new board has been in place, from 15 September 2014, the following ASC mandatory requirements  
have been adopted/progressed:

	 The nominations committee charter has been completed and approved by the board. This includes a skills matrix  
	 that is used to determine opportunities to strengthen the board.

	 An audit and risk committee charter has been completed and approved by the board.

	 The conflict of interests register continues to be updated and enforced, noting all directors are independent.

	 Ten directors meetings were held in the financial year ending 30 June 2015. An annual board performance 
	 process is being evaluated for introduction during the year ending 30 June 2016.

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 

Cycling Australia converted to the new structure on 30 July 2014.

Cycling Australia is committed to implementing the Australian Sports Commission (ASC) 
mandatory governance principles.

APPOINTED RESIGNED BOARD MEETINGS 
JULY 2014 - JUNE 2015
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TRANSPARENCY, REPORTING AND INTEGRITY  

Cycling Australia works closely with the ASC to provide information in a timely manner. During 2015, Cycling Australia developed 
a new strategic direction. In 2016 this will be developed further to include measurable objectives, KPIs and a detailed three-year 
forward financial model.

Cycling Australia has detailed policies and protocols with regard to anti-doping, sports science and match fixing - the details of 
which are available on the Cycling Australia website. The board approves all policy updates and is apprised of any issues that 
arise. During the 2016 year the board will consider the policy review framework and any additional board oversight requirements.

Additional disclosure in relation to remuneration for key management positions is detailed below.

 
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 

During the year, five key management personnel were compensated as follows: 

GENDER BALANCE ON BOARD - TARGET 40%

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT WITH STATE MEMBER ORGANISATIONS

Cycling Australia's constitution requires alignment between the strategic plans of Cycling Australia and the member state 
organisations. Cycling Australia's strategic vision was formulated during 2015. In 2016 Cycling Australia will present the strategic 
vision and work through the alignment of this with each of the member states. 

The recruitment of two additional directors in October 2015 will see the percentage of women on our board  increase to 33%.

29% 33%Our overall gender balance  
as per the table on the left 

The current percentage  
of women on our Board 

REMUNERATION BAND				    NUMBER OF STAFF IN BAND FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

$1 - $99,000	 0

$100,000 - $199,000	 4

$200,000 - $299,000	 1

Total 	 5

KMP TOTAL EXPENSE SUMMARY			   $ YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Total remuneration due or receivable to key 					    $748,690 
management personnel inclusive of  
bonus/incentive payments		

41



ANTI-DOPING

ASADA TESTING STATISTICS 2014-15

The focus of Cycling Australia’s (CA's) anti-doping  
team this year has been on the implementation 
of the recommendations from the Wood Review. 
Many of Justice Wood’s recommendations 
concentrate on governance and education 
processes, which are continuously reviewed 
and updated.  
CA staff and athletes continue to complete the no doping 
declaration; and the ethics and integrity panel is currently 
reviewing and updating the declaration. CA staff, athletes, 
as well as non-members, continue to take the ASADA online 
eLearning Level 1 and 2 courses; and comply with reading the 
online updates ASADA publishes throughout the year.

The CA supplements committee continues to work closely 
with the high performance unit, ensuring a consistent 
message is sent to athletes in relation to supplements.  
The supplements policy can be found in the anti-doping 
section of our website.

Mountain Bike Australia (MTBA) has also welcomed CA’s 
support around anti-doping including processes, education 
and documentation. MTBA is working with the anti-doping 
manager to develop and implement these processes and 
education strategies.

Overall, the Wood Review provided us with solid guidelines 
to work to, and we are committed to implementing and 
maintaining those recommendations now and in the years  
to come.

ASADA E-LEARNING STATISTICS

621 265216 11

IN COMPETITION - TOTAL 167

URINE  
COLLECTIONS

BLOOD  
COLLECTIONS

97 70 116
URINE  
COLLECTIONS

Completions of the Level 1 
and / or Level 2 course 

Increase of people who 
went on to complete the 
Level 2 course

Increase from the  
previous year

Amount of support 
personnel who completed  
the Level 1 and/or Level 
2 course
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Cycling Australia’s zero tolerance towards doping and commitment to educating our members 
continues to be a high priority. Our strategies include ongoing anti-doping education, positive  
role models and frequent testing at CA's sanctioned events.

OUT OF COMPETITION - TOTAL 250

134
URINE  
COLLECTIONS

BLOOD  
COLLECTIONS

43

TESTING

We have continued to cooperate and consult with the 
Australian Sports Anti-Doping Authority (ASADA), World  
Anti-Doping Authority (WADA), Cycling Anti-Doping Foundation 
(CADF), and the UCI in the fight against doping in cycling.  
The table below represents the high level of testing from 
ASADA - in and out of competition - during 2014-15.

EDUCATION

CA is committed to the continuing education of its members 
in anti-doping. ASADA re-developed the Level 1 online course 
to make it more modern, user-friendly, and code compliant. 
There was a minor decrease in the numbers completing 
Level 1 and/or Level 2. This decrease is due to the number of 
members who have already completed the Level 1 course in 
the previous financial year. Further, there was a 60% increase 
in support personnel who completed Level 1 and /or Level 2.

SONYA SIMPSON
Anti-Doping Manager
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Cycling Australia 
Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015 and auditor's report thereon.

DIRECTOR NAMES

Lloyd Freeburn 	 (Appointed 9 November 2013, Resigned 15 October 2014)

Gerry Ryan OAM 	 (Appointed 9 November 2013, Resigned 19 May 2015)

Malcolm Speed AO 	 (Appointed 30 April 2014)

Anthony Griffin 	 (Appointed 19 September 2014)

David Ansell 	 (Appointed 19 September 2014)

Matthew Dever 	 (Appointed 19 September 2014)

Leeanne Grantham 	 (Appointed 19 September 2014)

Linda Evans 	 (Appointed 19 September 2014)

Justin Quill 	 (Appointed 19 September 2014)

Kevin Russell 	 (Appointed 13 October 2015)

Anne Gripper 	 (Appointed 13 October 2015)

The directors have been in office since the start of the year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

RESULTS

The surplus of the company for the year amounted to $184,524.
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SHORT‑TERM AND LONG‑TERM OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

The company's short‑term objectives:

The growth of cycling is a shared responsibility of many stakeholders. In the short term Cycling Australia will aim to unify 
the important industry and sport partners, collaborate with Member States and Clubs, protect, promote and uphold the 
values of cycling, while looking to strengthen cycling’s voice on important advocacy matters.

The company's long‑term objectives:

Cycling Australia's strategic platforms will continue to secure our global competiveness, diversify our revenue streams 
and build a solid base for future investment. It will focus on growing our membership base and accessing the recreational 
rider. A sharp focus on women and youth will drive our engagement and participation focus. New media presents us with 
an opportunity to grow Cycling Australia’s brand and visibility and to make riding a bike everyone’s business. 

To achieve its short‑term and long‑term objectives, the company has adopted the following strategies:

	 Drive our global competitiveness, enabling consistent and sustained success

	 Connect and engage with all cyclists, and grow programs that focus on engagement with women and juniors

	 Build cycling’s visibility, year long, and our brand

	 Strengthen cycling’s voice, while leading important national advocacy matters

	 Grow and diversify our revenue base, improving our financial shape and fuelling investment

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

To carry out the company's strategies and to achieve its short‑term and long‑term objectives, the company's principal 
activity was the promotion and administration of the sport of cycling in Australia.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

To help evaluate whether the activities the company established during the year have achieved its short‑term and 
long‑term objectives, the company uses the following key performance indicators to measure, analyse and monitor  
its performance:

	 Direct engagement with the public in relation to Cycling Australia activities

	 Membership numbers

	 Net Profit and Loss

	 Athlete performance at international events

18 Riders celebrate after a stage in the Subaru National Road Series 47



CYCLING AUSTRALIA ANNUAL REPORT 201548

DIRECTORS' REPORT

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

Lloyd Freeburn 	 Director

Gerry Ryan OAM 	 Director

Malcolm Speed AO 	 Director and Chairman

Qualifications 	 Barrister

Experience 	 Malcolm Speed has had a long and varied career as a lawyer, chief executive, sports 
	 administrator, company director and lecturer.

Anthony Griffin 	 Director

Qualifications 	 The Institute of Banking and Finance (Singapore), CMFAS License, Futures and Options and 
	 Foreign Exchange (Modules 2 & 7), Australian Securities and Investments Commission, 
	 Registered Representative (PS146), Futures and Options, Foreign Exchange and Securities.

Experience 	 Over 27 years in the global financial markets covering sales and execution, clearing solutions, 
	 platform innovations and Prime Services culminating in his appointment as Chief Executive 
	 Officer of Saxo Capital Markets (Australia) Pty Ltd ‑ one of the world’s most successful 
	 financial trading platform companies.

David Ansell 	 Director

Qualifications 	 BA in Communications, GAICD

Experience	 David Ansell has been a highly successful business builder in a career that spans thirty years, 
	 in Australia and around the world.  His track record includes senior Sales and Marketing 
	 positions in the Beverage industry, a pivotal role in the early years of FOXTEL and as 
	 Australian CEO of one of the great Advertising Agencies, Saatchi & Saatchi. For ten years, 
	 David led MARS Business Units in Australia and in Nashville, USA. 

	 He is a Board Member of ASX200 listed company Blackmores Ltd and is Managing Director 
	 and Chairman of Jacob Douwe Egberts Australia and NZ.	

Matthew Dever 	 Director

Qualifications 	 Australian Financial Markets Association (AFMA), Financial Services Accreditation (RG146), 
	 Financial Markets 2005 ‑2005, Finsia (Financial Services Institute of Australasia), Master's 
	 Degree ‑ Applied Finance and Investment ‑ University of Sydney, Graduate Diploma  
	‑  Exercise Physiology ‑ Deakin University, Graduate Diploma ‑ Exercise and Sports  
	 Science ‑ La Trobe University, Bachelor's Degree ‑ Commerce	

Experience 	 Over 20 years corporate advisory experience within Australia, Europe, Asia and South East 
	 Asia. Direct experience covering mergers & acquisitions (M&A), capital raising, divestments, 
	 restructuring and strategic advisory. Financial services experience across debt capital 
	 markets, hybrid securities, mezzanine finance, project finance, infrastructure financing, 
	 renewable energy financing, access to finance and power sector reform.



Leeanne Grantham 	 Director

Qualifications 	 Melbourne School of Management (courses and lectured), Aust Institute of Company 
	 Directors (Vic & SA)

Experience 	 An accomplished senior executive with over two decades of experience and knowledge 
	 particularly in the Sport and Major Events Industries, with extensive skills in all areas 
	 of Business including: Strategic Planning, Financial Management, Marketing, Public 
	 Relations, Governance, Leadership Development and Communication.  State Winner  
	 of the Telstra Business Woman of the Year and National Category Winner.	

Linda Evans 	 Director

Qualifications 	 B. Juris, LLB, GAICD

Experience 	 Ms Evans is a partner of national law firm Clayton Utz with over 25 years' experience in 
	 corporate law with a particular focus on competition and regulatory law. She has held a  
	 range of leadership positions at Clayton Utz including as a board member and chair  
	 of Clayton Utz. Ms Evans is a councillor with the National Competition Council and  
	 a non‑executive director of Watpac Limited. 	

Justin Quill 	 Director

Qualifications 	 Solicitor

Experience 	 Over 18 years experience in the legal profession with notable experience throughout  
	 Australia in the field of media law providing Justin with a detailed understanding of the 
	 operation of the media in Australia.

Kevin Russell 	 Director

Qualifications 	 Chartered Accountant

Experience 	 Kevin Russell boasts more than 20 years of experience in financial and operational leadership 
	 positions at global telecommunications corporations including serving as the Chief Executive 
	 Officer at SingTel Optus, at Hutchison Three UK, and senior positions within Asia and the 
	 Middle East. Kevin has a strong financial background and wide experience in media  
	 and new media.	

Anne Gripper 	 Director

Qualifications 	 Master of Sport Administration (MSA), Graduate Diploma in Human Resources, Bachelor  
	 of Arts (Honours, Psychology)

Experience 	 Anne Gripper’s extensive experience within the Australian and international sporting  
	 industry spans 20 years and includes CEO at Triathlon Australia, General Manager  
	 Operations at the Australian Sports Drug Agency (ASDA) and Director of the Anti‑Doping 
	 Foundation at the International Cycling Union (UCI).
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

MEETING OF DIRECTORS

Number of meetings of the board of directors held during the year and director's attendance at the meetings:

MEMBERS GUARANTEE

The company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. If the company is 
wound up, the Constitution states that each member is required to contribute to a maximum of $1 each towards meeting any 
outstanding's and obligations of the group. At 30 June 2015 the number of members was 7. The combined total amount that 
members of the company are liable to contribute if the company is wound up is $7.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit for 
the financial year is provided with this report.

Signed on behalf of the board of directors.

 
Director: Malcolm Speed AO

	

Dated this               6 Day of November	 2015

Lloyd Freeburn 	 1	  -	  -	  -

Gerry Ryan OAM	  8 	 4	  -	  -

Malcolm Speed AO 	 10 	 10 	 - 	 -

Anthony Griffin 	 10 	 9 	 5 	 4

David Ansell 	 10 	 9 	 - 	 -

Matthew Dever 	 10 	 9 	 5	 5

Leeanne Grantham 	 10 	 10 	 - 	 -

Linda Evans 	 10 	 9 	 - 	 -

Justin Quill 	 10 	 6 	 - 	 -

Kevin Russell	  - 	 -	 - 	 -

Anne Gripper 	  - 	 -	 - 	 -

DIRECTORS DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

Number  
eligible to 
attend

Number  
eligible to 
attend

Number
attended

Number
attended

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Director: Mathew Dever



AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
TO THE DIRECTORS OF CYCLING AUSTRALIA LIMITED
In relation to the independent audit for the year ended 30 June 2015, to the best of my knowledge and
belief there have been:

	 (i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001; and

	 (ii) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct.

Mark Godlewski		  Partner

 
PITCHER PARTNERS	 SYDNEY

 
Date: 6 November 2015
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS  
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 2015 2014

$ $

Revenue 4 19,358,254 18,406,904

Less: expenses

Bad and doubtful debts 5 (24,985) (1,225,645)

Contractors and consultants (220,509) (491,146)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 (188,615) (246,412)

Employee benefits expense (6,505,368) (6,292,210)

Event and partnership costs (2,834,086) (2,402,088)

Finance costs 5 (100,347) (22,074)

High performance program (5,985,893) (6,385,913)

Impairment losses 5 45,000 (187,200)

Information technology services (178,253) (165,583)

Insurance (1,238,830) (1,067,269)

Marketing and communications (366,622) (273,704)

Membership (283,951) (233,134)

Occupancy expense (340,017) (378,455)

Office and general administration (266,871) (339,415)

Sport competition (385,353) (214,054)

Sport development (206,059) (261,878)

Other expenses (92,971) (72,666)

(19,173,730) (20,258,846)

Surplus / (Deficit) 184,524 (1,851,942)

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income 184,524 (1,851,942)



STATEMENT OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

	 NOTE	 2015		  2014

		  $		  $

Current assets				  

Cash and cash equivalents	 6	 1,503,842		  923,098	

Receivables	 7	 511,217		  1,035,641	

Inventories	 8	 34,040		  13,067

Other financial assets	 9	 61,500		  31,500	

Other assets	 12	 990,409		  307,255	

Total current assets		  3,101,008		  2,310,561	

Non‑current assets	

Receivables	 7	 20,000		  15,000	

Intangible assets	 11	 232,467		  313,457	

Property, plant and equipment	 10	 1,107,442		  196,358	

Other assets	 12	 150,421		  82,000	

Total non‑current assets		  1,510,330		  606,815	

Total assets		  4,611,338		  2,917,376	

Current liabilities	

Payables	 13	 1,171,845		  2,847,040	

Borrowings	 14	 50,000		  352,993	

Provisions	 15	 830,334		  618,166	

Other liabilities	 16	 2,102,170		  798,446	

Total current liabilities		  4,154,349		  4,616,645	

Non‑current liabilities	

Borrowings	 14	 2,045,893		  75,000	

Provisions	 15	 18,360		  17,519	

Total non‑current liabilities		  2,064,253		  92,519	

Total liabilities		  6,218,602		  4,709,164

Net assets		  (1,607,264)		  (1,791,788)	

Equity	

Accumulated deficit	 17	 (1,607,264)		  (1,791,788)	

Total equity		  (1,607,264)		  (1,791,788)	

53



CYCLING AUSTRALIA ANNUAL REPORT 201554

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

		  ACCUMULATED 		  TOTAL 
		  DEFICIT		  EQUITY	
	

		  $		  $

Balance as at 1 July 2013 		  60,154 		  60,154

Deficit for the year 		  (1,851,942)		   (1,851,942)

Total comprehensive income for the year 		  (1,851,942)		   (1,851,942)

Balance as at 1 July 2014 		  (1,791,788) 		  (1,791,788)

Surplus for the year 		  184,524 		  184,524

Total comprehensive income for the year 		  184,524 		  184,524

Balance as at 30 June 2015 		  (1,607,264) 		  (1,607,264)	



	 NOTE	 2015		  2014

		  $		  $

Cash flow from operating activities	

Receipts from customers, including operating grants		  23,172,889		  19,814,475	

Payments to suppliers and employees		  (23,093,592)		  (19,862,640)	

Interest received		  36,249		  42,499	
Finance costs		  (100,347)		  (22,074)	

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities	 18(b) 	 15,199		  (27,740)	

Cash flow from investing activities	
Proceeds from investments		  -		  500	
Payment for property, plant and equipment		  (986,005)		  (156,925)

Payment for intangible assets		  (111,350)		  (411,999)	

Payments for investments		  (30,000)		  -	

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities		  (1,127,355)		  (568,424)	

Cash flow from financing activities	

Proceeds from borrowings		  2,020,893		  -	

Net cash provided by financing activities		  2,020,893		  -	

Reconciliation of cash	

Cash at beginning of the financial year		  595,105		  1,191,269	
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held		  908,737		  (596,164)	

Cash at end of financial year	 18(a) 	 1,503,842		  595,105

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This financial report is a special purpose financial report 
prepared in order to satisfy the financial report preparation 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. The directors 
have determined that the company is not a reporting entity.

The financial report was approved by the directors as at the 
date of the directors' report.

The financial report is for the entity Cycling Australia 
Limited as an individual entity. Cycling Australia Limited is a 
company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in 
Australia. Cycling Australia Limited is a not‑for‑profit entity 
for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the 
following applicable Accounting Standards:

AASB 101:	 Presentation of Financial Statements	

AASB 107:	 Cash Flow Statements	  

AASB 108:	 Accounting Policies, Changes in  
		  Accounting Estimates and Errors	  

AASB 1031:	 Materiality	  

AASB 1048:	 Interpretation and Application of Standards	

AASB 1054:	 Australian Additional Disclosures

The following specific accounting policies, which are 
consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, 
have been adopted in the preparation of this report:

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report

HISTORICAL COST CONVENTION

The financial report has been prepared under the historical 
cost convention, as modified by revaluations to fair value 
for certain classes of assets as described in the accounting 
policies.

(b) Going concern

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern 
basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal business 
activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of 
liabilities in the normal course of business. The company 
derived a surplus of $184,524 for the year ended 30 June 
2015. As at 30 June 2015 the company had cash assets 
of $1,503,842, current assets of $3,101,008 and current 
liabilities of $4,154,349 and a deficiency of net assets of 
$1,607,264. The financial report has been prepared on a 
going concern basis which the Directors consider to be 
appropriate based upon the forecast for the year ending  
30 June 2016. The forecast is based on secured funding.  

The forecast also relies on the company maintaining a 
reduced cost base. Therefore no adjustments have been 
made in respect of the recoverability and classification of 
recorded assets or the carrying amount and classification 
of liabilities that may be necessary if the company does not 
continue as a going concern.

(c) Revenue

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
passed to the buyer and the costs incurred or to be incurred 
in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Risks 
and rewards of ownership are considered passed to the buyer 
at the time of delivery of the goods to the customer.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon 
the delivery of the service to the customers.

Revenue from organising and hosting events, including 
corporate partnerships is recognised in the period in which 
the events are held.

Sponsorship revenue is recognised on an accruals basis in 
accordance with the sponsorship agreement.

Interest revenue is recognised when it becomes receivable 
on a proportional basis taking in to account the interest rates 
applicable to the financial assets.

Levies are recognised upon the invoice being issued.

Membership, insurance and licensing fees, service fees, 
donations, and other revenue are recognised when payment 
is received. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services 
tax (GST).

(d) Contributions ‑ Government Grants and Donations

When the entity receives grants but is obliged to give directly 
approximately equal value to the contributor, recognition of 
grant income will be deferred until the delivery of service.

(e) Income tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the company 
is exempt from income tax.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at 
banks, short‑term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less held at call with financial institutions, 
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within 
borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial 
position.

(g) Inventories

Inventories held for sale are measured at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value.



(h) Financial instruments

CLASSIFICATION

The company classifies its financial assets into the following 
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit and 
loss, loans and receivables, held‑to‑maturity investments, 
and available‑for‑sale financial assets. The classification 
depends on the purpose for which the instruments were 
acquired. Management determines the classification of its 
financial instruments at initial recognition.

HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Fixed term investments intended to be held to maturity 
are classified as held‑to‑maturity investments. They are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables are measured at fair value at 
inception and subsequently at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities include trade payables, other creditors 
and loans from third parties including inter‑entity balances 
and loans from or other amounts due to related entities.

Non‑derivative financial liabilities are recognised at 
amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal 
payments and amortisation.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless 
the entity has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair 
value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis.

DEPRECIATION

The depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment 
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives commencing 
from the time the asset is held ready for use. Land and 
the land component of any class of property, plant and 
equipment is not depreciated.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter 
of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated 
useful lives of the improvements.

Class of fixed asset	 Depreciation rates	 Depreciation	
Leasehold 	 10%	 Straight line 
improvements 
at cost 

Plant, equipment 	 10-33%	 Straight line 
at cost 

(j) Intangibles

EVENT RIGHTS

Event rights are initially recognised at cost and then 
amortised on a straight line basis over their useful life. 
The balances are reviewed annually and any balance 
representing future benefits the realisation of which is 
considered to be no longer probable are written off.  
Event rights are amortised over their estimated useful  
life of 4 years.

WEBSITE COSTS

Website costs are recognised at cost. They are amortised 
over their estimated useful lives of 4 years. Website costs 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
impairment losses.

(k) Impairment of non financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not 
subject to amortisation and are therefore tested annually 
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised where the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount of an asset is defined as the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the 
expected net cash flows which will be received from the 
assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected 
net cash flows have been discounted to present values in 
determining recoverable amounts.

(l) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or 
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which 
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result 
and that outflow can be reliably measured.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Leases

Leases are classified at their inception as either operating 
or finance leases based on the economic substance of the 
agreement so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental  
to ownership.

OPERATING LEASES

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all 
the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are recognised 
as an expense on a straight‑line basis over the term of the 
lease.

Lease incentives received under operating leases are 
recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight‑line 
basis over the life of the lease term.

(n) Employee benefits

	 (i) Short term employee benefit obligations

	 Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual 
	 leave and any other employee benefits expected to 
	 be settled within twelve months of the reporting date are 
	 measured at their nominal amounts based on 
	 remuneration rates which are expected to be paid when 
	 the liability is settled. The expected cost of short‑term 
	 employee benefits in the form of compensated absences 
	 such as annual leave is recognised in the provision for 
	 employee benefits. All other short‑term employee benefit 
	 obligations are presented as payables.

	 (ii) Long term employee benefit obligations

	 Liabilities arising in respect of long service leave and 
	 annual leave which is not expected to be settled within 
	 twelve months of the reporting date are measured at 
	 the present value of the estimated future cash outflow to 
	 be made in respect of services provided by employees up 
	 to the reporting date.

Employee benefit obligations are presented as current 
liabilities if the entity does not have an unconditional right 
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is 
expected to occur.

(o) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and purchased assets are recognised 
net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Tax Office. In these 
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. 
Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position 
are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows  
on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing  
and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating  
cash flows.

(p) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information has been 
reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current 
year disclosures.

(q) Adoption of new and amended accounting standards  
that are first operative

There are no new and amended accounting standards 
effective for the financial year beginning 1 July 2014 which 
affect materially any amounts recorded or disclosed in the 
current or prior year.
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NOTE 2: ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT  
OPERATIVE AT 30 JUNE 2015

The following standards and interpretations have been 
issued at the reporting date but are not yet effective. The 
directors’ assessment of the impact of these standards 
and interpretations is set out below; AASB 9: Financial 
Instruments and associated Amending Standards (applicable 
to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018). AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or 
after 1 January 2018).

AASB 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Standard will be applicable retrospectively and 
includes revised requirements for the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments, revised recognition 
and derecognition requirements for financial instruments 
and simplified requirements for hedge accounting.

The key changes that may affect the company on initial 
application include certain simplifications to the classification 
of financial assets and upfront accounting for expected credit 
loss. Although the directors anticipate that the adoption 
of AASB 9 may have an impact on the company’s financial 
instruments it is impracticable at this stage to provide a 
reasonable estimate of such impact.

AASB 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

AASB 15 introduces a five step process for revenue 
recognition with the core principle being for entities to 
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services 
to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that 
is, payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. The five step approach 
is as follows:

Step 1: 	 Identify the contracts with the customer;

Step 2: 	 Identify the separate performance obligations;

Step 3: 	 Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: 	 Allocate the transaction price; and

Step 5: 	 Recognise revenue when a performance  
	 obligation is satisfied.

AASB 15 will also result in enhanced disclosures about 
revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were not 
previously addressed comprehensively (for example, service 
revenue and contract modifications) and improve guidance 
for multiple‑element arrangements.

The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASB 
15 may cause changes to the timing and amount of revenue 
recorded in the financial statements as well as additional 
disclosures. The impact of AASB 15 has not yet been 
quantified.

NOTE 3: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the company's accounting policies, 
management is required to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to 
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods.
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NOTE 4: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

 
		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

Operating revenue	

Membership		  2,141,405		  1,990,486	

Insurance and Licensing fees		  679,352		  568,406	

Service fees		  167,307		  204,000	

Australian Sports Commission grants ‑ general		  -		  501,743	

Australian Sports Commission grant ‑ participation		  589,806		  330,194	

Road and track calendar fees		  39,874		  52,078	

National junior track series		  101,124		  67,086	

Events		  3,077,053		  2,486,989	

Corporate partnerships		  876,574		  496,953	

Bank Interest		  31,783		  30,107	

Miscellaneous		  571,222		  338,570	

		  8,275,500		  7,066,612	

High performance programs			 

Carry forward		  -		  1,074,000	

Australian Sports Commission ‑ High Performance Program Grant		  7,151,500		  6,172,449	

Australian Sports Commission ‑ BMX Program Grant		  458,500		  458,500

Competitive innovation fund		  164,493 		  118,452

Australian Institute of Sport Programs		  724,279		  771,241	

Australian Commonwealth Games Association Grant		  265,798		  382,000	

Australian Paralympic Committee Grant		  852,859		  1,120,000	

Sponsorship		  1,153,401		  1,005,000	

High performance Program Levies		  307,458		  226,258	

Bank interest		  4,466		  12,392	

		  11,082,754		  11,340,292	

Total revenue		  19,358,254		  18,406,904	

	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 5: OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

 

NOTE 6: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 

		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

Deficit has been determined after:			 

Finance costs			 

‑ insurance premium funding		  19,032		  22,074	

 ‑ borrowing costs		  81,315		  -	

		  100,347		  22,074	

Depreciation	

‑ plant and equipment		  20,759		  113,071	

‑ office furniture and equipment		  62,244		  84,690	

		  83,003		  197,761	

Amortisation of non‑current assets	

‑ leasehold improvements		  8,272		  -	
‑ website		  27,140		  13,552	
‑ event rights		  70,200		  35,100	

		  105,612		  48,652	

Bad debts	

‑ trade debtors		  16,314		  123,045	

‑ other related entities		  8,671		  1,102,600	

		  24,985		  1,225,645	

Impairment losses	

‑ Impairment of event rights		  -		  187,200	
‑ Reversal of impairment of loan receivables		  (45,000)		  -	

		  (45,000)		  187,200

	

Cash on hand		  415		  415	

Cash at bank		  1,503,427		  922,683	

		  1,503,842		  923,098	
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NOTE 7: RECEIVABLES

 
		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

CURRENT			 

Trade debtors		  520,560		  1,055,641	

Impairment loss		  (9,343)		  (20,000)	

		  511,217		  1,035,641	

		  511,217		  1,035,641	

NON CURRENT			 

Amounts receivable from:			 

Other related entities		  20,000		  60,000		
Impairment loss		  -		  (45,000)	

		  20,000		  15,000	

NOTE 8: INVENTORIES

CURRENT				  

At cost				  

Finished goods		  34,040		  13,067

		  34,040		  13,067	

NOTE 9: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

CURRENT			 

Held to maturity financial assets			 
Term deposits		  61,500		  31,500

		  61,500		  31,500

NOTE 10: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold improvements	

Velodrome refit at cost		  992,588		  -	

Accumulated amortisation		  (8,272)		  -	

		  984,316		  -	
Work in progress ‑ velodrome refit at cost		  -		  57,861	

Total leasehold improvements		  984,316		  57,861

Plant and equipment				     

Plant and equipment at cost	 	 858,312		  1,115,981

Accumulated depreciation		  (735,186)		  (977,484)	

		  123,126		  138,497	

Total property, plant and equipment		  1,107,442		  196,358	

	

	

62 CYCLING AUSTRALIA ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTE 11: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 
		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

Website at cost		  97,658		  81,308	

Accumulated amortisation and impairment		  (40,691)		  (13,551)	

		  56,967		  67,757	

Event rights at cost		  468,000		  468,000	

Accumulated amortisation and impairment		  (292,500)		  (222,300)	

		  175,500		  245,700	

Total intangible assets		  232,467		  313,457	

NOTE 12: OTHER ASSETS

CURRENT			 

Prepayments		  895,178		  307,255	
Accrued income		  13,231		  -	
Term deposit guarantee		  82,000		  -	

		  990,409		  307,255	

NON CURRENT			 

Term deposit guarantee		  -		  82,000	
Prepayments		  150,421		  -	

		  150,421		  82,000	

 
A term deposit of $82,000 is held as a bank guarantee in relation to the office lease agreement for Suite A, Level 2,  
280 Coward Street, Mascot.

NOTE 13: PAYABLES

CURRENT			 

Unsecured liabilities			 

Trade creditors		  612,610		  1,792,019	

Amounts payable to:			 

- other related entities		  -		  81,167	

GST credits		  307,201 		  340,348	

PAYG withholding payable		  81,457 		  445,269	

Superannuation payable		  40,516 		  100,345	

Accrued expenses		  101,652 		  87,892

Other current liabilities		  28,409 		  -

		  1,171,845		  2,847,040	
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NOTE 14: BORROWINGS

 		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

CURRENT			 

Unsecured liabilities			 

Amounts payable to:

- director related parties		  50,000		  25,000	

		  50,000		  25,000	

Secured liabilities

Bank overdraft		  -		  327,993	

		  50,000		  352,993	

NON CURRENT			 

Unsecured liabilities			 

Loans from associates		  2,020,893		  -

 
Amounts payable to:

- director related parties		  25,000		  75,000	

		  2,045,893		  75,000

	
NOTE 15: PROVISIONS

CURRENT				  

Employee benefits	 (a)	 830,334		  618,166	

		  830,334		  618,166

NON CURRENT				  

Employee benefits	 (a)	 18,360		  17,519	

		  18,360		  17,519	

(a) Aggregate employee benefits liability		  848,693		  635,685	

NOTE 16: OTHER LIABILITIES

CURRENT			 

Unexpended grants		  1,096,560		  359,806	

Aggregate deductible		  -		  88,000	

Accrued income		  1,005,610		  350,640	

		  2,102,170		  798,446	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 17: ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

Accumulated (deficit) / surplus at beginning of year		  (1,791,788)		  60,154	

Net surplus / (deficit)		  184,524		  (1,851,942)	

		  (1,607,264)		  (1,791,788)	

NOTE 18: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Reconciliation of cash		

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related  
items in the statement of financial position is as follows:					   

- Cash on hand		  415		  415	

- Cash at bank		  1,503,427		  922,683	

- Bank overdrafts		  -		  (327,993)	

		  1,503,842		  595,105	

(b) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with surplus / (deficit) after income tax		

- Surplus / (deficit) from ordinary activities after income tax		  184,524		  (1,851,945)	
	

Adjustments and non‑cash items	

Amortisation		  105,612		  48,652	

Depreciation		  83,003		  197,761	

Charges to provision for impairment		  -		  187,200	

Net (gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment		  (16,354)		  -	

Changes in assets and liabilities	

(Increase) / decrease in receivables		  519,424		  81,821	

(Increase) / decrease in other assets		  (751,575)		  (205,833)	

(Increase) / decrease in inventories		  (20,973)		  (325)	

Increase / (decrease) in payables		  (1,605,195)		  2,406,473	

Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities		  1,303,724		  (984,301)	

Increase / (decrease) in provisions		  213,009		  92,757	

Cash flows from operating activities		  15,199		  (27,740)	
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 19: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

(a) Operating lease commitments		

Non cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in  
the financial statements:			 

Payable		

- not later than one year		  138,437		  142,547	

- later than one year and not later than five years		  427,781		  568,932	

		  566,218		  711,479	
 
Operating leases are for rental of an office and a camera with lease periods ranging from 1 to 10 years. 

The property lease for the Mascot office is a non‑cancellable lease which commenced on 1 June 2009, with a  
ten‑year term, with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement  
require that the minimum lease payments shall be increased by 3% per annum. The company is currently in negotiation 
with the Mascot landlord to settle the lease as the office building is soon to be demolished. As at the date of this report 
those negotiations had not been finalised.

Rental for the camera are reviewed each year in accordance with the relevant lease arrangements. Balances exclude GST.	
			    
(b) Capital expenditure commitments contracted for:		

- infrastructure project		  -		  915,956	

Payable			 

- not later than one year		  -		  915,956	

		  -		  915,956	

The Company has a commitment in accordance with the funding agreement with the Australian Sports Commission,  
dated 29 July 2011 and variation agreement dated 29 June 2012, to expend $1,000,000 in the construction of AIS/CA  
High Performance Cycling Office Accommodation at the Adelaide Super‑Drome. As at 30 June 2015 all costs had been 
incurred in relation to the project, and construction had been completed.

NOTE 20: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

There has been no matter or circumstance, which has arisen since 30 June 2015 that has significantly 
affected or may significantly affect:

	 (a) the operations, in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2015, of the company, or
	 (b) the results of those operations, or
	 (c) the state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2015, of the company.

NOTE 21: COMPANY DETAILS

The principal place of business of the company is:

Level 2, 280 Coward St
MASCOT  NSW  2020
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

The directors have determined that the company is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report  
should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements.

The directors of the company declare that:

1. 	 The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 56 - 66, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001: and

	 (a)	 comply with accounting standards in Australia as detailed in Note 1 to the financial statements and 
		  the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

	 (b) 	 give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2015 and performance for the year ended 
		  on that date of the company in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the 
		  financial statements.

2. 	 In the directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as  
	 and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director: Malcolm Speed AO	

Director: Mathew Dever

	

Dated this              6 Day of November	 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AUSTRALIAN CYCLING  
LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being 
a special purpose financial report of Cycling Australia 
Limited, which comprises the statement of financial position 
as at 30 June 2015, the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and the directors' 
declaration.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 
FINANCIAL REPORT

The directors of the company are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view and have determined that the basis of preparation 
described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to 
meet the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and to 
meet the needs of the members.

The directors’ responsibility also includes such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial report is free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
company's preparation of the financial report that gives 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the company's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial report of Cycling Australia 
Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including:

	 (a)	 giving a true and fair view of the company' 
		  financial position as at 30 June 2015 and of its 
		  performance for the year ended on that date; and

	 (b)	 complying with Australian accounting standards 
		  to the extent described in Note 1 and the 
		  Corporations Regulations 2001.
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1  
to the financial report, which describes the basis of 
accounting. The financial report has been prepared for 
the purpose of fulfilling the directors’ financial reporting 
responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001. As a result, 
the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

In forming our opinion, which is not qualified, we have 
considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 
1(b) to the financial report concerning the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. As at 30 June 2015 the 
company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by 
$1,053,341. These conditions, along with the other matters 
explained in note 1(b) to the financial report, indicate the 
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast doubt 
about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
The financial statements do not include the adjustments to 
the carrying value of assets and liabilities that would result  
if the company was unable to continue as a going concern.

Mark Godlewski			   PITCHER PARTNERS

Partner			   SYDNEY

Registered Company Auditor No. 172348

Date  6 November 2015
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Anna Meares became the first women to win 11 track world titles after  
clinching keirin gold at the World Championships. 



ROAD WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS					  
RICHMOND, USA  19 - 27 SEPTEMBER 2015

2015
WORLD RESULTS

MEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Vasil Kiryienka	 BLR	 1:02:29.45
2.Adriano Malori	 ITA	 1:02:38.53
3.Jerome Coppel	 FRA	 1:02:56.07
6.Rohan Dennis	 AUS	 1:03:37.41
15.Michael Hepburn	 AUS	 1:04:28.65
20.Luke Durbridge	 AUS	 1:04:47.67

MEN’S U23 TIME TRIAL

1.Mads Wurtz Schmidt	 DEN	 37:10.96
2.Maximilian Schachmann	 GER	 37:23.16
3.Lennard Kamna	 GER	 37:31.98
7.Miles Scotson	 AUS	 37:51.48

JUNIOR MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Leo Appelt	 GER	 37:45.01
2.Adrien Costa	 USA	 38:02.23
3.Brandon McNulty	 USA	 38:44.75
13.Michael Storer	 AUS	 39:49.63
47.Harry Sweeny	 AUS	 42:37.26

MEN’S TEAM TIME TRIAL

1.BMC Racing Team	 USA	 42:07.97
2.Etixx - Quick Step	 BEL	 42:19.32
3.Movistar Team	 ESP	 42:38.08

MEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Peter Sagan	 SVK	 6:14:37
2.Michael Matthews	 AUS
3.Ramunas Navardauskas	 LTU
6.Simon Gerrans	 AUS
44.Heinrich Haussler	 AUS
73.Adam Hansen	 AUS
77.Mathew Hayman	 AUS
DNF Simon Clarke	 AUS
DNF Mitchell Docker	 AUS
DNF Jay McCarthy	 AUS
DNF Luke Durbridge	 AUS

MEN U23 ROAD RACE

1.Kevin Ledanois	 FRA	 3:53:45
2.Simone Consonni	 ITA
3.Anthony Turgis	 FRA
13.Jack Haig	 AUS
56.Nicholas Schultz	 AUS
78.Harry Carpenter	 AUS
DNF Miles Scotson	 AUS
DNF Alistair Donohoe	 AUS

JUNIOR MEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Felix Gall	 AUT	 3:1:09
2.Clement Betouigt-Suire	 FRA
3.Rasmus Pedersen	 DEN
16.Michael Storer	 AUS
54.Samuel Jenner	 AUS
DNF Harry Sweeny	 AUS

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Linda Melanie Villumsen	 NZL	 40:29.87
2.Anna van der Breggen	 NED	 40:32.41
3.Lisa Brennauer	 GER	 40:35.13
4.Katrin Garfoot	 AUS	 40:39.19

JUNIOR WOMEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Chloe Dygert	 USA 	 20:18.47
2.Emma White	 USA 	 21:24.00
3.Anna-Leeza Hull	 AUS 	 21:44.55

WOMEN'S TEAM TIME TRIAL

1.Velocio-SRAM	 GER	 47:35.72
2.Boels Dolmans 	 NED	 47:42.38 
  Cycling Team	
3.Rabo Liv Women 	 NED	 48:31.84 
  Cycling Team	

WOMEN’S ROAD RACE

1.Elizabeth Armitstead	 GBR	    3:23:56
2.Anna Van Der Breggen	 NED
3.Megan Guarnier	 USA
17.Tiffany Cromwell	 AUS
19.Rachel Neylan	 AUS
20.Lizzie Williams	 AUS
28.Lauren Kitchen	 AUS
29.Katrin Garfoot	 AUS
48.Amanda Spratt	 AUS
50.Loren Rowney	 AUS
60.Gracie Elvin	 AUS

JUNIOR WOMEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Chloe Dygert	 USA	  1:42:16
2.Emma White	 USA
3.Agnieszka Skalniak	 POL
9.Jessica Pratt	 AUS
21.Anna-Leeza Hull	 AUS
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TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS				 
SAINT-QUENTIN-EN-YVELINES, FRANCE  18 - 22 FEBRUARY 2015

MEN’S SPRINT

1.Gregory Bauge	 FRA
2.Denis Dmitriev	 RUS
3.Quentin Lafargue	 FRA
5.Matthew Glaetzer	 AUS
12.Peter Lewis 	 AUS
13.Jacob Schmid	 AUS

MEN’S 1KM TIME TRIAL

1.Francois Pervis	 FRA	   1:00.207
2.Joachim Eilers	 GER	   1:00.294
3.Matthew Archibald	 NZL	   1:00.470

MEN'S KEIRIN

1.François Pervis	 FRA
2.Edward Dawkins	 NZL
3.Azizulhasni Awang	 MAS
10.Matthew Glaetzer	 AUS
13.Jacob Schmid	 AUS
17.Shane Perkins	 AUS

MEN’S 4KM INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Stefan Kueng	 SUI	  4:18.915
2.Jack Bobridge	 AUS	  4:19.184
3.Julien Morice	 FRA	  4:21.419 
8.Alexander Edmondson	 AUS	  4:23.272 
9.Miles Scotson	 AUS	  4:23.480

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE

1.Lucas Liss	 GER 
2.Albert Torres Barcelo	 ESP
3.Bobby Lea	 USA
12.Scott Law	 AUS

MEN’S POINTS RACE

1.Artur Ershov	 RUS	        31 pts
2.Eloy Teruel Rovira	 ESP	        30 pts
3.Maximilian Beyer	 GER	        29 pts
7.Scott Law	 AUS	        18 pts

MEN’S OMNIUM

1.Fernando Gaviria Rendon	  COL	     205 pts
2.Glenn O'Shea	  AUS	     190 pts
3.Elia Viviani	  ITA	     181 pts

MEN’S MADISON

1.France		         21 pts
2.Italy		         20 pts
3.Belgium		         15 pts
7.Australia		         8 pts 
  (Glenn O'Shea, Jack Bobridge)

MEN’S TEAM SPRINT

1.France		        43.136
2.New Zealand 		  relegated
3.Germany		        43.339
6.Australia		        43.379 
  (Matthew Glaetzer, Nathan Hart, 	  
  Shane Perkins)

MEN’S TEAMS PURSUIT

1.New Zealand		    3:54.088
2.Great Britain		    3:54.687 
3.Australia  	         caught 4th 
  (Jack Bobridge, Luke Davison, 	  
  Alexander Edmondson, Miles Scotson, 	  
  Mitchell Mulhern)

WOMEN’S SPRINT

1.Kristina Vogel	  GER
2.Elis Lightlee	  NED
3.Tianshi Zhong	  CHN
4.Stephanie Morton	  AUS
9.Anna Meares	  AUS

WOMEN’S 500M TIME TRIAL

1.Anastasia Voynova	 RUS	       33.149
2.Anna Meares	 AUS	       33.425
3.Miriam Welte	 GER	       33.699

WOMEN’S KEIRIN

1.Anna Meares	 AUS
2.Shanne Braspennincx	 NED
3.Lisandra Guerra Rodriguez	 CUB
6.Stephanie Morton	 AUS

WOMEN’S 3KM INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Rebecca Wiasak	 AUS	   3:30.305
2.Jennifer Valente	 USA	   3:33.867
3.Amy Cure	 AUS	   3:32.907

WOMEN’S SCRATCH RACE

1.Kirsten Wild	 NED
2.Amy Cure	 AUS
3.Allison Beveridge	 CAN

WOMEN’S POINTS RACE

1.Stephanie Pohl	 GER	        38 pts
2.Minami Uwano	 JPN	        28 pts
3.Kimberly Geist	 USA	        25 pts

WOMEN’S OMNIUM

1.Annette Edmondson	 AUS	      192 pts
2.Laura Trott	 GBR	      176 pts
3.Kirsten Wild	 NED	      175 pts

WOMEN’S TEAM SPRINT

1.China		        32.034
2.Russia		        32.438
3.Australia		        32.723	
(Kaarle McCulloch, Anna Meares)

WOMEN’S TEAM PURSUIT

1.Australia		   4:13.683  
(Amy Cure, Annette Edmondson,		
Ashlee Ankudinoff, Melissa Hoskins)
2.Great Britain		   4:16.702 
3.Canada		   4:17.864
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BMX WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS					  
ZOLDER, BELGIUM  21 - 25 JULY 2015

2015
WORLD RESULTS

ELITE MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Joris Daudet	 FRA
2.Niek Kimmann	 NED
3.Connor Fields	 USA
4.Sam Willoughby	 AUS
14.Bodi Turner	 AUS
31.Kai Sakakibara	 AUS
37.Anthony Dean	 AUS
44.Joshua Callan	 AUS
60.Alexander Cameron	 AUS
86.Bradley Game	 AUS
DNF Corey Frieswyk	 AUS

JUNIOR MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Shane Rosa	 AUS
2.Brandon Te Hiko	 AUS
3.Collin Hudson	 USA
10.Jayce Cunning	 AUS
12.Matthew White	 AUS
17.Joshua McLean	 AUS
28.Wade Turner	 AUS
34.Lachlan Harvey	 AUS

ELITE MEN

1.Niek Kimmann	 NED
2.Jelle Van Gorkom	 NED
3.David Graf	 SUI
7.Sam Willoughby	 AUS 
8.Anthony Dean	 AUS 
47.Joshua Callan	 AUS 
51.Kai Sakakibara	 AUS 
64.Alexander Cameron	 AUS
75.Bodi Turner	 AUS
84.Corey Frieswyk	 AUS 
89.Bradley Game	 AUS

JUNIOR MEN

1.Exequiel Torres	 ARG
2.Collin Hudson	 USA
3.Romain Racine	 FRA
4.Brandon Te Hiko	 AUS
26.Jayce Cunning	 AUS
42.Lachlan Harvey	 AUS
54.Wade Turner	 AUS
56 Joshua McLean	 AUS
62.Matthew White	 AUS
64.Shane Rosa	 AUS

ELITE WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Mariana Pajon	 COL
2.Alise Post	 USA
3.Sarah Walker	 NZL
9.Caroline Buchanan 	 AUS
18.Lauren Reynolds	 AUS
23.Melinda McLeod	 AUS
27.Rachel Jones	 AUS
34.Sarah Harvey	 AUS

ELITE WOMEN

1.Stefany Hernandez	 VEN 
2.Caroline Buchanan	 AUS
3.Simone Christensen	 DEN
17.Lauren Reynolds	 AUS
21.Rachel Jones	 AUS
33.Sarah Harvey	 AUS
35.Melinda McLeod	 AUS

JUNIOR WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Axelle Etienne	 FRA
2.Ruby Huisman	 NED
3.Natalia Afremova	 RUS
18.Rachelle Smith	 AUS

JUNIOR WOMEN

1.Axelle Etienne	 FRA
2.Svetlana Admakina	 RUS
3.Kelsey Van Ogle	 USA
18.Rachelle Smith	 AUS
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MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS				 
VALLNORD, ANDORRA  31 AUGUST - 6 SEPTEMBER 2015

ELITE MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Nino Schurter	 SUI	 1:29:22
2.Julien Absalon	 FRA	 1:29:32
3.Ondrej Cink	 CZE	 1:30:37
73.Cameron Ivory	 AUS 	 -2 laps
84.Brendan Johnston	 AUS	 -2 laps
DNF Daniel McConnell	 AUS

U23 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Anton Cooper	 NZL     	 1:22:03
2.Victor Koretzky	 FRA     	 1:22:05
3.Grant Ferguson	 GBR     	 1:22:25
34.Scott Bowden	 AUS     	 1:31:10
55.Reece Tucknott	 AUS     	 1:36:06
75.Ben Bradley	 AUS     	 - 3 laps

JUNIOR MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Simon Andreassen	 DEN	 1:13:27
2.Maximilian Brandl	 GER	 1:14:14
3.Egan Bernal	 COL	 1:15:33
33.Bryan Dunkin	 AUS	 1:23:23
53.Liam Jeffries	 AUS	 - 1 lap
61.Luke Brame	 AUS	 - 1 lap
63.Callum Carson	 AUS	 - 1 lap
73.Michael Potter	 AUS	 - 1 lap
76.Alex Lack	 AUS	 - 2 laps

ELITE WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Pauline Ferrand Prevot	  FRA	      1:52:44
2.Irina Kalentyeva	  RUS	      1:53:42
3.Yana Belomoina	  UKR	      1:54:20
DNF Rebecca Henderson	  AUS

U23 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Ramona Forchini	  SUI	 1:37:23
2.Olga Terentyeva	  RUS	 1:38:02
3.Jenny Rissveds	  SWE	 1:38:24
30.Emily Parkes	  AUS	 1:52:15

JUNIOR WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Martina Berta	 ITA	 1:08:40
2.Evie Richards	 GBR	 1:10:00
3.Nicole Koller	 SUI	 1:11:07
34.Megan Williams	 AUS	 - 1 lap

CROSS COUNTRY TEAM RELAY

1.France		  52:45
2.Denmark		  53:09
3.Italy		  53:46
20.Australia		  58:43

ELITE MEN DOWNHILL

1.Loic Bruni	  FRA	   4:19:585
2.Greg Minnaar	  RSA	   +2.365
3.Josh Bryceland	  GBR	   +4.776
6.Troy Brosnan	  AUS	   +6.835
8.Connor Fearon	  AUS	   +7.291
10.Michael Hannah	  AUS	   +9.617
42.Dean Lucas	  AUS	   +25.680
45.Samuel Hill	  AUS	   +27.459
55.Jordan Prochyra	  AUS	   +32.370
67.David McMillan	  AUS	   +41.733

JUNIOR MEN DOWNHILL

1.Laurie Greenland	  GBR	 4:32.839
2.Martin Maes	  BEL	 +3.264
3.Jackson Frew	  AUS	 +11.585
9.Max Warshawsky	  AUS	 +16.870
16.Remy Morton	  AUS	 +26.277
26.Joel Willis	  AUS	 +37.202
34.Harry Bush	  AUS	 +45.218
53.Andrew Crimmins	  AUS	 +2:56.010

ELITE WOMEN DOWNHILL

1.Rachel Atherton	 GBR	 5:08.488
2.Manon Carpenter	 GBR	 +3.238
3.Tracey Hannah	 AUS	 +9.973
21.Tegan Molloy	 AUS	 +1:16.740

JUNIOR WOMEN DOWNHILL

1.Marine Cabirou	  FRA	      6:21.38
2.Viktoria Gimenez	  FRA	      6:28.62
3.Lilla Megyaszai	  HUN	      6:48.21
6.Ellie Wale	  AUS	      7:23.46

ELIMINATOR MEN

1.Daniel Federspiel	 AUT
2.Samuel Gaze	 NZL
3.Simon Gegenheimer	 GER
12.Cameron Ivory	 AUS
16.Paul van der Ploeg	 AUS

ELIMINATOR WOMEN

1.Linda Indergand	 SUI
2.Ingrid Boe Jacobsen	 NOR
3.Kathrin Stirnemann	 SUI
9.Emily Parkes	 AUS

MEN 26” TRIALS

1.Vincent Hermance	 FRA 
2.Jack Carthy	 GBR 
3.Kenny Belaey	 BEL 
22.Nathan Mummery	 AUS 
30.Jack Mullaly	 AUS

JUNIOR'S MEN 26" TRIALS

1.Nicolas Vallee	 FRA 
2.Dominik Oswald	 GER 
3.Nicolas Fleury	 FRA

MEN 20" TRIALS

1.Abel Mustieles	 ESP 
2.Luclen Leiser	 SUI 
3.Benito Ros	 ESP

JUNIOR MEN 20" TRIALS

1.Dominik Oswald	 GER
2.Sebastian Ruiz	 ESP
3.Johan Buchwalder	 SUI

WOMEN TRIALS

1.Janine Jungfels	 AUS 
2.Tatiana Janickova	 SVK 
3.Nina Reichenbach	 GER

TRIALS TEAM

1.France
2.Switzerland
3.Germany
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4X MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS					  
VAL DI SOLE -  ITALY  20 - 21 AUGUST 2015

2015
WORLD RESULTS

MOUNTAIN BIKE MARATHON WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			 
VAL GARDENA, ITALY  27 JUNE 2015

MEN

1.Alban Lakata	  AUT	 4:24:46
2.Christoph Sauser	  SUI
3.Hector Leonardo	  COL 
   Paez Leon
79.Morgan Pilley	  AUS
109.Michael England	  AUS

WOMEN

1.Gunn-Rita Dahle	 NOR		  3:34:13 
  Flesjaa
2.Annika Langvad	 DEN
3.Sabine Spitz	 GER
46.Sarah Riley	 AUS
51.Eliza Kwan	 AUS

4X MEN

1.Aiko Gohler	 GER
2.Luke Cryer	 GBR
3.Benedikt Last	 GER
25.Blake Nielsen	 AUS

4X WOMEN

1.Anneke Beerten 	 NED
2.Lucia Oetjen 	 SUI
3.Steffi Marth	 GER
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JUNIOR TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS					  
ASTANA -  KAZAKHSTAN  19 - 23 AUGUST 2015

MEN'S SPRINT

1.Jeone Park	 KOR
2.Jiri Janosek	 CZE
3.Moritz Meissner	 GER
7.Conor Rowley	 AUS
11.Derek Radzikiewicz	 AUS

MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Jirí Janosek	  CZE	  1:02.200
2.Alexandr Vasyukhno	  RUS	  1:02.678
3.Cameron Scott	  AUS	  1:03.417
20.James Tickner	  AUS	  1:06.869

MEN'S KEIRIN

1.Derek Radzikiewicz	 AUS 
2.Jiri Janosek	 CZE
3.Moritz Meissner	 GER
11.Conor Rowley	 AUS

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Leo Appelt	 GER	  3:15.432
2.Daniel Staniszewski	 POL	  3:21.478
3.Kelland O'Brien	 AUS	  3:19.948
10.James Robinson	 AUS	  3:22.988

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE

1.Campbell Stewart	  NZL	  11:39.05
2.Yutanna Mano	  THA
3.Denis Nekrasov	  RUS
9.Cameron Scott	  AUS

MEN'S POINTS RACE

1.Shunsuke, Imamura	  JPN	  31 pts
2.Edgar Stepanyan	  ARM	  25 pts
3.Gerben Thijssen	  BEL	  12 pts
16.Alex Rendell	  AUS	  2 pts

MEN'S OMNIUM

1.Campbell Stewart	 NZL	  191 pts
2.Rohan Wight	 AUS	  181 pts
3.Max Kanter	 GER	  156 pts

MEN'S MADISON

1.Australia		   5 pts 
  (Kelland O'Brien, Rohan Wight)
2.Russia		   19 pts
3.Italy		   12 pts

MEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.Russia		    44.767
2.Australia		    45.724 
  (Cameron Scott, Conor Rowley, 	  
  Derek Radzikiewicz)
3.Poland		    45.665

MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT

1.Australia		   4:05.555 
  (Rohan Wight, Alex Rendell,	  
  Kelland O'Brien, James Robinson)
2.Switzerland		   4:11.370
3.Russia		   4:05.888

WOMEN'S SPRINT

1.Emma Hinze	  GER
2.Courtney Field	  AUS
3.Kseniya Bogoyavlenskaya	  RUS
9.Tahlay Christie	  AUS
10.Brooke Tucker	  AUS

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Pauline Sophie Grabosch	 GER	  34.657
2.Emma Hinze	  GER	  34.729
3.Olivia Podmore	  NZL	  34.980
6.Courtney Field	  AUS	  35.537
12.Brooke Tucker	  AUS	  36.306

WOMEN'S KEIRIN

1.Emma Hinze	 GER
2.Courtney Field	 AUS
3.Sara Kankovska	 CZE
7.Tahlay Christie	 AUS

WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Justyna Kaczkowska	  	POL	  2:25.684
2.Marion Borras	  	FRA	  2:26.170
3.Madeleine Park	  	NZL	  2:27.564
8.Tori Saunders	  	AUS	  2:29.099
12.Chloe Moran	  	AUS	  2:29.657

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE

1.Elisa Balsamo	  	ITA	  10:14.064
2.Justyna Kaczkowska	  	POL
3.Nicola Macdonald	  	AUS

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE

1.Daria Pikulik		  POL	  23 pts
2.Yumi Kajihara		  JPN	  19 pts
3.Kristina Selina		  RUS	  13 pts

WOMEN'S OMNIUM

1.Danielle McKinnirey	   AUS	  189 pts
2.Daria Pikulik	   POL	  179 pts
3.Martina Alzini	   ITA	  169 pts

WOMEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.Germany			    33.899
2.New Zealand		   	 34.219
3.Italy		   	 34.815
4.Australia		   	 34.834 
  (Courtney Field, Tahlay Christie)

WOMEN'S TEAM PURSUIT

1.New Zealand		   	 4:31.966
2.Australia		   	 4:37.493 
  (Danielle McKinnirey, Nicola Macdonald,  
  Chloe Moran, Brooke Tucker)
3.Japan		   	 4:39.394
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2015
WORLD RESULTS

PARA-CYCLING TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
APELDOORN, NETHERLANDS  26 - 29 MARCH 2015

MEN'S C5 TIME TRIAL

1.Alfonso Cabello Llamas 	  ESP	 1:04.806
2.Alistar Donohoe	  AUS	   1:05.691
3.Pablo Jaramillo	  ESP	   1:06.805 
  Gallardo

MEN'S C4 TIME TRIAL

1.Jody Cundy	  GBR	    1:04.381
2.Jozef Metekla	  SVK	    1:06.886
3.Jiri Bouska	  CZE	    1:09.115

MEN'S C3 TIME TRIAL

1.Joseph Berenyi	  USA	  1:09.836
2.Diedrick Schelfhout	  BEL	  1:11.189
3.Sergey Batukov	  RUS	  1:11.273

MEN'S C2 TIME TRIAL

1.Hao Xie	  CHN	   1:15.497
2.Gui Hua Liang	  CHN	   1:16.995
3.Ivo Koblasa	  CZE	   1:17.816

MEN'S C1 TIME TRIAL

1.Zhangyu Li	  CHN	   1:14.445
2.Arnoud Nijhuis	  NED	   1:15.843
3.Rodrigo Fernando Lopez	  ARG	   1:21.001

MEN'S C5 PURSUIT

1.Michael Gallagher	  AUS	  4:40.411
2.Alistair Donohoe	  AUS	  4:41.674
3.Yehor Bementyev	  UKR	  4:43.973

MEN'S C4 PURSUIT

1.Jozef Metekla	 SVK	   4:31.841
2.Carol-Eduard Novak	 ROU	   lapped
3.Diego German Duenas	 COL 	   4:47.754	   
Gomez

MEN'S C3 PURSUIT

1.Joseph Berenyi	  USA	   3:37.399
2.Masaki Fujita	  JPN	   3:43.011
3.Eoghan Clifford	  IRL	 3:39.724

MEN'S C2 PURSUIT

1.Guihua Liang	  CHN	  3:51.592
2.Alvaro Galvis Becerra	  COL	  3:53.237
3.Arslan Gilmutdinov	  RUS	  3:52.759 

MEN'S C1 PURSUIT

1.Zhangyu Li	  CHN	  3:54.814
2.Ross Wilson	  CAN	  lapped
3.Rodrigo Fernand Lopez	  ARG	  4:11.007

MEN'S C1-3 SCRATCH RACE

1.Eoghan Clifford	  IRL	  19:45.297
2.Joseph Berenyi	  USA 
3.Eduardo Santas Asensio	  ESP

MEN'S C4-5 SCRATCH RACE

1.Alistair Donohoe	  AUS	  18:27.499
2.Soelito Gohr	  BRA
3.Michael Gallagher	  AUS

MEN'S TANDEM SPRINT

1.Great Britain
2.Spain
3.Netherlands
6.Australia		   
  (Paul Kennedy/Nicholas Yallouris)

MEN'S TANDEM TIME TRIAL

1.Great Britain		     1:01.787
2.Netherlands		     1:03.115
3.Germany		     1:03.450
6.Australia		     1:04.274 
  (Paul Kennedy/Nicholas Yallouris)
9.Australia		     1:05.349 
  (Matt Formston/Michael Curran)

MEN'S TANDEM PURSUIT

1.Netherlands		   4:21.310
2.Australia		   4:26.332 
  (Matthew Formston/Michael Curran)
3.Poland		   4:22.186
7.Australia		   4:30.690 
  (Bryce Lindores/Mark Jamieson)
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WOMEN'S C5 TIME TRIAL

1.Sarah Storey	 GBR	 37.847
2.Crystal Lane	 GBR	 37.877
3.Jufang Zhou	 CHN	 38.586

WOMEN'S C4 TIME TRIAL

1.Jianping Ruan	 CHN	       37.909
2.Katherine Horan	 NZL	       39.279
3.Susan Powell	 AUS	       40.366
6.Alexandra Green	 AUS	       43.146

WOMEN'S C3 TIME TRIAL

1.Jamie Whitmore 	 USA	  43.842 
  Cardenas	
2.Denise Schindler	 GER	  43.894
3.Simone Kennedy	 AUS	  44.734

WOMEN'S C2 TIME TRIAL

1.Alyda Norbruis	 NED	 39.959
2.Zhenling Song	 CHN	 44.520
3.Allison Jones	 USA	 45.828

WOMEN'S C1 TIME TRIAL

1.Jieli Li	 CHN	       49,247

WOMEN'S C5 PURSUIT

1.Sarah Storey	 GBR	  3:39.553
2.Anna Harkowska	 POL	  lapped
3.Greta Neimanas	 USA	  3:58.904

WOMEN'S C4 PURSUIT

1.Susan Powell	 AUS	 4:08.127
2.Megan Fisher	 USA	 4:12.608
3.Shawn Morelli	 USA	 4:07.671
5.Alexandra Green	 AUS	 4:12.045

WOMEN'S C3 PURSUIT

1.Denise Schindler	 GER	    4:18.707
2.Jamie Whitmore	 USA	    4:21.624 	
  Cardenas	  
3.Simone Kennedy	 AUS	    4:21.352

WOMEN'S C2 PURSUIT

1.Alyda Norbruis	 NED	  4:18.005
2.Sini Zeng	 CHN	  4:25.439
3.Allison Jones	 USA	  4:31.404

WOMEN'S C1 PURSUIT

1.Jieli Li	 CHN	  4:58.428

WOMEN'S C1-3 SCRATCH RACE

1.Alyda Norbruis	 NED	  16:15.676
2.Jamie Whitmore 	 USA		
  Cardenas	  
3.Denise Schindler	 GER

WOMEN'S C4-5 SCRATCH RACE

1.Greta Neimanas	 USA	 13:13.320
2.Anna Harkowska	 POL
3.Crystal Lane	 GBR
5.Susan Powell	 AUS
6.Alexandra Green	 AUS

WOMEN'S TANDEM SPRINT

1.Great Britain 
2.Australia		   
  (Brandie O'Connor/Breanna Hargrave)
3.Japan

WOMEN'S TANDEM TIME TRIAL

1.Great Britain		   1:07.553
2.Netherlands		   1:09.505
3.New Zealand		   1:10.746
5.Australia		   1:12.196 
  (Brandie O'Connor/Breanna Hargrave)

WOMEN'S TANDEM PURSUIT

1.New Zealand	  	 3:30.080
2.Japan	  	 3:34.244
3.Ireland	  	 3:39.549
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WORLD RESULTS

PARA-CYCLING ROAD WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
NOTTWIL, SWITZERLAND  29 JULY - 2 AUGUST 2015

MEN'S C5 TIME TRIAL

1.Yehor Dementyev	  UKR	  45:25.45
2.Alistair Donohoe	  AUS	  45:51.90
3.Andrea Tarlao	  ITA	  46:30.91
10.Michael Gallagher	  AUS	  49:12.42

MEN'S C4 TIME TRIAL

1.Kyle Bridgwood	  AUS	  46:28.32
2.Sergey Pudov	  RUS	  46:49.26
3.Patrik Kuril	  SVK	  47:36.12

MEN'S C3 TIME TRIAL

1.Eoghan Clifford	  IRL	  48:53.60
2.Steffen Warias	  GER	  49:41.51
3.Sergey Ustinov	  RUS	  50:44.70
4.David Nicholas	  AUS	  50:45.54

MEN'S C2 TIME TRIAL

1.Arslan Gilmutdinov	  RUS	  31:08.44
2.Guihua Liang	  CHN	  31:48.78
3.Israel Hilario Rimas	  PER	  31:56.93

MEN'S C1 TIME TRIAL

1.Michael Teuber	  GER	  32:32.60
2.Juan Jose Mendez	  ESP	  33:50.25
3.Giancarlo Masini	  ITA	  33:52.14

MEN'S T2 TIME TRIAL

1.Hans-Peter Durst	  GER	   25:00.82
2.Giorgio Farroni	  ITA	   26:20.60
3.Ryan Boyle	  USA	   26:23.87

MEN'S T1 TIME TRIAL

1.Quentin Aubague	  FRA	  30:15
2.Sergey Semochkin	  RUS	  31:29
2.Jiri Hindr	  CZE	  32:01

MEN'S H5 TIME TRIAL

1.Alessandro Zanardi	  ITA	  28:29.12
2.Oscar Sanchez	  USA	  29:08.81
3.Ernst Van Dyk	  RSA	  29:21.46

MEN'S H4 TIME TRIAL

1.Rafal Wilk	  POL	  28:55.15
2.Vico Merklein	  GER	  29:36.93
3.Thomas Fruehwirth	  AUT	  29:52.46
9.Nigel Barley	  AUS	  31:42.70

MEN'S H3 TIME TRIAL

1.Vittorio Podesta	  ITA	  30:15.89
2.Heinz Frei	  SUI	  30:43.64
3.Lukas Weber	  SUI	  31:00.39

MEN'S H2 TIME TRIAL

1.Luca Mazzone	  ITA	  27:57.34
2.William Groulx	  USA	  28:19.52
3.Tobias Fankhauser	  SUI	  29:48.62

MEN'S H1 TIME TRIAL

1.Nicolas Pieter Du Preez	  RSA	  41:59.74
2.Timothy Williams	  NZL	  44:35.82
3.Benjamin Frueh	  SUI	  44:52.20
5.Grant Nickel	  AUS	  45:50.70

MEN'S TANDEM TIME TRIAL

1.Poland		  43:34.44
2.Spain		   44:45.44
3.Italy		   46:00.91

MEN'S C5 ROAD RACE

1.Alistair Donohoe	  AUS	  2:00:55
2.Yehor Dementyev	  UKR
3.Andrea Tarlao	  ITA
5.Michael Gallagher	  AUS

MEN'S C4 ROAD RACE

1.Patrik Kuril	  SVK	  2:00:58
2.Carol-Eduard Novak	  ROU
3.Sergey Pudov	  RUS

MEN'S C3 ROAD RACE

1.Masaki Fujita	  JPN	  1:27:34
2.Alexsey Obydennov	  RUS 
3.Eduardo Santas Asensio	  ESP
7.David Nicholas	  AUS  

MEN'S C2 ROAD RACE

1.Israel Hilario Rimas	  PER	  1:29:04
2.Maurice Eckhard Tio	  ESP
3.Ivo Koblasa	  CZE

MEN'S C1 ROAD RACE

1.Pierre Senska	  GER	  1:30:48
2.Michael Teuber	  GER  
3.Erich Winkler	  GER

MEN'S T2 ROAD RACE

1.Hans-Peter Durst	   GER	  52:28
2.Nestor Ayala Ayala	   COL
3.Ryan Boyle	   USA

MEN'S T1 ROAD RACE

1.Quentin Aubague	  FRA	   47:49
2.Jiri Hindr	  CZE  
3.Sergey Semochkin	  RUS

MEN'S H5 ROAD RACE

1.Alessandro Zanardi	  ITA	  1:29:21
2.Jetze Plat	  NED
3.Johan Reekers	  NED

MEN'S H4 ROAD RACE

1.Rafal Wilk	  POL	  1:32:40
2.Vico Merklein	  GER
3.Mathieu Bosredon	  FRA
10.Nigel Barley	  AUS

MEN'S H3 ROAD RACE

1.Vittorio Podesta	  ITA	   1:33:30
2.Heinz Frei	  SUI
3.Lukas Weber	  SUI

MEN'S H2 ROAD RACE

1.Luca Mazzone	  ITA	   1:30:05
2.William Groulx	  USA
3.Anders Backman	  SWE

MEN'S H1 ROAD RACE

1.Nicolas Pieter Du	  RSA	  1:25:57 
  Preez
2.Timothy Williams	  NZL
3.Teppo Polvi	  FIN
5.Grant Nickel	  AUS
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MEN'S TANDEM ROAD RACE

1.Spain		   2:48:33
2.Netherlands
3.Spain

WOMEN'S C5 TIME TRIAL

1.Sarah Storey	  GBR	  30:52.36
2.Anna Harkowska	  POL	  33:08.17
3.Kerstin Brachtendorf	  GER	  34:14.78

WOMEN'S C4 TIME TRIAL

1.Shawn Morelli	   USA	  34:29.11
2.Alexandra Green	   AUS	  35:13.29
3.Megan Fisher	   USA	  26:00.51
4.Susan Powell	   AUS	  35:25.35

WOMEN'S C3 TIME TRIAL

1.Jamie Whitmore 			 
Cardenas	  USA	   23:13.26
2.Denise Schindler	  GER	   24:22.57
3.Simone Kennedy	  AUS	   25:35.81

WOMEN'S C2 TIME TRIAL

1.Sini Zeng	  CHN	  24:25.69
1.Allison Jones	  USA	  25:10.89
3.Tereza Diepoldova	  CZE	  25:49.60

WOMEN'S C1 TIME TRIAL

1.Jieli Li	   CHN	  29:37.80

WOMEN'S T2 TIME TRIAL

1.Carol Cooke	  AUS	  28:05.80
2.Jill Walsh	  USA	  29:25.50
3.Jana Majunke	  GER	  30:00.75

WOMEN'S T1 TIME TRIAL

1.Shelley Gautier	  CAN	  36:32.87
2.Yulia Sibagatova	  RUS	  38:54.56
3.Svetlana Perova	  RUS	  45:05.82

WOMEN'S H5 TIME TRIAL

1.Laura De Vaan	  NED	  24:58.43
2.Andrea Eskau	  GER	  25:06.61
3.Dorothee Vieth	  GER	  25:37.53

WOMEN'S H4 TIME TRIAL

1.Svetlana Moshkovich	  RUS	  27:46.54
2.Christiane Reppe	  GER	  28:00.50
3.Sandra Graf	  SUI	  29:47.74

WOMEN'S H3 TIME TRIAL

1.Francesca Porcellato	  ITA	  27:53.94
2.Alicia Dana	  USA	  29:11.21
3.Renata Kaluza	  POL	  29:57.36

WOMEN'S H2 TIME TRIAL

1.Justine Asher	  RSA	  37:35.51
2.Carmen Koedood	  NED	  54:08.16
3.Mikyoung Jeon	  KOR	  58:15.49

WOMEN'S H1 TIME TRIAL

1.Emilie Miller	  AUS	  47:33.76

WOMEN'S TANDEM TIME TRIAL

1.Poland		   52:05.61
2.New Zealand		   52:05.64
3.Netherlands		   53:03.36

WOMEN'S  C5 ROAD RACE

1.Sarah Storey	  GBR	   1:44:45
2.Anna Harkowska	  POL  
3.Kerstin Brachtendorf	  GER

WOMEN'S C4 ROAD RACE

1.Shawn Morelli	  USA	  2:01:06
2.Susan Powell	  AUS  
3.Jenny Narcisi	  ITA
5.Alexandra Green	  AUS  

WOMEN'S  C3 ROAD RACE

1.Jamie Whitmore 	 USA	 1:29:32 
   Cardenas	  
2.Denise Schindler	 GER
3.Simone Kennedy	 AUS

WOMEN'S C2 ROAD RACE

1.Sini Zeng	 CHN	  1:29:33
2.Daniela Carolina Munevar 	 COL
3.Allison Jones	 USA

WOMEN'S  C1 ROAD RACE

1.Jieli Li	 CHN	  1:42:26

WOMEN'S H5 ROAD RACE

1.Andrea Eskau	  GER	 1:22:26
2.Laura De Vaan	  NED
3.Oksana Masters	  USA

WOMEN'S H4 ROAD RACE

1.Christiane Reppe	   GER	  1:28:58
2.Silke Pan	   GER
3.Sandra Graf	   SUI

WOMEN'S H3 ROAD RACE

1.Francesca Porcellato	  ITA	   1:13:16
2.Alicia Dana	  USA
3.Renata Kaluza	  POL

WOMEN'S H2 ROAD RACE

1.Justine Asher	  RSA	 1:21:35
2.Carmen Koedood	  NED
3.Mikyoung Jeon	  KOR

WOMEN'S  H1 ROAD RACE

1.Emilie Miller	   AUS	  1:36:06

WOMEN'S  T2 ROAD RACE

1.Jill Walsh	  USA	 58:52
2.Carol Cooke	  AUS  
3.Jana Majunke	  GER  

WOMEN'S  T1 ROAD RACE

1.Shelley Gautier	  CAN	   56:34
2.Yulia Sibagatova	  RUS
3.Svetlana Perova	  RUS
4.Bianca Woolford	  AUS

WOMEN'S  TANDEM ROAD RACE

1.Poland 		   2:19:11
2.New Zealand
3.Netherlands

MIXED H1-5 TEAM RELAY

1.Italy		   31:13
2.USA
3.Switzerland

81



2015
WORLD RESULTS

MASTERS TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS 
MANCHESTER, ENGLAND  3 - 10 OCTOBER 2015

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 35 - 39

1.Bruce Croall	 GBR	    1:03.959
2.Henrik Scharling	 DEN	    1:05.527
3.Arnaud Duble	 FRA	    1:06.378

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 40 - 44

1.Ainars Kiksis	 LAT	       48.602
2.Terry Mackin	 IRL	       50.242
3.Adam Welch	 GBR	       50.579
6.Michael Smith	 AUS	       51.684
12.Kev Babakian	 AUS	       52.478

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 45 - 49

1.Chris Murray	 AUS	       48.445
2.Joseph Santaniello	 NOR	       49.895
3.James Lawrence	 USA	       50.222
4.Matthew Glanville	 AUS	       50.529

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 50 - 54

1.Brian Abers	 USA	       34.409
2.Geoff Stoker	 AUS	       34.442
3.Thomas Donohue	 USA	       34.494
13.Geoffrey Baxter	 AUS	       37.059

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 55 - 59

1.Gary Mandy	 AUS	       34.770
2.Steve Cronshaw	 GBR	       35.147
3.Carlos Daniel Zicavo	 ARG	       35.426
18.Graeme Peadon	 AUS	       37.770

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 60 - 64

1.David Willmott	 AUS	       36.118
2.Marc Dangleterre	 FRA	       37.269
3.Jean Louis Duble	 FRA	       37.406
10.Don Huyser	 AUS	       40.560
11.Phillip Innes	 AUS	       43.665

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 65 - 69

1.Gerard Louis Robert	  FRA	       37.035
2.Steven Troseth	  USA	       37.176
3.Angelo Onofri	  ITA	       37.279
10.Malcolm Clasohm	  AUS	       40.459
12.Rod Stewart	  AUS	       40.795

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 70 - 74

1.Geoffrey Cooke	 GBR	       38.169
2.David Rowe	 GBR	       39.972
3.Peter Herbert	 GBR	       40.200
7.Darrell Wheeler	 AUS	       41.012

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 75+

1.James Kloss	 USA	       39.101
2.Roland Crayford	 GBR	       41.327
3.Alan Rowe	 GBR	       41.767

MEN'S SPRINT  - 35 - 39

1.Arnaud Duble	 FRA
2.Ethan Boyes	 USA
3.Lauri Arte	 FIN

MEN'S SPRINT - 40 - 44

1.Ainars Kiksis	 LAT
2.Michael Smith	 AUS
3.Keith Bryceland	 GBR
7.Kev Babakian	 AUS

MEN'S SPRINT - 45 - 49

1.Daniel Rickard	 AUS
2.Harri Rajaniemi	 FIN
3.James Lawrence	 USA

MEN'S SPRINT - 50 - 54

1.Geoff Stoker	 AUS
2.Christopher Pyatt	 GBR
3.Brian Abers	 USA

MEN'S SPRINT - 55 - 59

1.Ferruccio Veschetti	 ITA
2.Gary Mandy	 AUS
3.Kurt Sato	 USA

MEN'S SPRINT - 60 - 64

1.David Willmott	 AUS
2.Jean Louis Duble	 FRA
3.Robert Pelegrin	 USA

MEN'S SPRINT - 65 - 69

1.Gerard Louis Robert	 FRA
2.Colin Claxton	 NZL
3.Malcolm Clasohm	 AUS
11.Rod Stewart	 AUS

MEN'S SPRINT - 70 - 74

1.Geoffrey Cooke	 GBR
2.David Rowe	 GBR
3.Steffen Munch Hansen	 DEN

MEN'S SPRINT - 75+

1.James Kloss	 USA
2.Roland Crayford	 GBR
3.Brian Dacey	 GBR

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 35 - 39

1.Henrik Scharling	 DEN	   3:28.165
2.Axel Boland	 NED	   3:30.515
3.Nicholas English	 GBR	   3:33.918

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 40 - 44

1.Dean Phillips	  USA	   3:29.024
2.Andy Stuart	  GBR	   3:32.856
3.Lee Suthard	  GBR	   3:30.899

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT- 45 - 49

1.Daniel Casper	  USA	   3:31.898
2.Andrew Patten	  AUS	   3:38.669
3.Elliot Davis	  GBR	   3:35.155
4.Matthew Glanville	  AUS	   3:36.117

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 50 - 54

1.Pascal Montier	  FRA	   2:20.639
2.Luciano Pasquini	  ITA	    2:20.957
3.Mark Wiffen	  GBR	   2:21.866

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 55 - 59

1.Russell Murphy	  USA	   2:23.043
2.Grant Tyrell	  NZL	   2:24.962
3.Graham Barclay	  GBR	   2:26.291
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MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT- 60 - 64

1.Ian Humphreys	 GBR	    2:29.564
2.Ivan Colig	 AUS	    2:31.045
3.Steve Davies	 GBR	    2:31.120
13.Phillip Innes	 AUS	    3:03.034

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 65 - 69

1.Gerard Louis Robert	 FRA	 2:30.062
2.Colin Claxton	 NZL	 2:32.937
3.Steven Troseth	 USA	 2:37.367
7.Rod Stewart	 AUS	 2:45.375

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 70 - 74

1.Steffen Munch Hansen	 DEN	   2:37.556
2.Geoff Wiles	 GBR	   2:38.935
3.Darrell Wheeler	 AUS	  2:39.7696

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 75+

1.James Kloss	 USA	  2:48.450
2.Alan Rowe	 GBR	  2:51.389
3.Fred Smith	 GBR	  2:55.617

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 35 - 39

1.Jonathan Harris	 GBR	 13:16
2.Martin Lonie	 GBR
3.Neil Kemp	 GBR
11.Sam Alison	 AUS

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 40 - 44

1.John Murazak	 USA	         11:55
2.Karl Baumgart	 USA
3.Daniel Ricardo Del Barco	 ARG
17.Paul Butler	 AUS

MEN'S  SCRATCH RACE - 45 - 49

1.Daniel Casper	 USA	   12:16
2.Matthew Glanville	 AUS
3.Aderito Da Cruz	 FRA
15.Jayson Austin	 AUS
19.Andrew Patten	 AUS

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 50 - 54

1.Gustavo Faris	 ARG 
2.Geoffrey Baxter	 AUS
3.Michael Rice	 GBR

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 55 - 59

1.Russell Murphy	 USA	           
2.Grant Tyrell	 NZL
3.Graeme Peadon	 AUS

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 60 - 64

1.Ivan Colig	 AUS	     
2.Jean Louis Duble	 FRA
3.James Rutherford	 GBR
12.Don Huyser	 AUS

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 65 - 69

1.Gerard Louis Robert	 FRA 
2.Gaham Wigh	 GBR
3.Malcolm Clasohm	 AUS
15.Rod Stewart	 AUS

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 70 - 74

1.Geoffrey Cooke	 GBR	           
2.Darrell Wheeler	 AUS
3.Steffen Munch Hansen	 DEN

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 75+

1.James Kloss	 USA	     
2.Roland Crayford	 GBR
3.Brian Dacey	 GBR
11.Rod Wagner	 AUS

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 35 - 39

1.Anthony Gibb	 GBR	 64 pts
2.Emmanuel Vignard	 FRA	 46 pts
3.Julien Muselet	 FRA	 19 pts
12.Alex Arancibia	 AUS	 18 pts
DNF Sam Alison	 AUS

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 40 - 44

1.John Murazak	  USA	        32 pts
2.Karl Baumgart	  USA	        29 pts
3.German Ariel Lopez	  ARG	        26 pts
12.Paul Butler	  AUS	        1 pt

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 45 - 49

1.Matthew Glanville	  AUS	  13 pts
2.Flemming Troigaard	  DEN	  10 pts
3.Daniel Casper	  USA	  10 pts
20.Jayson Austin	  AUS	  0 pts

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 50 - 54

1.Gustavo Faris	  ARG	 11 pts
2.Geoffrey Baxter	  AUS	 8 pts
3.Peter Ettles	  GBR	 8 pts

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 55 - 59

1.Sylvan Adams	  CAN	        37 pts
2.Grant Tyrell	  NZL	        15 pts
3.Keir Apperley	  GBR	        9 pts
10.Graeme Peadon	  AUS	        2 pts

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 60 - 64

1.Ivan Colig	  AUS	  20 pts
2.James Rutherford	  GBR	  14 pts
3.Chris Davis	  GBR	  12 pts
9.Don Huyser	  AUS	  1 pt
DNF David Willmott	  AUS

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 65 - 69

1.Gerard Louis Robert	  FRA	 20 pts
2.Graham Weigh	  GBR	 6 pts
3.Bent Christiansen	  DEN	 5 pts
4.Malcolm Clasohm	  AUS	 4 pts
11.Rod Stewart	  AUS	 0 pts

MEN'S POINTS RACE - 70 - 74

1.Steffen Munch Hansen	  DEN	        15 pts
2.Michel Briat	  FRA	        9 pts
3.Darrell Wheeler	  AUS 	        8 pts
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MEN'S  POINTS RACE - 75+

1.James Kloss	  USA	  15 pts
2.Derrick Woodings	  GBR	 9 pts
3.William Allen	  NZL	  5 pts

MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT - 35 - 44

1.Team Argentina	 ARG	   3:21.563
2.Newport Quadragintas	 GBR	   3:23.707
3.Equipe de France	 FRA	   3:24.593

MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT - 45 - 54

1.Project 320	  USA	   3:20.747
2.Bicisport Australia	  AUS	   3:22.821 
  (Jayson Austin, Matthew Glanville, 
  Andrew Patten, Geoffrey Baxter)
3.Dream Team	  GBR	   3:24.397

MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT - 55 - 64

1.MVHF	 USA	  3:31.922
2.Still Together	 GBR	  3:36.804
3.Birds of Prey        NZL/RSA/CHI	  3:36.804

MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT - 65+

1.Two in the Bush	 GBR 
2.Shut Up Legs	 GBR 	   Caught
3.Danish Masters	 DEN

MEN'S TEAM SPRINT - 35 - 44

1.It's Raining Men	 USA	       48.878
2.Team France Sila 	 FRA	      49.718 
  Sport & Hitachi	  
3.France	 FRA	      51.111

MEN'S TEAM SPRINT - 45 - 54

1.Bike Barn 	 AUS	  48.391 
  Parramatta (Chris Murray, Daniel Rickard,  
  Geoff Stoker)
2.Brookes Cycles & the	 GBR	  49.278 
  Interloper
3.USA 1	 USA	  50.227

MEN'S  TEAM SPRINT - 55 - 64

1.SVS Express	 USA	       50.598
2.Team Whatever	 GBR	       51.630
3.Stealth	 RUS/NZL   52.340
7.Speed Down Under	 AUS	       51.738

MEN'S  TEAM SPRINT - 65+

1.France	 FRA	       57.439
2.Denmark	 DEN	    1:00.589
3.United States of America	 USA	       55.182

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 35-39

1.Madeline Moore	 GBR	 36.893
2.Jaana Hyvarinen	 FIN	 37.624
3.Louise Haston	 GBR	 38.101
4.Rebecca Wheadon	 AUS	 38.180

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 40-44

1.Jessica Laws	 AUS	       38.322
2.Renee Covington	 AUS	       38.817
3.Susie Mitchell	 IRL	       38.909
6.Catherine Hooton	 AUS	       39.743
8.Melinda Symon	 AUS	       43.331

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 45-49

1.Janet Birkmyre	 GBR	  37.704
2.Julie Cooper	 GBR	  38.003
3.Juliet Sprake	 GBR	  41.969

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL - 50-54

1.Janni Bormann	 DEN	       37.880
2.Debie Capewel	 GBR	       38.360
3.Jayne Paine	 GBR	       40.213
4.Deborah Coulls	 AUS	       40.334

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL - 55-59

1.Elizabeth Heller	 USA	       41.474
2.Sandra North	 USA	       41.995
3.Meriel Custance	 AUS	       44.464

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL - 60+

1.Arja Scarsbrook	 FIN	       43.444
2.Bonnie Woodbury	 USA	       43.809
3.Brenda Tate	 GBR	       43.851
6.Desrae Cameron	 AUS	       44.904

WOMEN'S SPRINT  - 35 - 39

1.Madeline Moore	 GBR
2.Carolien van 	 NED	  
  Herrikhuyzen	
3.Louise Haston	 GBR
4.Rebecca Wheadon	 AUS

WOMEN'S SPRINT  - 40 - 49

1.Renee Covington	 AUS
2.Catherine Hooton	 AUS
3.Julie Cooper	 GBR
4.Jessica Laws	 AUS

WOMEN'S SPRINT - 50+

1.Janni Bormann	 DEN
2.Debbie Capewell	 GBR
3.Deborah Coulls	 AUS
7.Meriel Custance	 AUS

WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 35 - 39

1.Madeline Moore	 GBR	   2:30.852
2.Louise Haston	 GBR	   2:33.834
3.Niki Kovacs	 GBR	   2:37.053

WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 40 - 44

1.Erin Criglington	 NZL	   2:35.827
2.Susie Mitchell	 IRL	   2:36.248
3.Melinda Symon	 AUS

WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 45 - 49

1.Janet Birkmyre	 GBR 	   2:37.801
2.Laurel Green	 USA	   2:46.314
3.Mary Jane Stricker	 USA	   2:49.418

MASTERS TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS 
MANCHESTER, ENGLAND  3 - 10 OCTOBER 2015
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WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 50 - 54

1.Jayne Paine	 GBR	   2:35.831
2.Janni Bormann	 DEN	   2:35.931
3.Orla Hendron	 IRL	   2:41.275
4.Deborah Coulls	 AUS	   2:45.705

WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 55 - 59

1.Elizabeth Heller	 USA	   2:42.863
2.Christine Higgs	 GBR	   2:47.453
3.Sandra North	 USA	   2:48.112
4.Meriel Custance	 AUS	   2:49.975

WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT - 60+

1.Arja Scarsbrook	 FIN	    2:52.184
2.Lynn Rivier	 USA	    2:58.556
3.Ilna Lemmer	 RSA	    2:56.207
4.Desrae Cameron	 AUS	    2:59.797

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE  - 35 - 39

1.Louise Haston	 GBR
2.Christelle Ribault	 FRA
3.Carolien Van 	 NED 
  Herrikhuyzen	

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE  - 40 - 44

1.Erin Criglington	 NZL
2.Cheryl Fuller Muller	 USA
3.Susie Mitchell	 IRL 

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 45 - 49

1.Janet Birkmyre	 GBR	           
2.Julie Cooper	 GBR
3.Francine Haas	 USA
9.Sonya Keay	 AUS

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 50 - 54

1.Janni Bormann	 DEN
2.Deborah Coulls	 AUS
3.Jayne Paine	 GBR

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 55 - 59

1.Christine Higgs	 GBR
2.Elizabeth Heller	 USA
3.Meg Mautner	 USA
4.Meriel Custance	 AUS

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE - 60+

1.Arja ScarsBrook	 FIN
2.Brenda Tate	 GBR
3.Ilna Lemmer	 RSA

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE - 35 - 39

1.Christelle Ribault	  FRA	       19 pts
2.Niki Kovacs	  GBR	       11 pts
3.Louise Haston	  GBR	       10 pts

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE - 40 - 44

1.Susie Mitchell	 IRL	          7 pts
2.Erin Criglington	 NZL	          5 pts
3.Melanie Sneddon	 GBR	          0 pts

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE - 45 - 49

1.Janet Birkmyre	 GBR	        11 pts
2.Maria Mora Cirer	 ESP	        0 pts
3.Francine Haas	 USA	        0 pts
DNF Sonya Keay	 AUS

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE - 50 - 54

1.Janni Bormann	  DEN	       25 pts
2.Orla Hendron	  IRL	        20 pts
3.Deborah Coulls	  AUS	        19 pts

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE - 55 - 59

1.Meriel Custance	 AUS	            1 pt
2.Christine Higgs	 GBR	            1 pt
3.Elizabeth Heller	 USA	            0 pts

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE - 60+

1.Ilna Lemmer	 RSA	          0 pts

WOMEN'S  TEAM PURSUIT

1.Dolphin Comando	 GBR	    2:27.886 
  Squad
2.Emerald Blacks	 BR/NZL  	 2:31.864
3.Happy Little Vegemites	AUS	    2:40.731 
  (Jessica Laws, Melinda Symon,  
  Deborah Coulls)

WOMEN'S  TEAM SPRINT

1.Sister Act	 GBR	       36.904
2.Pit Bitches	 GBR	       37.022
3.Aussie Girls	 AUS	  
  (Jessica Laws, Rebecca Wheadon)
5.Waving Angels	 AUS	       38.817 
  (Catherine Hooton, Renee Covington)
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WORLD CYCLING TOUR FINAL
AALBORG, DENMARK  3 - 6 SEPTEMBER 2015

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 30 - 34

1.Gregory Cassini 	 FRA 	 24:52
2.Christian Muller 	 GER 	 25:01
3.Matej Lovse 	 SLO 	 25:01
12.James Perrin	 AUS 	 25:55
38.Dean Whelan	 AUS	 27:35

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 35 - 39

1.Andreas Schweizer	  SUI	 23:41
2.Matthew Bottrill	  GBR	 24:17
3.Samuel Plouhinec	  FRA     	 24:22

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 40 - 44

1.Igor Kopše	  SLO	 23:58
2.David Crawley	  GBR 	 25:09
3.Borja Jelic	  SLO	 25:11
51.Rich Kemp	  AUS	 29:20

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 45 - 49

1.Richard Feldman	  USA	 24:24
2.Markus Klier	  GER	 24:45
3.Robert Nunes	  CRC	 25:00
18.Gary Jones	  AUS	 26:15
28.Craig Hobart	  AUS	 25:56
43.Jon Leighton	  AUS	 27:56
51.Daniele Vanolini	  AUS	 29:25

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 50 - 54

1.Patrick Pardieu	  FRA	 24:53
2.Robert Garwood	  USA	 24:57
3.Ron Amos	  CAN	 25:05
42.Phillip Deisel	  AUS	 28:09
56.Gregor McNab	  AUS	 29:09
59.Alessandro Garofalo	  AUS	 29:32
61.John Clark	  AUS	 30:19
64.Paul Le Fevre	  AUS	 30:30

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 55 - 59

1.Vladimir Kuznetsov	  RUS	 25:50
2.Jan Bodin	  NOR	 25:55
3.Michael Pfeil	  GER	 25:59
17.William Gordin	  AUS	 27:18
31.Craig Smith-Gander	  AUS	 28:32
33.Dave Fairburn	  AUS	 28:40
40.Peter Turnbull	  AUS	 31:53

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 60 - 64

1.Mikalai Baklanau	  BLR	 26:29
2.Michael Frisch	  GER	 26:51
3.Ludvik Killinger	  CZE	 27:02
9.Gary Boylan	  AUS	 27:59
14.Joseph Grasso	  AUS	 28:24
DNF Richard McCorkell	  AUS

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 65 - 69

1.Rudolf Sluyts	  BEL	 26:48
2.Gerhard Hrinkow	  AUT	 27:07
3.Jan Karlsson	  SWE	 27:18
5.Reinhard Mauch	  AUS	 27:54
8.Nick Grainger	  AUS	 28:26
13.John Horsburgh	  AUS	 28:57

MEN'S TIME TRIAL  - 70 - 74

1.Rein Oppewal	  NED	 29:17
2.Peter Trumheller	  GER	 29:25
3.Mike Cotgreave	  GBR	 30:10

MEN'S TIME TRIAL - 75+

1.Petr Vatlach	  CZE	   32:31
2.Vincent Jenkins	  GBR	   32:34
3.Bent Krogh	  DEN	   32:53
4.Geoffrey Wilson	  AUS	   33:10

MEN'S ROAD RACE  - 30 - 34

1.Christian Muller	  GER	 4:08:47
2.Michiel Minnaert	  BEL
3.Hophra Gerard	  BEL
38.Matthew Zaranski	  AUS
55.James Perrin	  AUS
77.Fergus Ward	  AUS

MEN'S ROAD RACE  - 35 - 39

1.Samuel Plouhinec	  FRA	 4:06:49
2.Sandro Kuhmel	  GER
3.Alessandro D'Andrea	  ITA
55.Anthony Graf	  AUS

MEN'S ROAD RACE  - 40 - 44

1.Igor Kopše	  SLO	 4:04:28
2.Michael Johansen Gamst	  DEN
3.Diego Rubini	  ITA
45.Paul Prottey	  AUS
50.Brent Cochrane	  AUS
57.Doug Stewart	  AUS
62.Ben Creber	  AUS
64.Steve Beales	  AUS
71.Chris Millen	  AUS
98.Rich Kemp	  AUS

MEN'S ROAD RACE - 45 - 49

1.Daniel Martin	 CAN	 4:06:53
2.Michael Schaefer	 GER
3.Claus Holm	 DEN
14.Gary Jones	 AUS
53.Will McLaren	 AUS
66.Jon Leighton	 AUS

MEN'S ROAD RACE - 50 - 54

1.Stephen Fairless	 AUS	 4:16:55
2.Lars Aagaard Hansen	 DEN
3.Jesper Nielsen	 DEN
29.Thomas O'Neill	 AUS
34.Mark Norden	 AUS
55.Christopher Grubb	 AUS
60.Paul Frankcom	 AUS
67.Peter Selkrig	 AUS
72.Julian Johnson	 AUS
78.Michael Blaxell	 AUS
81.Phillip Deisel	 AUS
96.Peter O'Callaghan	 AUS

MEN'S ROAD RACE  - 55 - 59

1.Enrico Busch	 GER	 4:25:44
2.Tommy Flognfeldt	 SWE
3.Jan Bodin	 NOR
14.Dave Fairburn	 AUS
42.William Gordin	 AUS
43.Lawrence Cranley	 AUS
54.Nick Rudd	 AUS
67.Craig Smith-Gander	 AUS
73.Peter Neuzerling	 AUS
76.Peter Wilshaw	 AUS
80.Stephen Stanley	 AUS
82.Raymond Jarratt	 AUS
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MEN'S ROAD RACE - 60 - 64

1.Mikalai Baklanau	  BLR	     3:05:01
2.Ulrich Rottler	  GER
3.Lechnitz Alfred	  AUT
10.Gary Boylan	  AUS
17.Joseph Grasso	  AUS
37.Stephen Ainsworth	  AUS
43.Chris Wallis	  AUS
50.Kevin Goodman	  AUS
53.Richard McCorkell	  AUS
65.Robert Birch	  AUS

MEN'S ROAD RACE - 65 - 69

1.Gerhard Hrinkow	  AUT	     3:05:02
2.Jan Karlsson	  SWE
3.Rudolf Sluyts	  BEL
8.Reinhard Mauch	  AUS
26.Michael Morton	  AUS

MEN'S ROAD RACE - 70+

1.Jorgen Emil Hansen	  DEN	     3:14:51
2.Geoff Wiles	  GBR
3.Rein Oppewal	  NED
6.Richard Barville	  AUS
13.Geoffrey Wilson	  AUS

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL - 30 - 34

1.Katharina Venjakob	  GER	        28:00
2.Lynn Hamel	  GBR	        28:03
3.Calah Wright	  CAN	        28:19
5.Erin Kinnealy	  AUS	        29:06

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL - 35 - 39

1.Elisabeth Solberg	  NOR	   28:07
2.Helen McKay	  GBR	   28:48
3.Jessica Bacon	  GBR	  29:24

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 40 - 44

1.Adelheid Schutz	  GER	        27:07
2.Jenny Eliasson	  SWE	        27:57
3.Eva Lindskog	  SWE	        28:16
16.Summer Roberts	  AUS	        33:08

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 45 - 49

1.Trine Hansen	  NOR	        27:41
2.Anna Svardstrom	  SWE	        27:41
3.Anne Valta	  USA	        27:54
10.Geraldine Ann 			 
Blomfield-Brown	  AUS	        29:42
DNF Judith Caball	  AUS

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 50 - 54

1.Janni Bormann	  DEN	  28:16
2.Karen Hviid Christensen	  DEN	  28:17
3.Anny Hauglid	  NOR	  28:57
11.Anna Murray	  AUS	  32:44

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 55 - 59

1.Jeannie Longo	  FRA	        27:50
2.Sissel Vien	  NOR	        28:53
3.Camille Deluca-Flaherty	  USA	        29:33

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 60 - 64

1.Sharon Prutton	  NZL	        30:29
2.Marti Valks	  NED	        31:16
3.Janet Siilman	  CAN	        32:07
4.Julia Emblin	  AUS	        32:55
9.Robyn Baker	  AUS	        37:21

WOMEN'S  TIME TRIAL - 65+

1.Elizabeth Randall	  AUS	   32:12
2.Anne Staley	  GBR	   35:33
3.Sidsel Grondalen	  NOR	   37:12

WOMEN'S ROAD RACE - 30 - 34

1.Katharina Venjakob	  GER	  4:48:27
2.Erin Kinnealy	  AUS
3.Nicolien Luijsterburg	  NED
16.Sarah Duffield	  AUS
30.Evelyn Wong	  AUS

WOMEN'S  ROAD RACE - 35 - 39

1.Sophie Evrard	  FRA	     4:48:26
2.Elisabeth Solberg	  NOR
3.Ajda Opeka	  SLO

WOMEN'S  ROAD RACE - 40 - 44

1.Astrid Schartmuller	 GER	   4:48:27
2.Veronique Florizoone	 BEL
3.Anne Perry	 USA

WOMEN'S ROAD RACE - 45 - 49

1.Maria Cristina Prati	 ITA	  4:48:27
2.Kristin Falck	 NOR
3.Camilla Hott	 NOR
11.Geraldine Ann 	 AUS	  
  Blomfield-Brown	  
23.Judith Caball	 AUS
32.Monique Strange	 AUS 

WOMEN'S  ROAD RACE - 50 - 54

1.Karen Hviid Christensen	 DEN	   3:20:02
2.Passalacqua Daniela	 ITA
3.Claudia Carceroni Gilles	 FRA
7.Anne O'Neill	 AUS
8.Anna Murray	 AUS
15.Dee Boys	 AUS
23.Jenny DenOuden	 AUS
26.Karen Bucholz	 AUS
34.Sandii McManus	 AUS

WOMEN'S  ROAD RACE - 55 - 59

1.Sissel Vien	 NOR	   3:24:54
2.Lillian Pfluke	 USA
3.Patrizia Cabella	 ITA
6.Vicki Bell	 AUS

WOMEN'S ROAD RACE - 60 - 64

1.Sharon Prutton	 NZL	    3:31:21
2.Marti Valks	 NED
3.Julia Emblin	 AUS
9.Marilyn Ey	 AUS
10.Robyn Baker	 AUS

WOMEN'S ROAD RACE - 65+

1.Tina Usenicnik	 SLO	  4:02:08
2.Pauline Bambury	 GBR
3.Narda Roushdi	 USA
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2015 OCEANIA TRACK CHAMPIONSHIPS
ADELAIDE, AUSTRALIA  8 - 11 OCTOBER 2014

MEN'S SPRINT

1.Matthew Glaetzer	 AUS
2.Edward Dawkins	 NZL
3.Shane Perkins	 AUS

MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Matthew Archibald	  NZL	   1:01.942
2.Alexander  	 AUS	   1:03.583 
  Radzikiewicz	
3.Braeden Dean	  AUS	   1:03.679

MEN'S KEIRIN

1.Jacob Schmid	 AUS
2.Andrew Taylor	 AUS
3.Mitchell Bullen	 AUS

MEN'S INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Daniel Fitter	 AUS	 4:22.745
2.Callum Scotson	 AUS	 4:23.204
3.Westley Gough	 NZL	 4:28.873

MEN'S SCRATCH RACE

1.Scott Law	 AUS	   17:46.97
2.Alexander Porter	 AUS
3.Nicholas Yallouris	 AUS

MEN'S POINTS RACE

1.Aaron Gate	 NZL	        47 pts
2.Tirian McManus	 AUS	        45 pts
3.Daniel Fitter	 AUS	        21 pts

MEN'S OMNIUM

1.Scott Law	 AUS	 225 pts
2.Jackson Law	 AUS	 205 pts
3.Aaron Gate	 NZL	 96 pts

MEN'S MADISON

1.Australia A		  19 pts	       
  (Scott Law, Sam Welsford)
2.New South Wales	  	 17 pts 
  (Jackson Law, Nicholas Yalouris) 	
3.Australia B		  6 pts	   
  (Alex Rendell, James Robinson)      

MEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.New Zealand		        44.254 
  (Matthew Archibald, Sam Webster,  
  Edward Dawkins)
2.Australia		        44.459 
  (Dan Ellis, Shane Perkins,  
  Matthew Glaetzer)
2.SASI	 AUS		     
  (Jai Angsuthasawit, Patrick Constable,  
  Alexander Radzikiewicz)

MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT

1.Australia		     4:02.887 
  (Daniel Fitter, Tirian McManus, 	  
  Callum Scotson Sam Welsford)
2.New Zealand		     4:08.341 
  (Cameron Karwowski, Aaron Gate, 
  Westley Gough, Marc Ryan)
3.NSWIS		     4:05.935 
  (Benjamin Harvey, Scott Law, 	  
  Jackson Law, Nicholas Yallouris)

U19 MEN'S SPRINT

1.Derek Radzikiewicz	 AUS
2.Conor Rowley	 AUS
3.Elliot Stacey	 AUS

U19 MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Cameron Scott	 AUS	    1:05.650
2.Elliot Stacey	 AUS	    1:06.705
3.Bradly Knipe	 NZL	    1:07.050

U19 MEN'S KEIRIN

1.Derek Radzikiewicz	 AUS
2.Cameron Scott	 AUS
3.Conor Rowley	 AUS

U19 MEN'S INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Rohan Wright	 AUS	    3:21.157
2.James Robinson	 AUS	    3:25.880
3.Thomas McDonald	 AUS	    3:28.906

U19 MEN'S SCRATCH RACE

1.Campbell Stewart	 NZL	    11:56.54
2.Rohan Wight	 AUS
3.Thomas McFarlane	 AUS

U19 MEN'S POINTS RACE

1.Ryan Schilt	 AUS	        45 pts
2.Tom Sexton	 AUS	        37 pts
3.Hayden Dicocco-Grant	 AUS	        27 pts

U19 MEN'S OMNIUM

1.Campbell Stewart	 NZL	      222 pts
2.Alex Rendell	 AUS	      192
3.Ryan Schilt	 AUS	      185 pts

U19 MEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.Australia		        47.081 
  (Derek Radzikiewicz, Conor Rowley,  
  Cameron Scott)
2.New Zealand		        48.947 
  (Hamish Beadle, Sam Buckner, 	  
  Campbell Stewart)
3.VIS/ACTAS	  	        49.194 
  (Stephen Ellul, Elliot Stacey, Jarrod Wilson)

U19 MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT

1.Australia		     4:13.486	   
  (Thomas McDonald, James Robinson, 
  James Tickner, Rohan Wight)
2.New Zealand		     4:18.139 
  (Max Jones, Lachlan Mc Gregor,	  
  Tom Sexton, Campbell Stewart)
3.VIS	  	    4:23.449 
  (Jordan Louis, Thomas McFarlane, 
  Kallum Parlevliet, Ryan Schilt)

CYCLING AUSTRALIA ANNUAL REPORT 201588



WOMEN'S SPRINT

1.Stephanie Morton	 AUS
2.Anna Meares	 AUS
3.Kaarle McCulloch	 AUS

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Katie Schofield	  NZL	       35.309
2.Stephanie McKenzie	  NZL	       35.378
3.Rikki Belder	  AUS	       35.556

WOMEN'S KEIRIN

1.Stephanie Morton	 AUS 
2.Anna Meares	 AUS
3.Rikki Belder	 AUS

WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Annette Edmondson	  AUS	    3:37.598
2.Rebecca Wiasak	  AUS	    3:39.193
3.Jaime Nielsen	  NZL	    3:39.601

WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE

1.Ashlee Ankudinoff	  AUS	   13:04.65
2.Kimberley Wells	  AUS
3.Rebecca Wiasak	  AUS

WOMEN'S POINTS RACE

1.Lauren Ellis	  NZL	  33 pts
2.Allison Rice	  AUS	  24 pts
3.Georgia Williams	  NZL	  19 pts

WOMEN'S OMNIUM

1.Annette Edmondson	  AUS	     240 pts
2.Racquel Sheath	  NZL	     187 pts
3.Elissa Wundersitz	  AUS	     185 pts

OPEN WOMEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.Australia		        33.661 
  (Kaarle McCulloch, Stephanie Morton)
2.New Zeland		        34.431 
  (Stephanie McKenzie, Katie Schofield)
3.VIS/ACTAS		   
  (Catherine Culvenor, Caitlin Ward)

OPEN WOMEN'S TEAM PURSUIT

1.New Zealand		    4:31.404 
  (Lauren Ellis, Jaime Nielsen,	  
  Racquel Sheath, Georgia Williams)
2.Australia		   4:34.972 
  (Georgia Baker, Lauren Perry, 	  
  Rebecca Wiasak, Elissa Wundersitz)
3.ACTAS Cycling	  	  4:44.628 
  (Emily McRedmond, Alexandria Nicholls, 
  Allison Rice, Kimberley Wells)

U19 WOMEN'S SPRINT

1.Courtney Field	 AUS
2.Tahlay Christie	 AUS
3.Brit Jackson	 AUS

U19 WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Courtney Field	 AUS	      35.716
2.Tahlay Christie	 AUS	      36.042
3.Emma Cumming	 NZL	      36.712

U19 WOMEN'S KEIRIN

1.Tahlay Christie	 AUS
2.Courtney Field	 AUS
3.Emma Cumming	 NZL

U19 WOMEN'S INDIVIDUAL  
PURSUIT

1.Danielle McKinnirey	  AUS	  2:29.711
2.Chloe Moran	  AUS	  2:29.901
3.Nicola Macdonald	  AUS	  2:31.988

U19 WOMEN'S SCRATCH RACE

1.Michaela Drummond	 NZL	   10:17.99
2.Nicola Macdonald	 AUS
3.Danielle McKinnirey	 AUS

U19 WOMEN'S POINTS RACE

1.Danielle McKinnirey	 AUS	         20pts
2.Ione Johnson	 NZL	         11pts
3.Makayla Smith	 NZL	         10pts

U19 WOMEN'S OMNIUM

1.Michaela Drummond	  NZL	  217pts
2.Chloe Moran	  AUS	  206pts
3.Tori Saunders	  AUS	  185pts
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2015
WORLD RESULTS

OCEANIA ROAD CHAMPIONSHIPS
TOOWOOMBA, AUSTRALIA  13 - 15 FEBRUARY 2015

MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Michael Hepburn	  AUS	   48:41.14
2.Craig Evers	  AUS	   49:17.36
3.Cameron Wurf	  AUS	   49:19.41

MEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Taylor Gunman	  NZL	     3:33:55
2.Jordan Kerby	  AUS
3.Daniel Barry	  NZL

U23 MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Harry Carpenter	  AUS	   48:50.53
2.Daniel Fitter	  AUS	   49:34.52
3.Tom Kaesler	  AUS	   50:33.68

U23 MEN'S ROAD RACE

1.David Edwards	  AUS	     3:34:49
2.Fraser Gough	  NZL
3.Ayden Toovey	  AUS

U19 MEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Jackson Carman	  AUS	     2:55:11
2.Robert Stannard	  NZL
3.Darcy Pirotta	  AUS

U19 MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Michael Storer	  AUS	   30:38.22
2.Keagan Girdlestone	  NZL	   30:42.81
3.Robert Stannard	  NZL	   31:18.88

WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Katrin Garfoot	  AUS	   32:55.27
2.Lauren Kitchen	  AUS	   33:44.34
3.Rebecca Mackey	  AUS	   34:06.33

WOMEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Lauren Kitchen	  AUS	    3:12:54
2.Lizzie Williams	  AUS
3.Katrin Garfoot	  AUS

U19 WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Anna-Leeza Hull	  AUS	  20:01.76
2.Ashleigh Hocking	  AUS	  20:22.97
3.Kristina Clonan	  AUS	  20:29.90

U19 WOMEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Kristina Clonan	  AUS	   2:19:43
2.Tori Saunders	  AUS
3.Jessica Pratt	  AUS

OCEANIA MOUNTAIN  BIKE CHAMPIONSHIPS
TOOWOOMBA, AUSTRALIA  26 FEBRUARY - 1 MARCH 2015

ELITE MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Daniel McConnell	  AUS	      1:29:50
2.Anton Cooper	  NZL	      1:33:26
3.Cameron Ivory	  AUS	      1:35:03

U23 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Scott Bowden	  AUS	      1:18:09
2.Ben Bradley	  AUS	      1:20:56
3.Chris Hamilton	  AUS	      1:21:38

U19 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Liam Jeffries	  AUS	  1:05:42
2.Michael Potter	  AUS	  1:07:01
3.Bryan Dunkin	  AUS	  1:07:41

ELITE WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Rebecca Henderson	  AUS	      1:28:10
2.Kate Fluker	  NZL	      1:29:00
3.Karen Hanlen	  NZL	      1:32:10

U23 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Amber Johnston	  NZL	      1:16:30
2.Emily Parkes	  AUS	      1:18:26
3.Mary Gray	  NZL	      1:20:27

U19 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Jemma Manchester	  NZL	  1:20:49
2.Shannon Hope	  NZL	  1:22:36
3.Megan Williams	  AUS	  1:24:17

ELITE MEN DOWNHILL

1.Richie Rude Jr	  USA	     2:40.15
2.Connor Fearon	  AUS	     2:40.16
3.Jared Graves	  AUS	     2:42.37

U19 MEN DOWNHILL

1.Andrew Crimmins	  AUS	     2:44.62
2.Max Warshawsky	  AUS	     2:46.04
3.Joel Willis	  AUS	     2:50.07

ELITE WOMEN DOWNHILL

1.Claire Buchar	  AUS	  3:03.96
2.Tegan Molloy	  AUS	  3:15.05
3.Sophie Tyas	  NZL	  3:18.35
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Heinrich Haussler claimed the elite men’s road race crown at the  
2015 Mars Cycling Australia Road National Championships



AUSTRALIAN ROAD CHAMPIONSHIPS					  
BALLARAT, VICTORIA  7 - 11 JANUARY 2015

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

MEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Richie Porte	  TAS	   51:50.86
2.Rohan Dennis	  SA	   51:58.04
3.Jack Bobridge	  SA 	   52:17.68
4.Luke Durbridge	  WA	   53:02.06
5.Damien Howson	  SA	   53:14.28
6.Campbell Flakemore	  TAS	   53:37.74 
7.Michael Hepburn	  QLD	   53:55.75
8.Michael Rogers	  ACT	   54:16.05
9.Ben Dyball	  NSW	   54:18.79
10.Lachlan Norris	  VIC	   54:24.94

U23 MEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Miles Scotson	  SA	   38:36.60
2.Oscar Stevenson	  VIC	   38:40.98
3.Harry Carpenter	  SA	   39:47.05
4.Jack Haig	  VIC	   39:59.51
5.Alexander Edmondson	  SA	   40:05.37
6.Tom Kaesler	  SA	   40:06.37
7.Mitchell Cooper	  VIC	   40:19.94
8.Angus Lyons	  VIC	   40:25.36
9.David Edwards	  QLD	   40:26.10
10.Alistair Donohoe	  VIC	   40:28.45

WOMEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Shara Gillow	  QLD	   44:21.12
2.Bridie O'Donnell	  VIC	   45:22.60
3.Taryn Heather	  SA	   45:30.58
4.Rebecca Mackey	  WA	   45:55.83 
5.Felicity Wardlaw	  VIC	   45:56.22
6.Louisa Lobigs	  NSW	   46:30.44 
7.Ellen Skerritt	  QLD	   46:37.27
8.Jenelle Crooks	  QLD	   46:44.77 
9.Kate Perry	  VIC	   47:09.57 
10.Lynne Clarke	  NSW	   47:12.72

U23 WOMEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Rebecca Mackey	  WA	   45:55.83 
2.Ellen Skerritt	  QLD	   46:37.27
3.Jenelle Crooks	  QLD	   46:44.77 
4.Allison Rice	  ACT	   47:17.00
5.Shannon Malseed	  VIC	   47:54.12 
6.Alexandria Nicholls	  ACT	   48:21.05
7.Lauretta Hanson	  VIC	   50:31.97 
8.Jade Colligan	  NSW	   50:41.05
9.Angela Smith	  NSW	   51:28.04 

MEN’S ROAD RACE

1.Heinrich Haussler	  NSW	   4:47:24
2.Caleb Ewan	  NSW
3.Neil van der Ploeg	  VIC
4.Campbell Flakemore	  TAS
5.Samuel Spokes	  NSW
6.Jack Bobridge	  SA
7.Angus Morton	  NSW
8.Adam Hansen	  QLD
9.Steele von Hoff	  VIC
10.Simon Clarke	  VIC

U23 MEN’S ROAD RACE

1.Miles Scotson	  SA	   3:22:57
2.Alexander Edmondson	  SA
3.Alistair Donohoe	  VIC
4.Ryan Cavanagh	  QLD
5.Nicholas Schultz	  QLD
6.Daniel Fitter	  QLD
7.Freddy Ovett	  VIC
8.Jack Haig	  VIC 
9.Robert Power	  WA
10.Jack Beckinsale	  NSW

WOMEN’S ROAD RACE

1.Peta Mullens	  VIC	    2:55:29
2.Rachel Neylan	  SA
3.Shara Gillow	  QLD
4.Tessa Fabry	  VIC
5.Kendelle Hodges	  VIC
6.Lizzie Williams	  VIC
7.Samantha de Riter	  VIC
8.Ruth Corset	  QLD
9.Lauren Kitchen	  NSW
10.Tiffany Cromwell	  SA

U23 WOMEN’S ROAD RACE

1.Shannon Malseed	  VIC	   2:56:39
2.Alexandria Nicholls	  ACT
3.Ellen Skerritt	  QLD
4.Jenelle Crooks	  QLD
5.Tayla Evans	  VIC
6.Allison Rice	  ACT
7.Jessica Mundy	  SA
8.Rebecca Mackey	  WA
9.Lauretta Hanson	  VIC

MEN’S CRITERIUM

1.Steele von Hoff	  VIC	   1:01:17
2.Caleb Ewan	  NSW
3.Scott Sunderland	  WA
4.Anthony Giacoppo	  WA
5.Angus Tobin	  NSW
6.Neil van der Ploeg	  VIC
7.Shannon Johnson	  VIC
8.Brenton Jones	  VIC
9.Benjamin Hill	  ACT
10.Fabio Calabria	  VIC

U23 MEN’S CRITERIUM

1.Chris Hamilton	  VIC	   47:31
2.David Edwards	  QLD
3.Jesse Kerrison	  QLD
4.Alexander Edmondson	  SA
5.Luke Parker	  VIC
6.Daniel Fitter	  QLD
7.Michael Rice	  ACT
8.Ryan Thomas	  NSW
9.Dylan Sunderland	  NSW
10.Jordan Stannus	  VIC

WOMEN’S CRITERIUM

1.Kimberley Wells	  ACT	   52:14
2.Peta Mullens	  VIC
3.Lauren Kitchen	  NSW
4.Ruth Corset	  QLD
5.Lizzie Williams	  VIC
6.Shannon Malseed	  VIC
7.Kendelle Hodges	  VIC
8.Rebecca Mackey	  WA
9.Tayla Evans	  VIC
10.Nicole Moerig	  QLD

U23 WOMEN’S CRITERIUM

1.Shannon Malseed	  VIC	  52:14
2.Rebecca Mackey	  WA
3.Tayla Evans	  VIC
4.Jessica Mundy	  SA
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AUSTRALIAN U19 ROAD CHAMPIONSHIPS				 
GOLD COAST, QUEENSLAND  10 - 12 JULY 2015		

U19 MEN’S ROAD RACE

1.Michael Storer	  WA	   2:54:52
2.Nathaniel Levin	  NZL
3.Matthew Chambers	  WA
4.Adam Mitchell	  NSW
5.Samuel Jenner	  NSW
6.Benjamin Andrews	  VIC
7.Nicholas White	  VIC
8.Liam Magennis	  NSW
9.Thomas McDonald	  VIC
10.Bradley Soden	  QLD

U19 WOMEN’S ROAD RACE

1.Hannah Gumbley	  NZL	    2:42:40 
2.Jessica Pratt	  QLD
3.Ruby Roseman-Gannon	  VIC
4.Anna-Leeza Hull	  NSW
5.Hollee Simons	  NSW
6.Jaime Gunning	  QLD
7.Kristina Clonan	  QLD
8.Ashleigh Hocking	  VIC

U19 MEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Rohan Wight	 SA	   27:57.41
2.James Fouche	 NZL	   28:39.17
3.Liam Magennis	 NSW	   28:45.41 
4.Samuel Jenner	 NSW	   28:54.30
5.Ben Mavrodis	 VIC	   29:03.48
6.Michael Storer	 WA 	  29:07.64
7.James Robinson	 TAS	   29:12.89
8.Darcy Pirotta	 WA	   29:20.49
9.Thomas McDonald	 VIC	   29:22.23
10.Alastair 	 VIC	   29:22.49	     
  Christie-Johnston 	

U19 WOMEN’S TIME TRIAL

1.Anna-Leeza Hull	 NSW	  20:50.02
2.Hollee Simons	 NSW	  21:13.99
3.Jaime Gunning	 QLD	  21:25.34
4.Kristina Clonan	 QLD	  22:00.23
5.Chloe Moran	 SA	  22:02.46
6.Nicola Macdonald	 NSW	  22:05.24
7.Amelia Crane	 ACT	  22:19.98
8.Danielle McKinnirey	 SA	  22:28.31
9.Ashleigh Hocking	 VIC	  22:47.58
10.Tori Saunders	 NSW	  22:54.04

U19 MEN'S CRITERIUM

1.Darcy Pirotta	  WA	  36:06
2.Kelland O'Brien	  VIC
3.Ross Gordon	  VIC
4.Rohan Wight	  SA
5.James Fouche	  NZL
6.Samuel Jenner	  NSW
7.Jordan Loius	  ACT
8.Hayden Dicocco-Grant	  TAS
9.Callum Pearce	  SA
10.Joshua Toovey	  NSW

U19 WOMEN’S CRITERIUM

1.Nicola Macdonald	  NSW  	 32:54
2.Danielle McKinnirey	  SA
3.Ruby Roseman-Gannon	  VIC
4.Tori Saunders	  NSW
5.Hannah Gumbley	  NZL
6.Hollee Simons	  NSW
7.Anna-Leeza Hull	  NSW
8.Abigail Jenkinson	  QLD
9.Jessica Hoskin	  QLD
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AUSTRALIAN PARA-CYCLING ROAD NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS  
ADELAIDE, SOUTH AUSTRALIA  18 - 19 APRIL 2015

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

C5 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Michael Gallagher	  VIC	  31:54.67 
2.Kyle Bridgwood	  QLD	  32:11.05
3.Alistair Donohoe	  VIC	  32:38.04 
4.Loz Shaw	  SA	  35:35.90
5.Tony Scoleri	  SA	  40:07.52

C5 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Alistair Donohoe	 VIC	  1:46:09 
2.Kyle Bridgwood	 QLD
3.Michael Gallagher	 VIC

C4 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.James Middlemiss	 QLD	  35:09.54 
2.Julius Peters	 QLD	  37:20.79
3.Benjamin Swain	 NSW	  38:20.89
4.Stephen Knott	 NSW	  43:10.12

C4 MEN ROAD RACE

1.James Middlemiss	 QLD	  1:46:09 
2.Benjamin Swain	 NSW
3.Stephen Knott	 NSW

C3 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.David Nicholas	 QLD 	 23:44.20 
2.Massie Knight	 VIC	 25:45.80
3.Gordon Allan	 NSW	 28:48.27
4.Darren Hicks	 SA	 30:52.07

C3 MEN ROAD RACE

1.David Nicholas	 QLD	  2:04:07 
2.Massie Knight	 VIC
3.Julius Peters	 QLD
4.Gordon Allan	 NSW
5.Darren Hicks	 SA

C2 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Jarrod Pope	  VIC	  29:27.03
2.Gabriel Bouris	  VIC	  33:36.18

C2 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Jarrod Pope	 VIC	  1:40:24 
2.Gabriel Bouris	 VIC

C1 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Darcy Thompson	 SA	  27:25.46

C1 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Darcy Thompson	 SA	  1:41:17

T2 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Andrew Bannister	 WA	  22:20.94

T2 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Andrew Bannister	 WA	  49:59

T1 MEN TIME TRIAL

1. Garry Robinson	 NSW	  27:07.67  

T1 MEN ROAD RACE

1. Garry Robinson	 NSW	  56:21

H5 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Stuart Tripp	 VIC	  25:59.07

H5 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Stuart Tripp	 VIC 	 1:33:17

H4 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Nigel Barley	 WA	  26:20.27  
2.Grant Allen	 SA	  28:17.14 
3.Simon Brockhoff	 SA	  30:12.34

H4 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Nigel Barley	 WA	  1:33:17
2.Grant Allen	 SA 
3.Simon Brockhoff	 SA

H3 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Alex Welsh	 VIC	  27:52.55 
2.Michael Taylor	 VIC	  27:52.96 
3.Steven Richter	 QLD	  34:31.04

H3 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Alex Welsh	 VIC 	 1:40:07
2.Michael Taylor	 VIC
3.Steven Richter	 QLD

H1 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Grant Nickel	 NSW	   28:13.37

H1 MEN ROAD RACE

1.Grant Nickel	 NSW	  1:48:13

C4 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Susan Powell	 ACT 	 25:50.93
2.Alexandra Green	 NSW 	 26:15.47 
3.Hannah MacDougall	 VIC	 27:18.58

C4 WOMEN ROAD RACE

1.Susan Powell	 ACT	  1:36:28
2.Alexandra Green	 NSW
3.Hannah MacDougall	 VIC

C3 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Simone Kennedy	  NSW	  29:48.48

C3 WOMEN ROAD RACE

1.Simone Kennedy	 NSW	  1:10:58
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T2 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Carol Cooke	 VIC	  20:30.22 
2.Gabrielle Vassallo	 NSW	  25:45.65

T2 WOMEN ROAD RACE

1.Carol Cooke	 VIC	  47:25
2.Gabrielle Vassallo	 NSW

T1 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Bianca Woolford	 SA	  27:59.44

T1 WOMEN ROAD RACE

1. Bianca Woolford	 SA	  1:06:45

H4 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Karen Harvey	 WA	  47:09.03

H4 WOMEN ROAD RACE

1.Karen Harvey	 WA	  1:42:42

H1 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Emilie Miller	 NSW	   45:49.90

H1 WOMEN ROAD RACE

1.Emilie Miller	 NSW	  1:45:06

TANDEM MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Matt Formston/	 NSW	 31:47.84 
  Michael Curran	
2.Kieran Murphy/	 SA	 32:58.75	 
  David Parsons	
3.Kieran Modra/	 SA	 33:05.25	 
  Nathan Hunter	
4.Shayne Allen/ 	 NSW	 33:38.60	 
  Dan Cleary	
5.Bryce Lindores/ 	 QLD/NSW 	34:08.36	 
  Aaron Watts                           
6.Brad Henderson/	 SA	 34:18.03	 
  Thomas Drizners	
7.Damien Williams/	 SA	 34:22.00		   
Mathew Miller	  
8.Joshua Murphy/	 SA	 37:29.77	 
  Michael Hoile	
9.Neil Massey/	 SA	 37:48.29		   
Stephen Hampton	
10.Steven Kemp/	 SA	 37:56.44	 
  Allan Young	

TANDEM MEN ROAD RACE

1.Matt Formston/	 NSW	 2:14:33	 
  Michael Curran	
2.Kieran Modra/	 SA	  
  Nathan Hunter	  
3.Damien Williams/	 SA	  
  Mathew Miller	
4.Shayne Allen/ 	 NSW	  
  Dan Cleary	
5.Kieran Murphy/	 SA	  
  David Parsons	
6.Bryce Lindores/	 QLD/NSW 
  Aaron Watts
7.Neil Massey/	 SA	  
  Stephen Hampton	
8.Beau Wootton/	 SA		    
  Tristan Fergusson	
9.Simon Wong/	 SA	  
  Simon Veitch	

TANDEM WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Rachel Henderson/	 SA	  36:56.31	     
  Carla Franson	  
2.Elisabeth 	 SA	  44:02.33	   
  D'Sylva-Clark/Victoria Veitch	  

TANDEM WOMEN ROAD RACE

1.Rachel Henderson/	 SA	 2:03:57 
  Carla Franson		     
2.Elisabeth D'Sylva-Clark/	 SA	  
  Victoria Veitch 
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AUSTRALIAN JUNIOR ROAD CHAMPIONSHIPS  
SHEPPARTON, VICTORIA  11 - 13 SEPTEMBER 2015

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

U17 MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Sebastian Berwick	  NSW	  19:46.27
2.Liam Nolan	  SA	  19:54.51
3.Godfrey Slattery	  VIC	  20:03.42 
4.Mitchell Wright	  NSW	  20:08.25
5.Matthew Graham	  QLD	  20:08.88 
6.Jarrad Drizners	  SA	  20:11.70
7.Riley Hart	  VIC	  20:15.40
8.Bryce Lanigan	  WA	  20:18.60
9.Stephen Cuff	  NSW	  20:23.11 
10.Cooper Sayers	  SA	  20:23.25

U15 MEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Will McClennon	  NSW	  14:56.51
2.James Moriarty	  QLD	  15:08.20 
3.Jordan Dawson	  WA	  15:24.13 
4.Samual Eddy	  VIC	  15:24.63
5.Graeme Frislie	  VIC	  15:26.73
6.Eddy Calvert	  TAS	  15:32.03
7.Hugo Greenhill	  QLD	  15:36.19
8.Luke Ensor	  NSW	  15:40.65
9.Lachlan Devine	  QLD	  15:41.38
10.Maximillian Santos	  NSW	  15:44.39

U17 WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Maeve Moroney-Plouffe	  SA	  22:47.22
2.Chloe Heffernan	  NSW	  23:17.75 
3.Georgia O'Rourke	  VIC	  23:24.54
4.Lucy Cliff	  NSW	  23:26.22
5.Sarah Gigante	  VIC	  23:29.92 
6.Emily Watts	  NSW	  23:31.27
7.Jade Haines	  WA	  23:39.42
8.Hannah Osborn	  SA	  23:41.28
9.Natasha Mullany	  NSW	  23:46.42
10.Claire Winterbourne	  QLD	  23:47.58

U15 WOMEN'S TIME TRIAL

1.Lauren Robards	  ACT	  16:51.02
2.Olivia Wheeler	  SA	  16:59.02
3.Zoe Cuthbert	  ACT	  17:01.84
4.Chloe Hollingsworth	  NSW	  17:05.11 
5.Amelia Miles	  ACT	  17:11.25
6.Ashlee Jones	  NSW	  17:18.76
7.Emma Green	  QLD	  17:22.66
8.Laura Hodges	  WA	   17:31.96
9.Laura Berwick	  NSW	  17:33.75 
10.Sophie McAuley	  QLD	  17:46.65

U17 MEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Godfrey Slattery	  VIC	   1:42:32 
2.Craig Wiggins	  WA
3.Mitchell Wright	  NSW
4.Alistair Barr	  SA
5.Braden O'Shea	  SA
6.Zack Gilmore	  TAS
7.Stephen Cuff	  NSW
8.Amarni Drake	  QLD
9.Zachary Marshall	  NSW
10.Joshua Corcoran	  NSW

U15 MEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Kurt Eather	  NSW	   58:36 
2.Luke Ensor	  NSW
3.Maximillian Santos	  NSW
4.Joshua Heather	  VIC
5.Samuel Buckell	  VIC
6.Graeme Frislie	  VIC
7.Luke Britten	  NSW
8.Jack Throssell	  VIC
9.Mackenzie Edwardson	  ACT
10.Ryan Lawson	  TAS

U17 WOMEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Morgan Gillon	  TAS	   1:56:55 
2.Natasha Mullany	  NSW
3.Courtney Patterson	  QLD
4.Jade Haines	  WA
5.Claire Winterbourne	  QLD
6.Maeve Moroney-Plouffe	  SA 
7.Alexandra 	 QLD	  
  Martin-Wallace	  
8.Telyka Agius	  SA
9.Emily Mascaro	  WA
10.Lucy Cliff	  NSW

U15 WOMEN'S ROAD RACE

1.Lauren Robards	  ACT	  1:06:52
2.Laura Hodges	  WA  
3.Olivia Wheeler	  SA
4.Ashlee Jones	  NSW
5.Chloe Hollingsworth	  NSW
6.Laura Berwick	  NSW
7.Emma Green	  QLD
8.Sophie McAuley	  QLD
9.Anna O'Rourke	  TAS
10.Kate Vickers	  NSW

U17 MEN'S CRITERIUM

1.Craig Wiggins	  WA	   35:15
2.Zack Gilmore	  TAS
3.Mitchell Wright	  NSW
4.Patrick Butler	  VIC
5.Stephen Cuff	  NSW
6.Amarni Drake	  QLD
7.Bryce Lanigan	  WA
8.Matthew Dinham	  NSW
9.Zachary Marshall	  NSW
10.Godfrey Slattery	  VIC

U15 MEN'S CRITERIUM

1.Graeme Frislie	  VIC	   26:20 
2.Luke Ensor	  NSW
3.Kurt Eather	  NSW
4.Cooper Tye	  SA
5.Eddy Calvert	  TAS
6.Samuel Buckell	  VIC
7.Dylan Weir	  ACT
8.Timothy Butler	  VIC
9.Maximillian Santos	  NSW
10.Bill Simpson	  VIC

U17 WOMEN'S CRITERIUM

1.Jade Haines	  WA	   36:36
2.Natasha Mullany	  NSW
3.Laura Jones	  NSW
4.Maeve Moroney-Plouffe	  SA 
5.Chloe Heffernan	  NSW 
6.Claire Winterbourne	  QLD
7.Lucie Fityus	  NSW
8.Alexandra 	  QLD	  
  Martin-Wallace	  
9.Selina Ho	  NSW
10.Lucy Parkin	  QLD

U15 WOMEN'S CRITERIUM

1.Chloe Hollingsworth	  NSW	   27:21
2.Emma Green	  QLD
3.Danica Wiggins	  WA
4.Alysha Torr	  QLD
5.Lauren Robards	  ACT
6.Katarina Chung-Orr	  SA
7.Laura Berwick	  NSW
8.Dharlia Haines	  WA
9.Laura Hodges	  WA
10.Ashlee Jones	  NSW
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AUSTRALIAN JUNIOR MOUNTAIN CLIMBING CHAMPIONSHIPS  
MOUNT BUFFALO, VICTORIA  18 - 19 APRIL 2015

U19 MEN'S HILL CLIMB - TIME TRIAL

1.Michael Storer	 WA	  13:19.96
2.Harry Sweeny	 QLD	  13:29.47
3.Tomarsh Loki	 VIC	  13:35.05
4.Liam Magennis	 NSW	  13:37.98
5.Samuel Jenner	 NSW	  13:48.70
6.Thomas McDonald	 VIC	  14:00.81
7.Joel Hawkins	 VIC	  14:03.4
8.Alastair 	 VIC	  14:10.14 
  Christie-Johnston	  
9.Isaac Probert	  TAS	  14:13.12
10.Darcy Pirotta	  WA	  14:22.05

U17 MEN'S HILL CLIMB - TIME TRIAL

1.Riley Hart	  VIC	   13:59.74
2.Sebastian Berwick	  NSW	  14:03.52 
3.Mitchell Wright	  NSW	  14:11.02
4.Liam Nolan	  SA	  14:15.84
5.Cooper Sayers	  SA	  14:34.41
6.Jarrad Drizners	  SA	  14:46.44
7.Thomas Jones	  VIC	  14:55.02 
8.Luke Plapp	  VIC	  15:04.73
9.Matthew Rice	  ACT	  15:14.00
10.Matthew Dinham	  NSW	  15:14.25

U15 MEN'S HILL CLIMB - TIME TRIAL

1.Sebastian Barrett	  WA	  15:55.13 
2.Sam Warren	  VIC	  16:08.52 
3.Eddy Calvert	  TAS	  16:09.92
4.Joshua Heather	  VIC	  16:20.68 
5.Angus McLean	  VIC	  16:27.66 
6.Leon Pudebat	  VIC	  16:31.51 
7.Samual Eddy	  VIC	  16:49.41 
8.Lewis Walker	  SA	  17:06.25
9.Momo Frank	  QLD	  17:07.30
10.Alastair Hastings	  VIC	  17:15.14

U19 WOMEN'S HILL CLIMB- TIME TRIAL

1.Anna-Leeza Hull	  NSW	  16:06.53 
2.Ashleigh Hocking	  VIC	  16:19.59
3.Jaime Gunning	  QLD	  16:21.46
4.Ruby Roseman-Gannon	  VIC	  16:51.05
5.Nicola Macdonald	  NSW	  17:22.78
6.Kirsty Deacon	  VIC	  17:44.73
7.Grace Mennen	  VIC	  18:50.06
8.Jordyn Hassett	  VIC	  19:25.09
9.Syan Garstang	  NSW	  20:34.53

U17 WOMEN'S HILL CLIMB-TIME TRIAL

1.Sarah Gigante	  VIC	  17:30.35
2.Anya Louw	  TAS	  17:51.55
3.Georgia O'Rourke	  VIC	  17:52.17
4.Lucy Parkin	  QLD	  18:11.20
5.Hannah Osborn	  SA	  18:23.98 
6.Ally Rose Ogden	  VIC	  18:24.21 
7.Abby Gray	  VIC	  18:39.25
8.Laura Jones	  NSW	  19:06.23
9.Molly Bridger	  VIC	  19:19.38
10.Teagan Atherstone	  VIC	  19:37.65 

U15 WOMEN'S HILL CLIMB - TIME TRIAL

1.Olivia Wheeler	  SA	  10:34.05
2.Neve Bradbury	  VIC	  10:39.34
3.Isla Bradbury	  VIC	  10:42.98 
4.Ashlee Jones	  NSW	  10:51.23
5.Laura Berwick	  NSW	  11:00.88
6.Katarina Chung-Orr	  SA	  11:15.41
7.Amy Ellis	  VIC	  11:56.13 
8.Alysha Torr	  QLD	  12:06.94
9.Madeleine Currie	  VIC	  14:49.91

U19 MEN'S HILL CLIMB - ROAD RACE

1.Michael Storer	  WA	  2:13:35
2.Liam Magennis	  NSW
3.Thomas McDonald	  VIC
4.Harry Sweeny	  QLD
5.Nicholas White	  VIC
6.Ethan Berends	  VIC
7.Oliver Murray	  ACT
8.Tomarsh Loki	  VIC
9.Joel Hawkins	  VIC
10.Jackson Carman	  QLD

U17 MEN'S HILL CLIMB - ROAD RACE

1.Sebastian Berwick	  NSW	  1:36:52
2.Cooper Sayers	  SA
3.Mitchell Wright	  NSW
4.Matthew Dinham	  NSW
5.Liam Nolan	  SA
6.Luke Plapp	  VIC 
7.Liam Edwards	  VIC
8.Sam Bascombe	  VIC
9.Thomas Jones	  VIC
10.Jarrah Forrer	  VIC

U15 MEN'S HILL CLIMB - ROAD RACE

1.Sam Warren	  VIC	  1:08:54
2.Angus McLean	  VIC
3.Andrew Rigoni	  VIC
4.Eddy Calvert	  TAS
5.Leon Pudebat	  VIC
6.Sebastian Barrett	  WA
7.Momo Frank	  QLD
8.Samual Eddy	  VIC
9.Alastair Hastings	  VIC
10.Samuel Buckell	  VIC

U19 WOMEN'S HILL CLIMB - ROAD RACE

1.Ashleigh Hocking	  VIC	  1:52:00
2.Jaime Gunning	  QLD 
3.Anna Leeza Hull	  NSW
4.Ruby Roseman-Gannon	  VIC
6.Kirsty Deacon	  VIC
7.Jordyn Hassett	  VIC
8.Grace Mennen	  VIC
9.Syan Garstang	  NSW

U17 WOMEN'S HILL CLIMB-ROAD RACE

1.Sarah Gigante	  VIC	  1:19:56
2.Ally Rose Ogden	  VIC
3.Lucy Parkin	  QLD
4.Hannah Osborn	  SA
5.Abby Gray	  VIC
6.Teagan Atherstone	  VIC
7.Laura Jones	  NSW
8.Anya Louw	  TAS
9.Molly Bridger	  VIC
10.Edie Haley	  VIC

U15 WOMEN'S HILL CLIMB - ROAD RACE

1.Neve Bradbury	  VIC	  45:14
2.Isla Bradbury	  VIC
3.Olivia Wheeler	  SA
4.Laura Berwick	  NSW
5.Ashlee Jones	  NSW 
6.Katarina Chung-Orr	  SA
7.Alysha Torr	  QLD
8.Amy Ellis	  VIC
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AUSTRALIAN MASTERS ROAD CHAMPIONSHIPS  
MURWILLUMBAH, NEW SOUTH WALES  25 - 27 SEPTEMBER 2015

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

MEN CATEGORY 1 TIME TRIAL

1.Bret Steiszkal	  VIC	  26:02.13
2.Andrew Keller	  QLD	  28:24.22
3.Luke Cunningham	  QLD	  28:40.37
4.Michael Bettany	  QLD	   28:45.91
5.Jeremy Hopson	  NSW	   28:52.72
6.Scott Matheson	  QLD	   29:12.85 
7.Tai Huynh	  NSW	   29:29.21
8.Matthew Locker	  QLD	   29:52.50
9.Nikolay Antonov	  NSW	   30:00.01 
10.Luke van Maanenberg	  QLD	   30:09.25

MEN CATEGORY 2 TIME TRIAL

1.Andrew Gray	  VIC	   27:11.68
2.Stephen Lane	  VIC	   27:28.55
3.Dave Brown	  QLD	   27:43.02
4.Thomas Collier	  QLD	   27:53.33
5.Jesse Graham	  ACT	   28:04.33 
6.Oliver Dharma-Ratne	  NSW	   28:12.44
7.Brad Hannaford	  NSW	   28:30.20
8.Nick Hewes	  QLD	   29:09.58
9.Adam Taylor	  NSW	   29:12.51
10.Brendon Brauer	  QLD	   29:18.34

MEN CATEGORY 3 TIME TRIAL

1.Peter Milostic	  NSW	   26:47.79
2.Andrew East	  NSW	   27:23.15
3.Richard Gooding	  QLD	   28:07.69
4.Sean Wilkeson	  VIC	   28:20.12
5.Timothy Dalgliesh	  QLD	   28:23.81 
6.Connor Hughes	  NSW	   28:30.83
7.Matthew Fleming	  NSW	   28:36.54
8.Mark Laspina	  QLD	   28:53.23
9.Nicholas George	  QLD	   29:31.52
10.Stewart Campbell	  NSW	   29:33.41

MEN CATEGORY 4 TIME TRIAL

1.Andrew Patten	  QLD	   27:46.03  
2.Peter Gwynne	  QLD	   28:00.13
3.Dean Heathcote	  VIC	   28:10.50 
4.Michael Cheesman	  QLD	   28:12.00 
5.Paul Andrews	  QLD	   28:31.16 
6.Charles Gascoyne	  NSW	   28:31.71
7.Michael Newell	  QLD	   28:44.03
8.Craig Pennell	  WA	   28:48.96
9.Matthew Bowman	  VIC	   29:01.71 
10.Brendan Byatt	  ACT	  29:05.18

MEN CATEGORY 5 TIME TRIAL

1.John Cain	  VIC	  27:17.67 
2.Carmine Soriano	  VIC	   28:25.07
3.Tony Simonelli	  QLD	   28:30.37
4.Darrell Henry	  QLD	   29:06.04 
5.Colin Rose	  WA	   29:22.12
6.Michael Meiers	  QLD	   29:47.04
7.Adrian Laand	  QLD	   30:04.30 
8.Hamish Mackirdy	  SA	   30:13.15 
9.Andrew Swain	  NSW	  30:20.81
10.Darryl Noolan	  NSW	  30:34.54

MEN CATEGORY 6 TIME TRIAL

1.William Gordin	  VIC	   29:14.85 
2.Gerard Donnelly	  VIC	  29:21.83
3.Russell Newnham	  VIC	   30:20.21
4.Gary Madigan	  QLD	   30:28.38
5.Stephen Dawkins	  NSW	  30:44.57 
6.Lewis Marshall	  QLD	   30:50.97
7.Gregory Barnes	  NSW	  31:16.17 
8.Philip Thomas	  NSW	  31:33.07
9.Nicholas Rogers	  QLD	   31:49.57 
10.Peter Murdoch	  NSW	  31:59.10

MEN CATEGORY 7 TIME TRIAL

1.Peter Ritchie	  NSW	  29:55.56
2.Paul Wild	  QLD	   30:34.89 
3.Gordon Patrick	  QLD	   30:55.19
4.James Dodd	  QLD	   31:00.58
5.John Vaughan	  NSW	  31:45.84 
6.Mark Long	  NSW	  31:56.51
7.Guy Falla	  VIC	   31:59.08 
8.Arthur Puie	  QLD	   32:17.88 
9.Ian Lovell	  NSW	  32:46.45 
10.Wayne Thompson	  QLD	   32:49.23

MEN CATEGORY 8 TIME TRIAL

1.John Hampson	  QLD	   30:25.96 
2.John Horsburgh	  NSW	  31:10.43 
3.Kevin Emery	  NSW	  31:29.41
4.Mike Griffen	  QLD	   32:49.28
5.Malcolm Lynn	  NSW	  33:05.20
6.Richard Tabaka	  QLD	   33:07.81
7.David Tichy	  SA	   33:54.85
8.Timothy Hicks	  QLD	   34:43.72
9.Colin Howkins	  QLD	   35:17.44
10.Ken Bell	  QLD	   42:19.78

MEN CATEGORY 9 TIME TRIAL

1.Colin Maciver	  NSW	  31:16.63 
2.Denis Fahey	  NSW	  31:34.94
3.Doug Barrett	  VIC	  31:43.38 
4.David Scully	  NSW	   34:42.59
5.Maurice Mathe	  NSW	   35:36.16
6.John Smallwood	  QLD	   36:57.61 
7.Hugh Gray	  NSW	   37:45.95
8.Jeffery Hartley	  QLD	   38:25.88

MEN CATEGORY 10 TIME TRIAL

1.William McConnell	  VIC	  32:46.82 
2.Geoff Wilson	  NSW	   34:50.68
3.Richard Spinks	  NSW	  35:11.41

MEN CATEGORY 1 ROAD RACE

1.Michael Bettany	  QLD	  2:35:37
2.Luke Cunninghan	  QLD
3.Rowan Dever	  VIC
4.Reuben Phillips	  QLD
5.Daniel Strauss	  VIC
6.Richard Younger	  NSW
7.Clinton Edwards	  NSW
8.Dominik Dudkiewicz	  VIC
9.Brad Hamblett	  NSW
10.Jeremy Hopson	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 2 ROAD RACE

1.Jay Phillpotts	  VIC	  2:33:39
2.Oliver Dharma-Ratne	  NSW
3.Andrew Gray	  VIC
4.Graeme Rose	  QLD
5.Mathew Upton	  WA 
6.Dave Brown	  QLD
7.Brendon Brauer	  QLD
8.Nathan White	  QLD
9.Stephen Lane	  VIC
10.Phillip Kelaher	  NSW
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MEN CATEGORY 3 ROAD RACE

1.Richard Gooding	  QLD	  2:15:03
2.Jon Gregg	  WA
3.Peter Milostic	  NSW
4.Sebastien Laflamme	  QLD
5.Andre East	  NSW
6.Ian Johnston	  QLD
7.Mark Laspina	  QLD
8.Connor Hughes	  NSW
9.Brent Ducker	  QLD
10.Adam White	  QLD

MEN CATEGORY 4 ROAD RACE

1.Tim Hoy	  QLD	   2:16:56 
2.Damien Jones	  VIC
3.Duncan Crosby	  QLD
4.Wayne Thomson	  WA
5.Ross West	  QLD
6.Steven Rooney	  QLD
7.Peter Apps	  QLD
8.David Adcock	  NSW
9.Brett Hickford	  QLD
10.Dean Heathcote	  VIC

MEN CATEGORY 5 ROAD RACE

1.Wayne Sanchez	  NSW	  2:21:59 
2.Craig Briant	  QLD
3.Thomas O'Neill	  WA 
4.Juan Navarrete	  QLD
5.Adrian Land	  QLD
6.Les Heap	  QLD
7.Mark Hill	  QLD
8.Harry Hanley	  VIC
9.David Sturt	  VIC
10.Peter Robertson	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 6 ROAD RACE

1.Gerard Donnelly	  VIC	  1:36:04
2.Russell Newnham	  VIC
3.Bruce Phelps	  QLD
4.Stephen Dawkins	  NSW
5.David Clarke	  VIC
6.Phil Kesby	  QLD
7.Alan McCulloch	  VIC
8.Warren Biggs	  QLD
9.Bruce Goddard	  NSW
10.Mark Steele	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 7 ROAD RACE

1.Craig Price	  QLD	   1:37:33
2.Paul Wild	  QLD
3.James Dodd	  QLD 
4.Peter Ritchie	  NSW 
5.Guy Falla	  VIC 
6.Francois Audibert	  QLD
7.Peter Jansen	  QLD
8.Ron Hewes	  QLD
9.Ian Lovell	  NSW 
10.Mark Long	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 8 ROAD RACE

1.Mick Patton	  QLD	  1:44:11
2.John Hampson	  QLD
3.John Horsburgh	  NSW
4.Robert Dawson	  QLD
5.Malcolm Lynn	  NSW
6.Kevin Emery	  NSW
7.Robert Driver	  QLD
8.Bill Ricahrdson	  QLD
9.Les Preston	  QLD
10.Guy Page	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 9 ROAD RACE

1.Colin Maciver	  NSW	  1:44:09 
2.David Scully	  NSW
3.Jeffery Hartley	  QLD

MEN CATEGORY 10 ROAD RACE

1.Richard Spinks	  NSW	  1:45:06
2.Geoff Wilson	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 1 CRITERIUM

1.Dominik Dudkiewicz	  VIC	  45:56
2.Michael Bettany	  QLD
3.Luke van Maanenberg	  QLD
4.Daniel Strauss	  VIC
5.Richard Younger	  NSW
6.Matthew Zaranski	  QLD
7.Reuben Phillips	  QLD
8.Andre Keller	  QLD
9.Luke Cunningham	  QLD
10.Tai Huynh	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 2 CRITERIUM

1.Andrew Gray	  VIC	  44:59
2.Stephen Lane	  VIC 
3.Dave Brown	  QLD
4.Ben Brodrick	  QLD
5.Aaron Stewart	  QLD
6.Glenn Mathiske	  NSW
7.Justin Reiske	  QLD
8.Matthew Upton	  WA
9.Alan Bransdon	  NSW
10.David Munro	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 3 CRITERIUM

1.Timothy Dalgliesh	  QLD	  36:55
2.Mark Laspina	  QLD
3.Stewart Campbell	  NSW
4.Matthew Ryan	  QLD
5.Peter Milostic	  NSW
6.Jon Gregg	  WA
7.Connor Hughes	  NSW
8.Matthew Fleming	  NSW
9.Danny Rosin	  ACT
10.Andrew East	  NSW

MEN CATEGORY 4 CRITERIUM

1.Ross West	  QLD	  34:41
2.Jeffrey Harris	  QLD
3.Wayne Thomson	  WA
4.Dean Heathcote	  VIC
5.Duncan Crosby	  QLD
6.Leigh Parsons	  VIC
7.Steven Rooney	  QLD
8.Paul Andrews	  QLD
9.David Adcock	  NSW
10.Attila Kiss	  QLD

MEN CATEGORY 5 CRITERIUM

1.Jason Ford	  QLD	  35:56
2.Harry Hanley	  VIC
3.Greg Dwiar	  QLD
4.Peter Lane	  QLD
5.Douglas Berry	  VIC
6.Wayne Sanchez	  NSW
7.Adrian Land	  QLD
8.Gary Reddacliff	  QLD
9.Glenn Cooper	  QLD
10.Robert Langridge	  ACT
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2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

MEN CATEGORY 6 CRITERIUM

1.Gerard Donnelly	  VIC	  35:25
2.Russell Newnham	  VIC
3.William Gordin	  VIC
4.Warren Biggs	  QLD
5.Peter Budd	  NSW
6.Silvio Teran	  NSW
7.Joe Maartens	  QLD
8.Bruce Phelps	  QLD
9.Phil Kesby	  QLD
10.Neil Duncan	  QLD

MEN CATEGORY 7 CRITERIUM

1.Craig Price	  QLD	  36:38
2.Paul Wild	  QLD
3.Francois Audibert	  QLD
4.Douglas Reynolds	  VIC
5.Guy Falla	  VIC
6.Frans De Beurs	  QLD
7.Ian Lovell	  NSW
8.Peter Jansen	  QLD
9.Neil Thornburn	  NSW
10.Ron Hewes	  QLD

MEN CATEGORY 8 CRITERIUM

1.Mick Patton	  QLD	  35:50
2.Ronald Hickson	  QLD
3.John Hampson	  QLD
4.Charlie Bennett	  QLD
5.Harry Rourke	  QLD
6.Robert Driver	  QLD
7.John Horsburgh	  NSW
8.Guy Page	  NSW
9.Bill Richardson	  QLD
10.David Ticky	  SA

MEN CATEGORY 9 CRITERIUM

1.Glen Ion	  QLD	  35:50
2.Colin Maciver	  NSW 
3.Maurice Mathe	  NSW
4.David Scully	  NSW
5.Jeffery Hartley	  QLD

MEN CATEGORY 10 CRITERIUM

1.Richard Spinks	  NSW	  35:57
2.Werner Rogosenski	  QLD
3.Geoff Wilson	  NSW

WOMEN CATEGORY 1 TIME TRIAL

1.Jessica Richards	  NSW	  31:23.11 
2.Victoria Veitch	  SA	   31:50.59
3.Nikolina Orlic	  QLD	   32:26.09
4.Amy Schramm	  QLD	   32:40.90 
5.Lisa Antill	  NSW	  33:11.17
6.Jena Grimsey	  QLD	   34:00.80

WOMEN CATEGORY 2 TIME TRIAL

1.Catriona Newell	  QLD	  30:59.74 
2.Bronwyn Copeland	  NZL	  31:59.26
3.Laurelea Moss	  QLD	  32:15.78
4.Chevonne Arrowsmith	  QLD	  32:41.42
5.Justine Barrow	  VIC	  32:56.48 
6.Corissa Smith	  QLD	  34:16.85

WOMEN CATEGORY 3 TIME TRIAL

1.Jessica Toghill	  QLD	   31:18.77 
2.Rachel Edwards	  QLD	   33:08.83
3.Ruth Strapp	  NSW	  33:30.56 
4.Melissa Robinson	  WA	   34:26.89
5.Summer Roberts	  WA	   34:55.45
6.Melinda Symon	  QLD	   35:27.32 
7.Deborah Hennessey	  NSW	  35:40.88

WOMEN CATEGORY 4 TIME TRIAL

1.Elizabeth Hall	  VIC	  32:08.71
2.Yoni Hope-Hodgetts	  NSW	  33:02.55 
3.Kirsty Flanagan	  NSW	  34:36.50 
4.Mandy Newman	  QLD	   34:53.20
5.Rachel Pearson	  NSW	  35:24.20 
6.Laura Brazier	  QLD	   37:58.90

WOMEN CATEGORY 5 TIME TRIAL

1.Anna Davis	  VIC	  29:29.23 
2.Linda White	  QLD	  32:18.39
3.Joanna Somerville	  NSW	  33:34.21
4.Dale Maizels	  VIC	   33:47.38 
5.Sally McKenna	  NSW	  34:53.65 
6.Kate Kelly-Duke	  QLD	   35:42.86
7.Julie Rappo	  QLD	   35:43.15
8.Anna Whitten	  NSW	  36:09.39
9.Ann Richardson	  NSW	  38:47.32

WOMEN CATEGORY 6 TIME TRIAL

1.Susan Tierney	 NSW	   34:25.15 
2.Cheryle Barker	 VIC	   34:37.92 
3.Jo Wauch	 NSW	   37:29.91

WOMEN CATEGORY 7 TIME TRIAL

1.Marg Noonan	 VIC	  35:33.43
2.Penelope Rowbotham	 NSW	  37:37.93
3.Robyn Baker	 VIC	  40:11.10

WOMEN CATEGORY 8 TIME TRIAL

1.Gaye Lynn	 NSW	   34:14.98
2.Rosemary Hasting	 NSW	   39:28.37

WOMEN CATEGORY 1 ROAD RACE

1.Lisa Antill	 NSW 	 2:33:08
2.Victoria Veitch	 SA
3.Amy Schramm	 QLD
4.Nikolina Orlic	 QLD
5.Jena Grimsey	 QLD

WOMEN CATEGORY 2 ROAD RACE

1.Justine Barrow	 VIC	  2:33:26
2.Laurelea Moss	 QLD 
3.Nicola Bullock	 QLD
4.Brooke Sheppeard	 QLD
5.Saskia Deckers	 QLD
6.Catriona Newell	 QLD
7.Bronwyn Copeland	 NZL
8.Corissa Smith	 QLD
9.Chevonne Arrowsmith	 QLD

WOMEN CATEGORY 3 ROAD RACE

1.Jessica Toghill	 QLD	  2:34:10
2.Deborah Hennessey	 NSW
3.Rachel Edwards	 QLD
4.Ruth Strapp	 NSW
5.Rebecca Snell	 NSW
6.Vickie Burr	 QLD
7.Melissa Robinson	 WA
8.Dyane Hannan	 QLD
9.Amanda Hetherington	 QLD

AUSTRALIAN MASTERS ROAD CHAMPIONSHIPS 
MURWILLUMBAH, NEW SOUTH WALES  25 - 27 SEPTEMBER 2015
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WOMEN CATEGORY 4 ROAD RACE

1.Nicky Rolls	  QLD	   1:42:46 
2.Rachel Pearson	  NSW
3.Kylie Baker	  QLD
4.Elizabeth Hall	  VIC
5.Trina Compton	  NSW
6.Mandy Newman	  QLD
7.Yoni Hope-Hodgetts	  NSW
8.Kirsty Flanagan	  NSW
9.Mireille Campbell	  NSW

WOMEN CATEGORY 5 ROAD RACE

1.Anna Davis	  VIC	   1:42:52
2.Linda White	  QLD
3.Dale Maizels	  VIC 
4.Jillene Harris	  NSW
5.Kirsty Wright	  QLD
6.Sally McKenna	  NSW
7.Lynda Behan	  NSW
8.Julie Rappo	  QLD
9.Kate Kelly-Duke	  QLD
10.Joanna Somerville	  NSW

WOMEN CATEGORY 6 ROAD RACE

1.Caroline Clarke	  VIC	  1:55:41
2.Cheryle Barker	  VIC
3.Jo Wauch	  NSW
4.Susan Tierney	  NSW 
5.Catherine Scott	  QLD

WOMEN CATEGORY 7 ROAD RACE

1.Marg Noonan	  VIC	  1:57:35
2.Penelope Rowbotham	  NSW  
3.Robyn Baker	  VIC

WOMEN CATEGORY 8 ROAD RACE

1.Gaye Lynn	  NSW	   1:55:39 
2.Rosemary Hastings	  NSW

WOMEN CATEGORY 1 CRITERIUM

1.Jena Grimsey	  QLD	  36:06
2.Victoria Veitch	  SA
3.Lisa Antill	  NSW
4.Lauren Leaver	  QLD
5.Nikolina Orlic	  QLD
6.Amy Schramm	  QLD

WOMEN CATEGORY 2 CRITERIUM

1.Laurelea Moss	  QLD	  36:06
2.Belinda Diprose	  NSW
3.Natalie Langer	  QLD
4.Justine Barrow	  VIC
5.Chevonne Arrowsmith	  QLD

WOMEN CATEGORY 3 CRITERIUM

1.Letitia Weatherhead	  QLD	  36:06
2.Martinette van Vuuren	  NSW
3.Ruth Strapp	  NSW
4.Vickie Burr	  QLD
5.Jessica Toghill	  QLD
6.Melissa Robinson	  WA
7.Deborah Hennessey	  NSW
8.Rebecca Snell	  NSW

WOMEN CATEGORY 4 CRITERIUM

1.Rachel Pearson	  NSW	  37:06
2.Kirsty Flanagan	  NSW
3.Kylie Baker	  QLD
4.Yoni Hope-Hodgetts	  NSW
5.Mandy Newman	  QLD

WOMEN CATEGORY 5 CRITERIUM

1.Sally McKenna	  NSW	  37:06
2.Lynda Behan	  NSW
3.Dale Maizels	  VIC
4.Anna Davis	  VIC
5.Joanna Somerville	  NSW
6.Kate Kelly-Duke	  QLD
7.Julie Barnett	  QLD
8.Anna Whitten	  NSW
9.Julie Rappo	  QLD
10.Gabi Buckley	  QLD

WOMEN CATEGORY 6 CRITERIUM

1.Susan Tierney	  NSW	  38:21
2.Cheryle Barker	  VIC
3.Jo Wauch	  NSW

WOMEN CATEGORY 7 CRITERIUM

1.Penelope Rowbotham	  NSW	  38:21
2.Marg Noonan	  VIC

WOMEN CATEGORY 8 CRITERIUM

1.Gaye Lynn	  NSW	  38:21
2.Rosemary Hastings	  NSW
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AUSTRALIAN TRACK CHAMPIONSHIPS
MELBOURNE, VICTORIA 28 - 31 JANUARY 2015

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

MEN SPRINT

1.Matthew Glaetzer	  SA
2.Peter Lewis	  NSW
3.Patrick Constable	  SA
4.Jacob Schmid	  VIC
5.Shane Perkins	  VIC
6.Mitchell Bullen	  NSW
7.Thomas Clarke	  ACT
8.Azizul Awang	  MAS
9.Jai Angsuthasawit	  SA
10.Luke Zaccaria	  WA

U19 MEN SPRINT

1.Derek Radzikiewicz	  SA
2.Conor Rowley	  VIC
3.Cameron Scott	  NSW
4.Christopher Bryan	  NSW
5.Harrison Lodge	  SA
6.Elliot Stacey	  ACT
7.Charles Hofman	  NSW
8.David Koroknai	  VIC
9.Stephen Ellul	  VIC
10.Jack Leigh	  QLD

WOMEN SPRINT

1.Anna Meares	  SA
2.Kaarle McCulloch	  NSW
3.Stephanie Morton	  SA
4.Caitlin Ward	  VIC
5.Rikki Belder	  SA
6.Breanna Hargrave	  SA
7.Madison Janssen	  QLD
8.Fatehah Mustapa	  MAS
9.Holly Takos	  SA
10.Stefanie 	 NSW	  
  Fernandez-Preiska	

U19 WOMEN SPRINT

1.Brooke Tucker	  QLD
2.Tahlay Christie	  WA
3.Courtney Field	  VIC
4.Brit Jackson	  VIC
5.Georgia Quick	  NSW 

MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Scott Sunderland	  WA	  1:02.359
2.Scott Law	  NSW	  1:02.609
3.Nicholas Yallouris	  NSW	  1:03.294
4.Braeden Dean	  VIC	  1:03.570
5.Jacob Waller	  NSW	  1:03.841
6.Nathan Graves	  QLD	  1:04.193
7.Mitchell Mulhern	  QLD	  1:04.203
8.Alexander Porter	  SA	  1:04.345
9.Firdaus Zonis	  MAS	  1:05.411
10.Luke Hammer	  QLD	  1:06.536

U19 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Rohan Wight	  SA	  1:03.529
2.Cameron Scott	  NSW	   1:03.995 
3.Thomas McFarlane	  VIC	   1:05.293
4.Christopher Bryan	  NSW	  1:05.916
5.Elliot Stacey	  ACT	  1:06.771
6.Thomas Bolton	  NSW	  1:07.461
7.Jacob Jones	  NSW	  1:08.446
8.Matthew Ireland	  SA	  1:10.645
9.Jonathan Lewis	  WA	  1:10.715
10.Che Thomas	  SA	  1:13.127

WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Rikki Belder	  SA	  35.297
2.Breanna Hargrave	  SA	  35.484
3.Catherine Culvenor	  ACT	  35.817
4.Holly Takos	  SA	  36.279
5.Rebecca Stevenson	  WA	  36.331
6.Madison Janssen	  QLD	  36.442
7.Quinn Cramer	  QLD	  36.725
8.Sheridan Spark	  QLD	  36.731
9.Imogen Jelbart	  NSW	  36.752
10.Jessica Laws	  ACT	  37.879

U19 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Courtney Field	  VIC	  35.549
2.Tahlay Christie	  WA	  35.903
3.Brooke Tucker	  QLD	  36.157
4.Brit Jackson	  VIC	  36.787
5.Kristina Clonan	  QLD	  36.879
6.Bridget Mullany	  NSW	  38.105
7.Tori Saunders	  NSW	  38.193
8.Georgia Quick	  NSW	  38.491

MEN KEIRIN

1.Jacob Schmid	  VIC
2.Mitchell Bullen	  NSW
3.Jai Angsuthasawit	  SA
4.Patrick Constable	  SA
5.Peter Lewis	  NSW
6.Matthew Glaetzer	  SA
7.Shane Perkins	  VIC
8.Braeden Dean	  VIC
9.Daniel Ellis	  SA
10.Thomas Clarke	  ACT

U19 MEN KEIRIN

1.Conor Rowley	  VIC
2.Thomas McFarlane	  VIC
3.Derek Radzikiewicz	  SA
4.Christopher Bryan	  NSW
5.Cameron Scott	  NSW
6.Kallum Parleviet	  VIC
7.Charles Hofman	  NSW
8.Nicholas Edwards	  NSW
9.Thomas Bolton	  NSW
10.Stephen Ellul	  VIC

WOMEN KEIRIN

1.Stephanie Morton	  SA
2.Anna Meares	  SA
3.Caitlin Ward	  VIC
4.Holly Takos	  SA
5.Stefanie 			 
Fernandez-Preiska	  NSW
6.Catherine Culvenor	  ACT
7.Breanna Hargrave	  SA
8.Deanna Bax	  VIC
9.Sheridan Spark	  QLD
10.Madison Janssen	  QLD

U19 WOMEN KEIRIN

1.Tahlay Christie	  WA
2.Brooke Tucker	  QLD
3.Bridget Mullany	  NSW
4.Brit Jackson	  VIC
5.Nicola Macdonald	  NSW
6.Georgia Quick	  NSW
7.Alicia Buchanan	  WA
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MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Alex Morgan	  VIC	   4:26.205
2.Tirian McManus	  NSW	   4:30.510
3.Daniel Fitter	  QLD	   4:24.235
4.Jackson Law	  NSW	   4:25.993
5.Glenn O'Shea	  SA	   4:27.668
6.Benjamin Harvey	  NSW	   4:28.232
7.Reece Tucknott	  WA	   4:31.978
8.Sam Welsford	  WA	   4:34.118
9.Gerald Evans	  TAS	   4:35.700
10.Joshua Harrison	  SA	   4:36.075

U19 MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Rohan Wight	  SA	   3:18.016
2.James Robinson	  TAS	   3:20.118
3.Kelland O'Brien	  VIC  
4.Alex Rendell	  WA	   caught
5.James Tickner	  VIC	   3:24.133
6.Jordan Louis	  ACT	   3:24.593
7.Samuel Jenner	  NSW	   3:26.151
8.Thomas McDonald	  VIC	   3:26.211
9.Hayden Dicocco-Grant	  TAS	   3:26.227
10.Thomas Allford	  SA	   3:27.238

WOMEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Amy Cure	  TAS	 3:33.320 
2.Rebecca Wiasak	  ACT	 3:36.252
3.Ashlee Ankudinoff	  NSW	 3:34.407
4.Annette Edmondson	  SA	 3:34.830
5.Melissa Hoskins	  WA	 3:39.614
6.Georgia Baker	  TAS	 3:41.803
7.Lauren Perry	  TAS	 3:42.243
8.Allison Rice	  ACT	 3:43.345
9.Elissa Wundersitz	  WA	 3:45.342
10.Macey Stewart	  TAS	 3:47.554

U19 WOMEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Danielle McKinnirey	  SA	   2:27.792
2.Tori Saunders	  NSW	   2:29.378
3.Nicola Macdonald	  NSW	   2:29.401
4.Chloe Moran	  SA	   2:31.704
5.Kristina Clonan	  QLD	   2:29.490
6.Amelia Crane	  ACT	   2:32.511
7.Niken Jefferies	  WA	   2:32.880
8.Bridget Mullany	  NSW	   2:33.107
9.Emma Chilton	  VIC	   2:33.403
10.Hollee Simons	  NSW	   2:34.732

MEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Scott Law	  NSW	 17:14.23  
2.Sam Welsford	  WA
3.Nicholas Yallouris	  NSW
4.Tirian McManus	  NSW
5.Alexander Porter	  SA
6.Luke Davidson	  SA
7.Stephen Hall	  WA
8.Daniel Fitter	  QLD
9.Jackson Law	  NSW
10.Gerald Evans	  TAS

U19 MEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Cameron Scott	  NSW	  11:40.53 
2.Christopher Bryan	  NSW
3.James Robinson	  TAS
4.Thomas McFarlane	  VIC
5.Nicholas Edwards	  NSW
6.Alex Rendell	  WA
7.Kelland O'Brien	  VIC
8.Hayden Dicocco-Grant	  TAS
9.Samuel Jenner	  NSW
10.Callum Pearce	  SA

WOMEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Lauren Perry	  TAS	  13:51.45
2.Sheridan Spark	  QLD
3.Quinn Cramer	  QLD
4.Imogen Jelbart	  NSW
5.Elissa Wundersitz	  WA
6.Alexandra Manly	  SA
7.Macey Stewart	  TAS
8.Allison Rice	  ACT
9.Alicia Macdonald	  NSW
10.Melanie Parker	  QLD

U19 WOMEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Bridget Mullany	  NSW	 10:31.93
2.Kristina Clonan	  QLD
3.Danielle McKinnirey	  SA	
4.Tayla Hunt	  NSW
5.Niken Jefferies	  WA	
6.Emma Chilton	  VIC
7.Tori Saunders	  NSW
8.Amelia Crane	  ACT
9.Nicola Macdonald	  NSW
10.Hollee Simons	  NSW

MEN POINTS RACE

1.Glenn O'Shea	  SA	   89 pts
2.Sam Welsford	  WA	   73 pts
3.Stephen Hall	  WA	   72 pts
4.Scott Law	  NSW	   69 pts
5.Miles Scotson	  SA	   51 pts
6.Alex Edmondson	  SA	   47 pts
7.Reece Tucknott	  WA	   10 pts
8.Daniel Fitter	  QLD	   2 pts
9.Sam Crome	  VIC	   -15 pts
10.Alexander Porter	  SA	   -20 pts

U19 MEN POINTS RACE

1.Alex Rendell	  WA	 17 pts
2.Michael Storer	  WA	 16 pts
3.Rohan Wight	  SA	 14 pts
4.James Tickner	  VIC	 13 pts
5.Kallum Parleveit	  VIC	 11 pts
6.James Robinson	  TAS	 11 pts
7.Kelland O'Brien	  VIC	 6 pts
8.Nicholas Edwards	  NSW	 5 pts
9.Darcy Pirotta	  WA	 5 pts
10.Adam Mitchell	  NSW	 4 pts

WOMEN POINTS RACE

1.Melissa Hoskins	  WA	   40 pts
2.Amy Cure	  TAS	   33 pts
3.Alexandra Manly	  SA	   33 pts
4.Annette Edmondson	  SA	   21 pts
5.Rebecca Wiasak	  ACT	  19 pts
6.Georgia Baker	  TAS	   5 pts
7.Allison Rice	  ACT	  1 pt

U19 WOMEN POINTS RACE

1.Chloe Moran	  SA	   31 pts
2.Hollee Simons	  NSW	   26 pts
3.Kristina Clonan	  QLD	   19 pts
4.Danielle McKinnirey	  SA	   19 pts
5.Bridget Mullany	  NSW	   13 pts
6.Tori Saunders	  NSW	   5 pts
7.Tayla Hunt	  NSW	   4 pts
8.Emma Chilton	  VIC	   3 pts
9.Nicola Macdonald	  NSW	   3 pts
10.Amelia Crane	  ACT	   0 pts
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2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

MEN TEAM SPRINT

1.New South Wales	 44.021 
  (Mitchell Bullen, Jamie Green, Peter Lewis)
2.South Australia	 44.392 
  (Jai Angsuthasawit, Patrick Constable,  
  Matthew Glaetzer)
3. Victoria	 45.806 
  (Braeden Dean, Emerson Harwood,  
  Shane Perkins, Jacob Schmid)
4.Malaysia	 46.510 
  (Shah Firdaus, Josiah Ng, Firdaus Zonis)
5. Australian Capital Territory	   47.454 
  (Thomas Clarke, Nathan Hart,  
  Jackson Williams
6. Victoria 2	 48.348 
   (Luke Daly, James Dann, Ryan Worn)

U19 MEN TEAM SPRINT

1.Victoria	    46.160 
  (David Koroknai, Thomas McFarlane,  
  Conor Rowley)
2.South Australia	    46.294 
  (Harrison Lodge, Derek Radzikiewicz,  
  Rohan Wight)
3.New South Wales	 46.960 
  (Christopher Bryan, Charles Hofman,  
  Cameron Scott)

WOMEN TEAM SPRINT

1.South Australia	 33.820  
  (Rikki Belder, Anna Meares,  
  Stephanie Morton)
2.Victoria	 34.344 
  (Courtney Field, Caitlin Ward)
3.Western Australia	 35.154 
  (Rebecca Stevenson, Tahlay Christie)
4.Queensland 1	 35.481 
  (Madison Janssen, Brooke Tucker)
5.New South Wales	 35.978 
  (Rebecca Borgo, Stefanie Fernandez-Preiska)
6. Queensland 2	 36.243 
  (Quinn Cramer, Sheridan Spark)

MEN TEAM PURSUIT

1.South Australia 1		    3:59.331 
  (Alex Edmondson, Alexander Porter,  
  Callum Scotson, Miles Scotson)
2.Team Budget Forklifts		   4:02.559 
  (Mitchell Mulhern, Jack Bobridge,  
  Luke Davison, Glenn O'Shea,  
  Scott Sunderland)
3.New South Wales 1		    4:01.081 
  (Benjamin Harvey, Jackson Law, Scott Law,  
  Tirian McManus, Nicholas Yallouris)
4.Western Australia		   4:06.212 
  (Stephen Hall, Reece Tucknott,  
  Sam Welsford, Alex Rendell, Michael Storer)

U19 MEN TEAMS PURSUIT

1.South Australia 2		  4:15.656 
  (Thomas Allford, Ethan Egglestone,  
  James Higginson, Rohan Wight)
2.New South Wales 2		    4:21.257 
  (Sam Cox, Nicholas Edwards, Samuel Jenner, 
  Adam Mitchell, Joshua Toovey)
3.Victoria 2		   
  (Thomas McDonald, Kelland O'Brien,  
  Kallum Parlevliet, James Tickner)

WOMEN TEAM PURSUIT

1.Tasmania 		  4:28.339	     
  (Georgia Baker, Amy Cure, Lauren Perry,  
  Macey Stewart)
2.South Australia		   4:29.353 
  (Annette Edmondson, Alexandra Manly,  
  Danielle McKinnirey, Chloe Moran)
3.Australian Capital Territory	  
  (Allison Rice, Kimberley Wells,  
  Rebecca Wiasak, Amelia Crane)

U19 WOMEN TEAMS PURSUIT

1.New South Wales		   
  (Tayla Hunt, Nicola Macdonald,  
  Bridget Mullany, Tori Saunders)

U19 MEN MADISON

1.Nicholas Edwards/	 NSW	  
  Samuel Jenner	  
2.Adam Mitchell/	 NSW	  
  Joshua Toovey	  
3.Alex Rendell/	 WA	  
  Michael Storer	  
4.James Higginson/	 SA	  
  Rohan Wight	  
5.Hayden Dicocco-Grant/	 TAS	  
  James Robinson 	
6.Thomas Bolton/	 NSW	  
  Jacob Jones	
7.Thomas Allford/	 SA	  
  Callum Pearce	
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AUSTRALIAN  OMINIUM CHAMPIONSHIPS
MELBOURNE, VICTORIA 18-19 DECEMBER 2014

MEN OMNIUM

1.Alexander Edmondson	  SA	   242pts
2.Glenn O'Shea	  SA	   198pts
3.Miles Scotson	  SA	   185pts
4.Nicholas Yallouris	  NSW	   177pts
5.Sam Welsford	  WA	   172pts
6.Mitchell Mulhern	  QLD	   167pts
7.Jackson Law	  NSW	   161pts
8.Daniel Fitter	  QLD	   156pts
9.Alexander Porter	  SA	   142pts
10.Callum Scotson	  SA	   132pts

U19 MEN OMNIUM

1.Rohan Wight	  SA	   197pts
2.Alex Rendell	  WA	   174pts
3.Cameron Scott	  NSW	   174pts
4.Thomas McFarlane	  VIC	   169pts
5.James Robinson	  TAS	   154pts
6.Darcy Pirotta	  WA	   144pts
7.Hayden Dicocco-Grant	  TAS	   123pts
8.Jordan Louis	  ACT	   106pts
9.Joshua Toovey	  NSW	   105pts
10.James Tickner	  VIC	   101pts

WOMEN OMNIUM

1.Ashlee Ankudinoff	  NSW	   231pts
2.Kimberley Wells	  ACT	   195pts
3.Georgia Baker	  TAS	   192pts
4.Alexandra Manly	  SA	   183pts
5.Sheridan Spark	  QLD	   171pts
6.Elissa Wundersitz	  WA	   168pts
7.Lauren Perry	  TAS	   167pts
8.Emily McRedmond	  WA	   166pts
9.Quinn Cramer	  QLD	   160pts
10.Macey Stewart	  TAS	   152pts

U19 WOMEN OMNIUM

1.Danielle McKinnirey	  SA	   200pts
2.Brooke Tucker	  QLD	   200pts
3.Bridget Mullany	  NSW	   184pts
4.Nicola Macdonald	  NSW	   177pts
5.Kristina Clonan	  QLD	   169pts
6.Chloe Moran	  SA	   167pts
7.Tori Saunders	  NSW	   162pts
8.Jaime Gunning	  QLD	   145pts
9.Hollee Simons	  NSW	   141pts
10.Emma Chilton	  VIC	   138pts
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AUSTRALIAN PARA-CYCLING TRACK NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS
MELBOURNE, VICTORIA  18 - 19 DECEMBER 2014

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

C5 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Alistair Donohoe	 VIC	   1:06.450
2.Kyle Bridgewood	 QLD	   1:11.316

C4 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Ben Ellen	  QLD	   1:12.743
2.Benjamin Swain	  NSW	   1:18.014

C3 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.David Nicholas	 QLD	  1:10.221
2.Gordon Allan	 NSW	  1:24.314

C2 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Andrew Falconer	 NSW	   1:27.327
2.Gabriel Bouris	 VIC	   1:45.915

C5 MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Alistair Donohoe	  VIC	   4:33.487 
2.Michael Gallagher	  VIC	   4:34.523
3.Kyle Bridgewood	  QLD	   4:46.944

C4 MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Benjamin Swain	 NSW	  5:22.43
2.Ben Ellen	 QLD	   5:28.32

C3 MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.David Nicholas	 QLD	   3:35.267
2.Gordon Allan	 NSW	   4:15.098

C2 MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Andrew Falconer	  NSW	  4:23.034
2.Gabriel Bouris	  VIC	  5:29.271

C4 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Susan Powell	 ACT	   40.955
2.Alexandra Green	 NSW	   43.761
3.Hannah MacDougall	 VIC	   45.200

C3 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Simone Kennedy	 NSW	   44.010

C4 WOMEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Susan Powell	  ACT	  4:09.956
2.Alexandra Green	  NSW 
3.Hannah MacDougall	  VIC

C3 WOMEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Simone Kennedy	 NSW	  4:20.071

MEN'S TANDEM SPRINT

1.Paul Kennedy/	 ACT	  10.569	  
  Thomas Clarke	
2.Brad Henderson/	 SA	  10.789	  
  Thomas Drizners	
3.Max Bergmann/	 WA	  11.115	  
  Chris Pratley	
4.Tyson Cluse/	 SA	  11.930	  
  Dean Bennedetti	

MEN'S TANDEM TIME TRIAL

1.Matt Formston/	 NSW	   1:04.239	   
  Michael Curran	
2.Brad Henderson/	 SA	  1:05.166	  
  Thomas Drizners	
3.Paul Kennedy/	 ACT	  1:05.455	  
  Thomas Clarke	
4.Bryce Lindores/	 QLD/TAS	 1:06.954	  
  Mark Jamieson	
5.Zachariah Clarkson/	 QLD	  1:08.732	  
  Aden de Jager	
6.Max Bergmann/	 WA	  1:11.108	  
  Chris Pratley	
7.Kieran Murphy/	 SA	 1:11.673	  
  Lloyd Townsend	
8.Tyson Cluse/	 SA	 1:13.830	  
  Dean Bennedetti	

MEN'S TANDEM PURSUIT

1.Matt Formston/	 NSW	   4:20.399	  
  Michael Curran	  
2.BryceLindores/	 QLD/TAS  4:33.261	  
  Mark Jamieson	  
3.Brad Henderson/	 SA	   4:38.724 
  Thomas Drizners	  
4.Zachariah Clarkson/	 QLD	   4:45.725	  
  Aden de Jager	
5.Kieran Murphy/	 SA	   5:01.059	  
  Lloyd Townsend	  
6.Tyson Cluse/	 SA	   5:28.993	  
  Dean Bennedetti

WOMEN'S TANDEM SPRINT

1.Rachel Henderson/	 SA	    12.254	  
  Carla Franson	
2.Felicity Johnson/	 SA/ACT	   12.282	  
  Ailie McDonald		   

WOMEN'S TANDEM TIME TRIAL

1.Rachel Henderson/	 SA	   1:13.364	  
  Carla Franson	
2.Lindy Hou/	 ACT	   1:14.814	  
  Kerry Knowler	
3.Jessica Gallagher/	 VIC/WA	  1:15.420	  
  Jessica Allen	

WOMEN'S TANDEM PURSUIT

1.Rachel Henderson/	 SA	   3:52.845	  
  Carla Franson	  
2.Lindy Hou/	 ACT	   3:54.426	  
  Kerry Knowler	   
3.Jessica Gallagher/	 VIC/WA   3:55.529	  
  Jessica Allen	  
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MADISON CHAMPIONSHIPS
MELBOURNE, VICTORIA  20 DECEMBER 2014

MEN MADISON

1.Nicholas Yallouris/	 NSW	   59:39.61	  
  Jackson Law	  
2.Glenn O'Shea/	 SA	  
  Jack Bobridge	  
3.Achim Burkart GER/	 AUT	  
  Andreas Graf	  
4.Callum Scotson SA/	 QLD	  
  Daniel Fitter	  
5.Alexander Edmondson/	 SA	  
  Miles Scotson	  
6.Damien Howson SA/	 CZE	  
  Martin Hacecky	  
7.Leigh Howard VIC/	 WA	  
  Cameron Meyer	  
8.Samuel Welsford WA/	 SA	  
  Rohan Wight	  
9.Haydn Bradbury/	 VIC	  
  Tyler Spurrell	  
10.Christian Grassman/	 GER	  
  Marcel Kalz	  

WOMEN MADISON

1.Annette Edmondson/	 SA	   31:37.51	  
  Jessica Mundy	  
2.Macey Stewart/	 TAS	  
  Georgia Baker	  
3.Imogen Jelbart/	 NSW	  
  Ashlee Ankudinoff	  
4.Alexandra Manly SA/	 TAS	  
  Lauren Perry	  
5.Chloe Moran SA/	 VIC	  
  Lauretta Hanson	  
6.Quinn Cramer/	 QLD	  
  Brooke Tucker	  
7.Tayla Evans VIC/	 QLD	  
  Hayley Jones	  
8.Bridget Mullany/	 NSW	  
  Nichola Macdonald	  
9.Kimberly Wells/	 ACT	  
  Jessie MacLean	  
10.Alexandria Nicholls/	 ACT	  
  Allison Rice	  
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U17 MEN SPRINT

1.Kai Chapman	 NSW
2.Alistair Barr	 SA
3.Kye Bonser	 WA
4.James Brister	 SA
5.Craig Wiggins	 WA
6.Lachlan Mathers	 QLD
7.Oscar Hourn	 NSW
8.Ronin Munro	 TAS
9.Matthew Richardson	 WA
10.Nathan Bof	 VIC

U15 MEN SPRINT

1.Graeme Frislie	 VIC
2.Luke Ensor	 NSW
3.Charles Wright	 QLD
4.Ryan Lawson	 TAS
5.Timothy Butler	 VIC
6.Lewis Walker	 SA
7.John Trovas	 NSW
8.Kirk Cleaven	 NSW
9.Samuel Buckell	 VIC
10.Joshua Heather	 VIC

U17 WOMEN SPRINT

1.Lara Tucker	 QLD
2.Alana Field	 VIC
3.Chelsea Oaten	 NSW
4.Natasha Mullany	 NSW
5.Selina Ho	 NSW
6.Rihana Pezaj	 WA
7.Delilah Ryan	 SA
8.Chloe Brewer	 QLD
9.Samantha Nicholls	 ACT
10.Alice Culling	 VIC

U15 WOMEN SPRINT

1.Eliza Dowell	 QLD
2.Kate Vickers	 NSW
3.Emma Green	 QLD
4.Olivia Wheeler	 SA
5.Sharni Morley	 VIC
6.Lauren Robards	 ACT
7.Dharlia Haines	 WA
8.Tasmin Davies	 NSW
9.Amber Lyons	 VIC
10.Alysha Torr	 QLD

U17 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Godfrey Slattery	 VIC	  33.566
2.Kai Chapman	 NSW	  33.852
3.Isaac Buckell	 VIC	  34.060
4.Kye Bonser	 WA	  34.280
5.Alistair Barr	 SA	  34.365
6.Ronin Munro	 TAS	  34.430
7.Matthew Rice	 ACT	  34.456
8.Braden O'Shea	 SA	  34.712 
9.Matthew Richardson	 WA	  34.830
10.Oscar Hourn	 NSW	  34.870

U15 MEN TIME TRIAL

1.Graeme Frislie	 VIC	  35.653
2.Luke Ensor	 NSW	  36.871
3.Kirk Cleaven	 NSW	  36.940
4.Timothy Butler	 VIC	  36.956
5.Ryan Lawson	 TAS	  36.982
6.John Trovas	 NSW	  37.342
7.Samuel Buckell	 VIC	  37.383
8.Charles Wright	 QLD	  37.650
9.Lachlan Devine	 QLD	  37.722
10.Brodie Aamodt	 WA	  37.900

U17 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Jade Haines	 WA	  36.702
2.Alana Field	 VIC	  36.996
3.Lara Tucker	 QLD	  37.285
4.Chelsea Oaten	 NSW	  37.713
5.Natasha Mullany	 NSW	  37.837
6.Selina Ho	 NSW	  37.931
7.Morgan Gillon	 TAS	  38.197
8.Chloe Brewer	 QLD	  38.233
9.Renee Dykstra	 TAS	  38.615
10.Delilah Ryan	 SA	  38.716

U15 WOMEN TIME TRIAL

1.Ashlee Jones	 NSW	  40.383
2.Tasmin Davies	 NSW	  40.820
3.Sharni Morley	 VIC	  41.006
4.Dharlia Haines	 WA	   41.018
5.Kate Vickers	 NSW	  41.078
6.Emma Green	 QLD	  41.099
7.Lauren Robards	 ACT	  41.185
8.Amelia Miles	 ACT	  41.389
9.Danielle Ruff	 QLD	  41.489
10.Eliza Dowell	 QLD	  41.493

U17 MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Godfrey Slattery	 VIC	   2:18.571
2.Riley Hart	 VIC	   2:21.139
3.Cooper Sayers	 SA	   2:21.406
4.Mitchell Wright	 NSW	   2:22.429
5.Isaac Buckell	 VIC	   2:21.464
6.Zack Gilmore	 TAS	   2:22.432
7.Matthew Rice	 ACT	   2:22.445
8.Craig Wiggins	 WA	   2:23.492
9.Jarrad Drizners	 SA	   2:23.695
10.Braden O'Shea	 SA	   2:23.774

U15 MEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Graeme Frislie	 VIC	  2:35.148
2.Luke Ensor	 NSW	  2:37.004
3.James Moriarty	 QLD	   2:36.486
4.Lewis Walker	 SA	   2:40.857
5.Will McClennon	 NSW	   2:37.975
6.Joshua Heather	 VIC	   2:38.557
7.Harry Morgan	 VIC	   2:38.841
8.Brandon Hutton	 QLD	   2:39.086
9.Lachlan Devine	 QLD	   2:39.418
10.Eddy Calvert	 TAS	   2:39.851

U17 WOMEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Jade Haines	 WA	   2:30.830 
2.Maeve Moroney-Plouffe	 SA	   2:41.139
3.Morgan Gillon	 TAS	   2:38.062
4.Alice Culling	 VIC	   2:38.596
5.Chloe Heffernan	 NSW	   2:38.769
6.Telyka Agius	 SA	   2:41.636
7.Alexandra Martin-Wallace	 QLD	  2:42.355 	
8.Georgia O'Rourke	 VIC	  2:42.751
9.Renee Dykstra	 TAS	  2:43.824
10.Laura Jones	 NSW	  2:45.314

U15 WOMEN INDIVIDUAL PURSUIT

1.Olivia Wheeler	  SA	  2:48.279
2.Ashlee Jones	  NSW	  2:49.194
3.Emma Green	  QLD	  2:48.473
4.Lauren Robards	  ACT	  2:48.629
5.Isla Bradbury	  VIC	  2:51.288
6.Dharlia Haines	  WA	 2:52.358
7.Neve Bradbury	  VIC	  2:52.578
8.Danielle Ruff	  QLD	  2:52.767
9.Amelia Miles	  ACT	  2:53.249
10.Lilianne McClimont	  VIC	  2:54.496
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U17 MEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Riley Hart	 VIC	   9:14.11
2.Patrick Butler	 VIC
3.Godfrey Slattery	 VIC
4.Craig Wiggins	 WA
5.Cooper Sayers	 SA
6.Mitchell Wright	 NSW
7.Kye Bonser	 WA
8.Jarrad Drizners	 SA
9.Ainsleigh Gray	 TAS
10.Bailey Goltz	 QLD

U15 MEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Graeme Frislie	 VIC	  6:57.80
2.Timothy Butler	 VIC
3.James Moriarty	 QLD
4.Samuel Buckell	 VIC
5.Luke Ensor	 NSW
6.John Trovas	 NSW
7.Charles Wright	 QLD
8.Kurt Eather	 NSW
9.Mackenzie Edwardson	 ACT
10.Cameron McPherson	 TAS

U17 WOMEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Jade Haines	 WA	  6:51.26
2.Sarah Gigante	 VIC
3.Lara Tucker	 QLD
4.Alana Field	 VIC
5.Alexandra 	 QLD	  
  Martin-Wallace	  
6.Morgan Gillon	 TAS
7.Natasha Mullany	 NSW
8.Emily Hardcastle	 QLD
9.Renee Dykstra	 TAS
10.Samantha Nicholls	 ACT

U15 WOMEN SCRATCH RACE

1.Emma Green	 QLD	   7:15.73 
2.Olivia Wheeler	 SA
3.Eliza Dowell	 QLD
4.Ashlee Jones	 NSW
5.Neve Bradbury	 VIC
6.Alysha Torr	 QLD
7.Isabella Flint	 TAS
8.Dharlia Haines	 WA
9.Lauren Robards	 ACT
10.Tasmin Davies	 NSW

U17 MEN POINTS RACE

1.Riley Hart	  VIC
2.Mitchell Wright	  NSW
3.Zack Gilmore	  TAS
4.Jarrad Drizners	  SA
5.Cooper Sayers	  SA
6.Bailey Marshall	  ACT
7.Matthew Rice	  ACT
8.Zachary Marshall	  NSW
9.Kieran Scott	  WA
10.Ainsleigh Gray	  TAS

U15 MEN POINTS RACE

1.Graeme Frislie	  VIC
2.Charles Wright	  QLD
3.Luke Ensor	  NSW
4.Cameron McPherson	  TAS
5.Lewis Walker	  SA
6.Mackenzie Edwardson	  ACT
7.Hugo Greenhill	  QLD
8.Harry Morgan	  VIC
9.Will McClennon	  NSW
10.Brandon Hutton	  QLD

U17 WOMEN POINTS RACE

1.Jade Haines	  WA
2.Natasha Mullany	  NSW
3.Chloe Heffernan	  NSW
4.Alexandra Martin-Wallace	 QLD
5.Georgia O'Rourke	  VIC
6.Morgan Gillon	  TAS
7.Maeve Moroney-Plouffe	  SA 
8.Sarah Gigante	  VIC
9.Lauren Wilshusen	  WA
10.Emily Hardcastle	  QLD

U15 WOMEN POINTS RACE

1.Olivia Wheeler	  SA
2.Emma Green	  QLD
3.Lauren Robards	  ACT
4.Alysha Torr	  QLD
5.Ashlee Jones	  NSW
6.Kate Vickers	  NSW
7.Laura Hodges	  WA
8.Tasmin Davies	  NSW
9.Neve Bradbury	  VIC
10.Dharlia Haines	  WA

U17 MEN KEIRIN

1.Godfrey Slattery	  VIC	   11.60
2.Craig Wiggins	  WA
3.Kye Bonser	  WA
4.Oscar Hourn	  NSW
5.Zack Gilmore	  TAS
6.Riley Riley Hart	  VIC

U17 WOMEN KEIRIN

1.Jade Haines	  WA	   12.81
2.Rihana Pezaj	  WA
3.Lara Tucker	  QLD
4.Selina Ho	  NSW
5.Chelsea Oaten	  NSW
6.Alana Field	  VIC
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U17 MEN TEAMS PURSUIT

1.Victoria	 3:17.790 
  (Isaac Buckell, Riley Hart, Ryan Koroknai,  
  Godfrey Slattery)
2.South Australia	 3:19.784	  
  (James Brister, Jarrad Drizners, 		   
  Braden O'Shea, Cooper Sayers)
3.New South Wales	 3:24.580 	  
  (Kai Chapman, Tom Lynch, Zachary Marshall,  
  Lachlan Scott, Mitchell Wright)
4.Western Australia	 3:26.796	  
  (Matthew Richardson, Kieran Scott, 	  
  Hayden Turton, Craig Wiggins)
5.Tasmania	 3:32.917	  
  (Zack Gilmore, Mitchell Gittus,  
  Ainsleigh Gray, Ronin Munro)
6.Queensland	 3:36.534	  
  (Alex Clairs, Lachlan Fearon, Bailey Goltz,	  
  Calan White)
7.Australian Capital Territory	 3:37.746	  
  (Johannes Beitzel, Bailey Marshall, 	  
  Matthew Rice, Dylan Weir)

U17 WOMEN TEAMS PURSUIT

1.Victoria	 3:44.416 
  (Alice Culling, Alana Field, Sarah Gigante,	   
  Georgia O'Rourke)
2.New South Wales	 3:46.100 
  (Chloe Heffernan, Laura Jones, 	  
  Natasha Mullany, Chelsea Oaten, 	  
  Jessica Saunders)
3.Queensland	 3:59.727  
  (Emily Hardcastle, Alexandra Martin-Wallace, 
  Courtney Patterson, Alysha Torr)
4.South Australia	 4:08.339 
  (Telyka Agius, Maeve Moroney-Plouffe,	   
  Delilah Ryan, Olivia Wheeler)
5.Australian Capital Territory	  4:04.885 
  (Emma Hannigan, Samantha Nicholls,	   
  Amelia Miles, Lauren Robards)
6. Western Australia	 4:11.959 
  (Lauren Wilshusen, Dharlia Haines, 	  
  Laura Hodges, Emma Lendrum)

U17 WOMEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.New South Wales 1	 36.809 	  
  (Natasha Mullany, Chelsea Oaten)
2.Queensland	 37.091	  
  (Chloe Brewer, Lara Tucker)
3.Western Australia 1	 37.51	  
  (Jade Haines, Rihana Pezaj)
4.New South Wales 2	 37.68	  
  (Selina Ho, Laura Jones)
5.South Australia	 38.409	  
  (Maeve Moroney-Plouffe, Delilah Ryan)
6.Victoria 1	 38.443	  
  (Alana Field, Charlotte Thompson)
7.Australian Captial Territory 1	    39.195	  
  (Emma Hannigan, Samantha Nicholls)
8.Victoria 2	 39.399	  
  (Georgia Cummings, Sarah Gigante)
9.Queensland 2	 41.167	  
  (Sophie Mcauley, Danielle Ruff)
10.Australian Captial Territory 2	   41.420	  
  (Amelia Miles, Lauren Robards)

U17 MEN TEAM SPRINT

1.Victoria1	 48.101 
  (Nathan Bof, Isaac Buckell, Godfrey Slattery)
2.Western Australia 1	 49.083 
  (Kye Bonser, Matthew Richardson, 	  
  Craig Wiggins)
3.South Australia	 49.394 
  (Alistair Barr, James Brister,  
  Jarrad Drizners, Braden O'Shea)
4.New South Wales 1	 49.893 
  (Kai Chapman, Oscar Hourn, Lachlan Scott)
5.Victoria 2	 50.360 
  (Riley Hart, Ryan Koroknai, Samuel McCabe)
6.Tasmania 1	 50.410  
  (Zack Gilmore, Ronin Munro, Ryan Lawson)
7.Australian Capital Territory 1	   50.794 
  (Johannes Beitzel, Bailey Marshall, 	  
  Matthew Rice)
8.New South Wales 2	 50.860 
  (Tom Lynch, Zachary Marshall,  
  Mitchell Wright)
9.Queensland 1	 51.615 
  (Lachlan Mathers, Nathan McCallum, 	  
  Ethan Sladden)
10.Queensland 2	 52.818 
  (Alex Clairs, Lachlan Fearon, Blake Quick)
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AUSTRALIAN MASTERS TRACK CHAMPIONSHIPS
SYDNEY, NEW SOUTH WALES  11 - 14 MARCH 2015

MEN MASTERS 6 TIME TRIAL

1.Gary Mandy	 NSW	   0:34.607
2.Michael Eastwood	 TAS	   0:37.176
3.Arch Davis	 QLD	   0:37.860
4.Mark Harris	 ACT	   0:37.915
5.Neil Matthews	 NSW	   0:39.412
6.Christopher Inkson	 NSW	   0:39.449
7.Stephen Reynolds	 QLD	   0:39.780
8.Graham Tierney	 NSW	   0:40.545

MEN MASTERS 7 TIME TRIAL

1.David Willmott	  NSW	   0:36.060
2.David Peacock	  SA	   0:38.834
3.Paul McKay	  NSW	   0:39.813
4.Anthony Burke	  NSW	   0:40.395
5.James Gray	  NSW	   0:40.959
6.Donald Huyser	  QLD	   0:41.516

MEN MASTERS 8 TIME TRIAL

1.John Dixon	 WA	   0:39.239
2.Les Bull	 NSW	   0:39.636
3.Jim Veal	 ACT	   0:39.961
4.Ronald Hickson	 QLD	   0:39.961
5.Keith Harris	 NSW	   0:50.737 
6.Peter Wykes	 VIC	   0:40.895

MEN MASTERS 9 TIME TRIAL

1.Hugh Gray	 NSW	  0:39.832
2.Michael Sales	 NSW	  0:41:891

MEN MASTERS 10 TIME TRIAL

1.Neil Wray	  VIC	  0:42.650
2.Martin Davis	  QLD	  0:44.200
3.Rodney Wagner	  NSW	  0:46.557
4.Desmond Kidd	  NSW	  0:47.152
5.Paul Bowker	  VIC	  0:47.248
6.Brian Kennedy	  WA	  0:49.271

MEN MASTERS 1 SPRINT

1.Cian Brennan	 WA
2.Damian Smith	 QLD
3.Jim Lewis	 NSW
4.Jeremy Bartlett	 NSW
5.Greg Desnica	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 2 SPRINT

1.Hamish Wright	 QLD
2.Craig Ferdinands	 VIC
3.Eric Huang	 QLD
4.Joel McWhinney	 SA
5.Rodney Chaplin	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 3 SPRINT

1.Michael Smith	 NSW
2.Stephen Storer	 QLD
3.Nathan McLachlan	 NSW
4.John Eder	 QLD
5.Darryl Thorncraft	 NSW
6.Mark Jewell	 NSW
7.Kevin Babakian	 NSW
8.Gavin White	 NSW
9.Stephen Storer	 QLD
10.Troy Fisher	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 4 SPRINT

1.Chris Murray	 NSW
2.Daniel Rickard	 ACT
3.Peter Szegedi	 SA
4.Sean Cleary	 VIC
5.Robbie Thompson	 ACT
6.Michael Bailey	 TAS
7.Wayne Hogben	 SA
8.Robert Walker	 QLD
9.Malcolm Magner	 QLD

MEN MASTERS 5 SPRINT

1.Geoff Stoker	 NSW
2.David Zdanowicz	 NSW
3.Roy Martin	 TAS
4.Brian Schmacker	 QLD
5.Karl Morris	 QLD
6.Tony Simonelli	 QLD
7.David Radzikiewicz	 NSW
8.Geoffrey Baxter	 NSW
9.Paul Murray	 NSW
10.Steven Jones	 ACT

MEN MASTERS 1 TIME TRIAL

1.Damian Smith	 QLD	  1:08.474
2.Jeremy Bartlett	 NSW	  1:10.578
3.Johnathan Millington	 NSW	  1:10.633
4.Jim Lewis	 NSW	  1:13.367
5.Matthew Ghanivandasl	 NSW	  1:17.025

MEN MASTERS 2 TIME TRIAL

1.Joel McWhinney	 SA	  1:09.351
2.Craig Ferdinands	 VIC	  1:10.003
3.Eric Huang	 QLD	  1:11.027
4.Hamish Wright	 QLD	  1:11.248
5.Jordan Thomas	 VIC	  1:11.275
6.Aiden Lyons	 NSW	  1:12.126

MEN MASTERS 3 TIME TRIAL

1.Michael Smith	 NSW	   0:50.738
2.Gavin White	 NSW	   0:50.810
3.John Eeder	 QLD	   0:51.098
4.Stephen Storer	 QLD	   0:51.509
5.Mark Jewell	 NSW	   0:51.739
6.Darryl Thorncraft	 NSW	   0:51.933
7.Kevin Babakian	 NSW	   0:53.271
8.Christian Vella	 NSW	   0:54.285
9.Stephen Stone	 TAS	   0:55.433

MEN MASTERS 4 TIME TRIAL

1.Chris Murray	  NSW	  0:48.741
2.Daniel Rickard	  ACT	  0:50.451
3.Matthew Glanville	  NSW	  0:52.363
4.Sean Cleary	  VIC	  0:52:502
5.Peter Szegedi	  SA	  0:52.632
6.Andrew Patten	  QLD	  0:52.932
7.Alex Frame	  NSW	  0:54.127
8.Jeff Morris	  NSW	  0:54.233
9.Wayne Hogben	  SA	  0:54.297
10.Michael Bailey	  TAS	  0:54.612

MEN MASTERS 5 TIME TRIAL

1.Geoff Stoker	 NSW	   0:34.469
2.Roy Martin	 TAS	   0:35.642
4.David Zdanowicz	 SA	   0:35.826
4.Peter Barnard	 NSW	   0:36.170
5.Karl Morris	 QLD	   0:36.171
6.Divid Radzikiewicz	 SA	   0:36.696
7.Geoffrey Baxter	 NSW	   0:37:298
8.Paul Murray	 NSW	   0:37.436
9.Brian Schmacker	 QLD	   0:37.639
10.Mark Tatarinoff	 NSW	   0:39.153
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MEN MASTERS 6 SPRINT

1.Gary Mandy	 NSW
2.Mark Harris	 ACT
3.Michael Eastwood	 TAS
4.Arch Davis	 QLD
5.Christopher Inkson	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 7 SPRINT

1.David Willmott	 NSW
2.Paul McKay	 NSW
3.David Peacock	 SA
4.Anthony Burke	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 8 SPRINT

1.John Dixon	 WA
2.Ronald Hickson	 QLD
3.Keith Harris	 NSW
4.Peter Wykes	 VIC
5.Les Bull	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 9 SPRINT

1.Hugh Gray	 NSW
2.Michael Sales	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 10 SPRINT

1.Neil Wray	 VIC
2.Martin Davis	 QLD
3.Rodney Wagner	 NSW
4.Desmond Kidd	 NSW
5.Paul Bowker	 VIC
6.Brian Kennedy	 WA

MEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.Gavin White/Chris Murray/ NSW	    0:48.064	 
  Geoff Stoker	
2.Nathan McLachlan/	 NSW	     0:49.764 
  Matthew Glanville/David Willmott	
3.Kevin Babakian/	 NSW	     0.50.283 
  Gary Mandy/Alan Townsend	
4.Joel McWhinney/	 SA	     0:51.643 
  David Radzikiewicz/David Peacock

MEN MASTERS 1 INDIV PURSUIT

1 David Kelly	 VIC	   3:23.645
2.Johnathan Millington	 NSW	   caught
3.Matthew Walker	 NSW	   3:50.721
4.Matthew Ghanivandasl	 NSW	   3:56.765

MEN MASTERS 2 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Aiden Lyons	 NSW	  3:37.950
2.Procter Morris	 NSW	  3:45.160
3.Oliver Dharma-Ratne	 NSW	  3:43.060
4.Jordan Thomas	 VIC	  3:45.195

MEN MASTERS 3 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Mark Jewell	 NSW	  3:35.740
2.Christian Vella	 NSW	  3:39.520
3.Ian Gardiner	 NSW	  3:41.854
4.Alex Arancibia	 NSW	  3:47.193
5.Mark Toyer	 NSW	  3:52.180
6.Stephen Stone	 TAS	  3:53.246
7.Darryl Thorncraft	 NSW	  4:01.984

MEN MASTERS 4 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Andrew Patten	 QLD	  3:32.643
2.Matthew Glanville	 NSW	  caught
3.Jayson Austin	 NSW	  3:37.189
4.Paul Andrews	 QLD	  3:40.784
5.Alex Frame	 NSW	  3:45.699
6.Andrew Giovanetti	 NSW	  3:48.347
7.Michael Bailey	 TAS	  3:57.299

MEN MASTERS 5 INDIV PURSUIT

1.David Zdanowicz	 NSW 	   2:24.285
2.Antony Bishop	 ACT	   2:25.185
3.Tony Simonelli	 QLD	   2:26.051
4.Jason Ford	 QLD	   2:26.121
5.Geoffrey Baxter	 NSW	   2:29.859
6.Richard Hood	 VIC	   2:29.911
7.David Radzikiewicz	 SA	   2:31.458
8.James Thornton	 NSW	   2:32.965
9.Keith Bennett	 NSW	   2:33.255
10.Steven Jones	 ACT	   2:36.619

MEN MASTERS 6 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Mark Harris	 ACT	  2:26.648
2.Arch Davis	 QLD	  2:34.068
3.Peter Verhoeven	 NSW	  2:32.011
4.Mark Windsor	 NSW	  2:32.641
5.Michael Eastwood	 TAS	  2:33.099
6.Mark Aarnold	 NSW	  2:34.661
7.Neil Matthews	 NSW	  2:35.116
8.Stephen Reynolds	 QLD	  2:40.296

MEN MASTERS 7 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Ivan Colig	 NSW	  2:30.181
2.Paul McKay	 NSW	  2:35.468
3.Michael Lawson	 NSW	  2:42.480
4.Donald Huyser	 QLD	  2:48.532
5.Graham Little	 VIC	  3:04.447

MEN MASTERS 8 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Ronald Hickson	 QLD	  2:46.350
2.Peter Wykes	 VIC	  2:46.540
3.Les Bull	 NSW	  2:52.731

MEN MASTERS 9 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Darrell Wheeler	 NSW	   2:39.187
2.Hugh Gray	 NSW	   caught
3.Michael Sales	 NSW	   2:50.575

MEN MASTERS 10 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Rodney Wagner	 NSW	   3:08.035
2.Martin Davis	 QLD	   3:11.435
3.Paul Bowker	 VIC	   3:37.541

MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT ALL AGES

1.Proctor Morris/	 NSW	   3:25.961 
  Daniel Hennessy/Mark Jewell/Scott Butler	 
2.Oliver Dharma-Ratne/	 NSW	   3:26.711 
  Alex Arancibia/Jayson Austin/	  
  Matthew Glanville	
3.Paul Andrews/	 QLD	   3:29.980 
  Andrew Patten/Jason Ford/Tony Simonelli	  
4.Johnathan Millington/	 NSW	   3:30.780 
  Matthew Walker/Andrew Giovanetti/		  
  Michael Probert
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MEN'S TEAM PURSUIT 150+

1.Chris Murray/	 NSW	   2:18.126 
 Geoff Stoker /Peter Barnard/Gary Mandy	
2.Geoffrey Baxter/	 NSW	   2:19.626 
  David Zdanowicz/David Willmott/		   
  Michael O'Brien	
3.Greg Brennan/	 NSW	   2:24.403 
  Neil Arnold/Paul Murray/Alex Verdi	
4.Steven Jones/Mark Harris/ ACT	   2:28.283 
  Gary Aisbitt/Michael Langdon

MEN MASTERS 1/2 SCRATCH RACE

1.Craig Ferdinands	 VIC
2.Hamish Wright	 QLD
3.Procter Morris	 NSW
4.Jordan Thomas	 VIC
5.Johnathan Millington	 NSW
6.Oliver Dharma-Ratne	 NSW
7.Joel McWhinney	 SA
8.Matthew Ghanivadasl	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 3 SCRATCH RACE

1.Mark Jewell	 NSW
2.Alex Arancibia	 NSW 
3.Ian Gardiner	 NSW
4.Darryl Thorncraft	 NSW
5.Stephen Stone	 TAS
6.Glen Barry	 NSW
7.Rowan Drummond	 NSW
8.Troy Fisher	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 4 SCRATCH RACE

1.Matthew Glanville	 NSW
2.Rob Hacker	 NSW
3.Gregory Brennan	 NSW
4.Andrew Patten	 QLD
5.Paul Andrews	 QLD
6.Jayson Austin	 NSW
7.Michael Probert	 NSW
8.Peter Carscadden	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 8 SCRATCH RACE

1.Walter Machado	 NSW
2.Keith Harris	 NSW
3.John Dixon	 WA
4.Ronald Hickson	 QLD
5.Peter Wykes	 VIC
6.Les Bull	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 9/10 SCRATCH RACE

1.Hugh Gray	 NSW
2.Michael Sales	 NSW
3.Rodney Wagner	 NSW
4.Martin Davis	 QLD
5.Neil Wray	 VIC
6.Brian Kennedy	 WA
7.Desmond Kidd	 NSW

MEN MASTERS 5 POINTS RACE

1.Tony Simonelli	 QLD	        28pts
2.Geoffrey Baxter	 NSW	        21pts
3.Neil Arnold	 NSW	        8pts
4.Jason Ford	 QLD	        5pts
5.David Radzikiewicz	 SA	        5pts
6.Terry Hollibone	 VIC	        4pts
7.Andre Clatden	 QLD	        3pts
8.Walter Dapcich	 VIC	        1pts
9.Richard Hood	 VIC	        0pts
10.Steven Jones	 ACT	        0pts

MEN MASTERS 6/7 POINTS RACE

1.Mark Harris	 ACT	         13pts
2.Ivan Colig	 NSW	         10pts
3.Gary Mandy	 NSW	         7pts
4.Arch Davis	 QLD	         7pts
5.Peter Verhoeven	 NSW	         3pts
6.Mark Windsor	 NSW	         3pts
7.Paul McKay	 NSW	       -10pts
8.Donald Huyser	 QLD	        -10pts
9.Graham Strait	 NSW	       -10pts
10.Edward Garnett	 ACT	        -10pts

WOMEN MASTERS 1 TIME TRIAL

1.Joanne Tralaggan	 NSW	   0:39.382
2.Jena Grimsey	 QLD	   0:40.325
3.Rebecca Frater	 NSW	   0:43.762

WOMEN MASTERS 2 TIME TRIAL

1.Rebecca Wheadon	 WA	    0:38.119
2.Jeanette Davidson	 QLD	    0:39.859
3.Sue Ann Woodwiss	 SA	    0:40.754
4.Adelia Reyneke	 WA	    0:40.788
5.Gabrielle Thomasz	 QLD	    0:40.935
6.Rebecca Sutherland	 VIC	    0:41.214
7.Rebecca Williamson	 VIC	    0:43.149
8.Jenny Bailey	 TAS	    0:43.190
9.Yvette Waterfall	 QLD	    0:44.532	

WOMEN MASTERS 3 TIME TRIAL

1.Jessica Laws	 VIC	   0:37.729
2.Janelle Smith	 TAS	   0:38.381
3.Renee Covington	 NSW	   0:38.414
4.Catherine Hooton	 NSW	   0:39.110
5.Stacey Fish	 NSW	   0:41.055
6.Peta Brill	 ACT	   0:41.595
7.Hallie Andrews	 QLD	   0:43.569
8.Melinda Symon	 QLD	   0:45.034
9.Sara Langridge	 WA	   0:45.977

WOMEN MASTERS 4 TIME TRIAL

1.Kerry Knowler	 ACT	   0:38.757
2.Gabrielle Belz	 VIC	   0:40.137
3.Megan Stevens	 QLD	   0:41.736
4.Karen Thornton	 NSW	   0:41.981
5.Karran Oates	 SA	   0:42.883
6.Sonya Keay	 QLD	   0:46.557
7.Angela Jones	 NSW	   0:50.101

WOMEN MASTERS 5 TIME TRIAL

1.Julie Barnett	 QLD	   0:38.935
2.Deborah Coulls	 NSW	   0:40.147
3.Sue Cruikshank	 QLD	   0:43.674
4.Patricia Rooke	 ACT	   0:44.516

WOMEN MASTERS 6 TIME TRIAL

1.Marian Renshaw	 NSW	       43.101
2.Meriel Custance	 SA	       44.530

WOMEN MASTERS 7 TIME TRIAL

1.Jennifer Sammons	 WA	    0:43.676

WOMEN MASTERS 8 TIME TRIAL

1.Rosemary Hastings	 NSW	   0:46.576

WOMEN MASTERS 2 SPRINT

1.Rebecca Wheadon	 WA
2.Sue Ann Woodwiss	 SA
3.Jeanette Davidson	 QLD
4.Rebecca Sutherland	 VIC
5.Gabrielle Thomasz	 QLD
6.Jenny Bailey	 TAS	
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WOMEN MASTERS 3 SPRINT

1.Janelle Smith	 TAS
2.Renee Covington	 NSW
3.Catherine Hooton	 NSW
4.Jessica Laws	 ACT
5.Hallie Andrews	 QLD

WOMEN MASTERS 4 SPRINT

1.Kerry Knowler	 ACT
2.Gabrielle Belz	 VIC
3.Megan Stevens	 QLD
4.Kerran Oates	 SA
5.Kirstie Dolton	 NSW
6.Sonya Keay	 QLD
7.Karen Thornton	 NSW

WOMEN MASTERS 5 SPRINT

1.Deborah Coulls	 NSW
2.Julie Barnett	 QLD
3.Patricia Rooke	 ACT
4.Sue Cruikshank	 QLD

WOMEN MASTERS 6 SPRINT

1.Marian Renshaw	 NSW
2.Meriel Custance	 SA

WOMEN'S TEAM SPRINT

1.Jessica Laws/             	 ACT	  0:37:305                                                  
  Kerry Knowler	
2.Renee Covington/    	 NSW	  0:37.709                                                          
  Catherine Hooton	
3.Gabrielle Thomasz/	 QLD	  0:39:230	  
  Julie Barnett	
4.Rebecca Sutherland/	 VIC	  0:39.245	  
  Gabrielle Belz

WOMEN MASTERS 1 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Joanne Tralaggan	 NSW	  2:34.573
2.Jena Grimsey	 QLD	  2:42.047

WOMEN MASTERS 2 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Adelia Reyneke	 WA	  2:42.517
2.Melanie Kilby	 NSW	  2:45.957
3.Yvette Waterfall	 QLD	  2:47.219
4.Rebecca Williamson	 VIC	  2:48.579
5.Jenny Bailey	 TAS	  2:50.711

WOMEN MASTERS 3 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Gemma Kernich	 SA	  2:38.787
2.Melinda Symon	 QLD	  2:48.804
3.Janelle Smith	 TAS	   2:47.349
4.Stacey Fish	 NSW	  2:49.279
5.Sara Langridge	 WA	  2:52.378

WOMEN MASTERS 4 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Kerry Knowler	 ACT	  2:33.929
2.Gabrielle Belz	 VIC	  2:43.495

WOMEN MASTERS 5 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Deborah Coulls	 NSW	   2:39.664
2.Joanne Troutman	 NSW	   caught

WOMEN MASTERS 6 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Meriel Custance	 SA	  2:49.006
*Marian Renshaw	 NSW	  3:05.499 
*Rider did not meet medal criteria

WOMEN MASTERS 7 INDIV PURSUIT

1.Jennifer Sammons	 WA	  2:46.932

WOMEN MASTERS 8 INDIV PURSUIT

*Rosemary Hastings	 NSW	  3:06.889
*Rider did not meet medal criteria

WOMEN'S TEAM PURSUIT ALL AGES

1.Toireasa Gallagher/	 NSW  	 2:40.872	  
  Renee Covington/Stacey Fish/	  
  Catherine Hooton	
2.Jeanette Davidson/	 QLD	 2:45.562	  
  Yvette Waterfall/Melinda Symon/	  
  Megan Stevens   	
3.Jenny Bailey/	 VIC   
  Rebecca Sutherland/Janelle Smith/		   
  Gabrielle Belz TAS/   	
4.Gabrielle Thomasz/	 QLD 	 caught	  
  Hallie Andrews/Sonya Keay/	  
  Sue Cruikshank	

WOMEN'S TEAM PURSUIT 120+

1.Joanne Tralaggan/	 NSW	         2:34.170 
  Martinette van Vuuren/Deborah Coulls	  
2.Rebecca Williamson/	 VIC  	 2:36.380	  
  Peta Brill/Kerry Knowler/ 
  Joanne Troutman/ACT/NSW/
3.Rebecca Wheadon/Sara 	 WA 
  Langridge/Jennifer Sammons	  
4.Angela Jones/	 NSW 	 caught 
  Marian Renshaw/Rosemary Hastings	

WOMEN MASTERS 1/2 		
SCRATCH RACE

1.Joanne Tralaggan	 NSW
2.Toireasa Gallagher	 NSW
3.Jena Grimsey	 QLD
4.Yvette Waterfall	 QLD
5.Jeanette Davidson	 QLD
6.Jenny Bailey	 TAS
7.Gabrielle Thomasz	 QLD
8.Rebecca Williamson	 VIC

WOMEN MASTERS 3 SCRATCH RACE

1.Gemma Kernich	 SA
2.Renee Covington	 NSW
3.Janelle Smith	 TAS
4.Hallie Andrews	 QLD
5.Martinette van Vuuren	 NSW
6.Sara Langridge	 WA

WOMEN MASTERS 4 SCRATCH RACE

1.Kerry Knowler	 ACT
2.Megan Stevens	 QLD
3.Kirstie Dolton	 NSW
4.Gabrielle Belz	 VIC

WOMEN MASTERS 5/6/7 	  
SCRATCH RACE

1.Deborah Coullis	 NSW
2.Julie Barnett	 QLD
3.Joanne Troutman	 NSW
4.Jennifer Sammons	 WA
5.Meriel Custance	 SA
6.Sue Cruikshank	 QLD
7.Marian Renshaw	 NSW
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AUSTRALIAN MTB CHAMPIONSHIPS
BRIGHT, VICTORIA  12 - 15 MARCH 2015

XCO ELITE MEN

1.Daniel McConnell	 VIC	  1:34:07.5
2.Brendan Johnston	 ACT	  1:34:53.2
3.Paul van der Ploeg	 VIC	  1:37:44.6
4.Cameron Ivory	 NSW	  1:39:20.8
5.Mark Tupalski	 ACT	  1:39:20.9
6.Adrian Jackson	 VIC	  1:42:25.8
7.Murray Spink	 VIC	  1:43:51.5
8.Travis Frisby	 SA	  1:43:52.6
9.Jack Lamshed	 VIC	  1:47:39.3
10.Steven Cusworth	 VIC	  1:49:02.3

XCO U23 MEN

1.Scott Bowden	 TAS 	 1:20:25.7
2.Chris Hamilton	 VIC 	 1:22:58.4
3.Sebastian Jayne	 VIC 	 1:23:08.7
4.Ben Bradley	 TAS 	 1:23:10.6
5.Reece Tucknott	 WA 	 1:23:25.2
6.Russell Nankervis	 VIC 	 1:23:48.3
7.Christopher Aitken	 NSW  	 1:25:13.4
9.Tom Goddard	 SA 	 1:25:32.1
9.Tasman Nankervis	 VIC 	 1:25:34.5
10.Jack Lavis	 ACT 	 1:28:58.9

XCO U19 MEN

1.Liam Jeffries	  VIC	  1:07:55.6
2.Bryan Dunkin	  NSW	  1:09:05.8 
3.Luke Brame	  NSW	  1:09:09.3
4.Alex Lack	  TAS	  1:09:10.1
5.Foley Lachal	  VIC	  1:10:35.7
6.Michael Harris	  NSW	  1:10:55.3
7.Callum Carson	  NSW	  1:11:02.4
8.Josh Hooton	  QLD	  1:11:15.6
9.Riley Morgan	  SA	  1:11:17.1
10.Samuel Rubery	  WA	  1:12:40.6

XCO ELITE WOMEN

1.Rebecca Henderson	 ACT	  1:29:20.4
1.Peta Mullens	 VIC	  1:30:04.7
3.Jenni King	 VIC	  1:33:25.8
4.Jenny Fay	 NSW	  1:35:33.1
5.Jodie Willett	 QLD	  1:36:59.3
6.Karen Hill	 VIC	  1:38:23.8
7.Rebecca Locke	 VIC	  1:38:57.5
8.Sarah Riley	 VIC	  1:38:57.8
9.Naomi Williams	 VIC	  1:39.59.9
10.Therese Rhodes	 SA	  1:40:43.0

XCO U23 WOMEN

1.Emily Parkes	 NSW	  1:17:15.5
2.Holly Haris	 NSW	  1:17:15.6

XCO U19 WOMEN

1.Megan Williams	 QLD	  1:05:05.2
2.Ebony Tanzen	 VIC	  1:07:55.3
3.Sara Mills	 NSW	  1:08:31.7

DH ELITE MEN

1.Troy Brosnan	 SA	  3:56.26
2.Connor Fearon	 SA	  3:57.34
3.Dean Lucas	 VIC	  3:59.44
4.Jack Moir	 NSW	  3:59.79
5.Mick Hannah	 QLD	  4:04.87
6.Liam Panozzo	 VIC	  4:06.43
7.Thomas Crimmins	 NSW	  4:06.98
8.Jordan Prochyra	 WA	  4:08.33
9.Graeme Mudd	 NSW	  4:08.60
10.Chris Kovarik	 QLD	  4:10.55

DH U19 MEN

1.Andrew Crimmins	 NSW	  4:04.78
2.Remy Morton	 QLD	  4:11.60
3.Max Warshawsky	 QLD	  4:12.45
4.Jackson Frew	 ACT	  4:14.13
5.Joel Willis	 NSW	  4:21.55
6.Harry Bush	 QLD	  4:23.31
7.Dan Booker	 TAS	  4:23.40
8.Hayden Stead	 VIC	  4:23.68
9.Jackson White	 VIC	  4:31.13
10.Chris Tye	 NSW	  4:33.42

DH ELITE WOMEN

1.Tracey Hannah	 QLD	  4:46.64
2.Claire Buchar	 QLD	  4:50.40
3.Tegan Molloy	 NSW	  5:02.52
4.Shelley Flood	 SA	  5:20.46
5.Sarah Booth	 NSW	  5:30.79
6.Kellie Weinert	 NSW	  6:01.64
7.Amanda Hewetson	 VIC	  6:51.43
8.Sarah Silverlock	 VIC	  8:23.39

DH U19 WOMEN

1.Ellie Wale	 NSW	  5:49.46
2.Sian A'Hern	 NSW	  7:06.67

XCE ELITE MEN

1.Paul van der Ploeg	 VIC
2.Tristan Ward	 ACT 
3.Cameron Ivory	 NSW
4.Christopher Aitken	 NSW
5.Daniel McConnell	 VIC
6.Brendan Johnston	 ACT
7.Bryan Dunkin	 NSW
8.Liam Jeffries	 VIC
9.Michael Harris	 NSW
10.Sebastian Jayne	 VIC

XCE OPEN WOMEN

1.Emily Parkes	 NSW
2.Rebecca Henderson	 ACT
3.Peta Mullens	 VIC
4.Holly Harris	 NSW
5.Tanya Faux	 VIC
6.Edwina Hughes	 TAS
7.Julia Boer	 VIC
8.Josie Simpson	 VIC

OT ELITE 20" MEN

1.Nathan Mummery	 VIC
2.Andrew Dickey	 VIC
3.Lachlan Sens	 VIC 
4.Morgan Dreissens	 QLD
5.Patrick Dillon	 NZL
6.Joel Nelson	 QLD

OT ELITE 26" MEN

1.Andrew Dickey	 VIC
2.Nathan Mummery	 VIC
3.Lachlan Sens	 VIC 
4.Jack Mullaly	 QLD
5.Jon Tollerud	 USA
6.Borys Zagrocki	 POL
7.Paul Gerloff	 VIC
8.Matt Harding	 VIC

OT WOMENS

1.Janine Jungfels	 QLD

115



AUSTRALIAN MTB MARATHON CHAMPIONSHIPS 
DERBY, TASMANIA  16 MAY 2015			

MARATHON ELITE MEN

1.Brendan Johnston	 ACT 	 4:43:53
2.Mark Tupalski	 ACT 	 4:45:33
3.Andrew Blair	 NSW 	 4:45:43
4.Shaun Lewis	 SA  	 4:57:05
5.Michael England	 QLD  	 5:03:31
6.Marc Williams	 ACT 	 5:05:12
7.Tom Goddard	 SA 	 5:05:38
8.James Downing, 	 ACT 	 5:06:16
9.Jeff Rubach	 QLD  	 5:07:16
10.Steven Cusworth	 VIC  	 5:11:10

MARATHON ELITE WOMEN

1.Jenny Blair	 NSW 	 4:11:32
2.Eliza Kwan	 ACT  	 4:21:14
3.Rebecca Locke	 VIC 	 4:32:40
4.Sarah Riley	 VIC 	 4:26:48
5.Karen Hill	 VIC 	 4:27:05
6.Melissa Aanset	 VIC  	 4:29:18
7.April McDonough	 VIC 	 4:35:45
8.Jody Bush	 TAS	 4:36:45
9.Edwina Huughes	 TAS 	 4:37:42
10.Briony Mattocks	 NSW 	 4:39:38

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS
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AUSTRALIAN CYCLO-CROSS CHAMPIONSHIPS			
ADELAIDE, SOUTH AUSTRALIA  8 - 9 AUGUST 2015

ELITE MEN

1.Paul van der Ploeg	 VIC 	 1:01:57
2.Chris Jongewaard	 SA 	 +0:13
3.Garry Millburn	 NSW 	 +0:21
4.Shaun Lewis	 SA 	 +0:46
5.Adrian Jackson	 VIC  	 +2:24
6.Lewis Rattray	 VIC 	 +3:20
7.Paul Redenbach	 VIC 	 +3:42
8.Warrack Leach	 VIC 	 +4:03
9.Tom Ovens	 VIC 	 +4:39
10.David Ransom	 VIC 	 +4:03

MEN U23

1.Christopher Aitken	 NSW 	 49:13
2.Tom Chapman	 SA 	 +0:18
3.Jack Hogan	 SA 	 +3:02
4.Nicholas Smith	 NSW 	 +3:12
5.Nicholas Norden	 VIC 	 +7:00
6.Tasman Nankervis	 VIC 	 -6 laps

JUNIOR U19 MEN

1.Ben Walkerden	 VIC  	 44:48
2.Noah Barrow	 NSW 	 +0:39
3.Kian Lerch-MacKinnon	 NSW 	 +0:49
4.Adam Blazevic	 VIC 	 +1:58
5.William Ockenden	 VIC 	 +6:53
6.Nicholas Njegac	 VIC	 -1 lap

ELITE WOMEN

1.Lisa Jacobs	 VIC 	 49:08
2.Melissa Anset 	 VIC 	 +1:18
3.Therese Rhodes	 VIC 	 +2:18
4.Josie Simpson	 VIC 	 +3:09
5.Rebecca Locke	 NSW 	 +3:38
6.Penny Hosken	 VIC 	 +4:21
7.Tessa Fabry	 VIC 	 +5:32
8.Jenny Macpherson	 SA 	 +6:07
9.Oenone Wood	 NSW 	 +6:13
10.Natalie Redmond	 SA 	 +6:43

WOMEN U23

1.Stacey Riedel	 SA 	 58:39
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2014  NATIONAL ROAD SERIES

2015
AUSTRALIAN RESULTS

ELITE MEN

1.Joseph Cooper, Avanti Racing Team 	68 pts
2.Timothy Roe, 	 65 pts	  
  Team Budget Forklifts 		
3.Brenton Jones, 	 56 pts	  
  Avanti Racing Team 		
4.Jesse Kerrison, 	 49 pts	  
  Team Budget Forklifts 		
5.Patrick Bevin, health.com.au-	 41 pts	  
  search2retain Cycling Team 	
6.Raphael Freinstein, CharterMason	 41 pts	  
  Giant Racing Team 		
7.Jack Haig, Avanti Racing Team 	 34 pts
8.Ben Dyball, Avanti Racing Team 	 33 pts
9.Mitchell Lovelock-Fay, 	 26 pts	  
  Avanti Racing Team 		
10.Mark O'Brien, 	 24 pts	  
  Avanti Racing Team 		

ELITE WOMEN

1.Ruth Corset, Holden Women's 	 93 pts	  
  Cycling Team 		
2.Ellen Skerritt, 		   
  Holden Women's Cycling Team 	 44 pts
3.Rebecca Wiasak, 	 37 pts	  
  Suzuki Brumby's 		
4.Janelle Crooks, 	  
  Holden Women's Cycling Team 	 37 pts
5.Lizzie Williams, 	 37 pts	  
  Specialized Securitor 		
6.Tessa Fabry, Jayco/	 35 pts	  
  Apollo VIS Women's Road Team 	
7.Kendelle Hodges, Jayco/	 29 pts	  
  Apollo VIS Women's Road Team 	
8.Alexandria Nicholls, 	 27 pts	  
  Suzuki Brumby's		
9.Ashlee Ankudinoff, 	 21 pts	  
  Specialized Securitor 		
10.Rebecca Heath, 	 21 pts	  
  Bicycle Superstore 	

MEN'S TEAM

1.Avanti Racing Team 	 222 pts
2.Team Budget Forklifts 	 145 pts
3.health.com.au-search2retain 	 122 pts	  
  Cycling Team 	
4.CharterMason 	 112 pts 
  Giant Racing Team 	
5.Satalyst Giant Racing Team 	 87 pts
6.African Wildlife Safaris 	 78 pts	  
  Cycling Team 		
7.Drapac Professional Cycling 	 53 pts
8.Wormall Civil CCS 	 51 pts
9.GPM Stulz	 22 pts
10.Jayco/John West/VIS 	 20 pts

WOMEN'S TEAM

1.Holden Women's Cycling Team 	 133 pts
2.Suzuki Brumby's 	 112 pts
3.Bicycle Superstore 	 104 pts
4.Specialized Securitor 	 73 pts
5.Jayco/Apollo VIS	 51 pts		
  Women's Road Team 		
6.Boss Racing Team 	 51 pts
7.Total Rush Hyster 	 32 pts
8.Arbitrage Racing Women's	 26 pts	  
  Cycling Team 		
9.BikeBug-NextGen Racing 	 21 pts
10.Building Champions Squad 	 15 pts	
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2014-2015 NATIONAL JUNIOR TRACK SERIES

UNDER 17 MEN

1.Godfrey Slattery	 VIC	  129 pts
2.Jarrad Drizners	 SA	  103 pts
3.Riley Hart	 VIC	  88 pts
4.Kai Chapman	 NSW	  59 pts
5.Mitchell Wright	 NSW	  42 pts
6.Lachlan Scott	 NSW	  34 pts
7.Patrick Butlier	 VIC	  30 pts
8.Isaac Buckell	 VIC	  28 pts
9.Braden O'Shea	 SA	  27 pts
10.Cooper Sayers	 SA	  27 pts

UNDER 15 MEN

1.Graeme Frislie	 VIC	  190 pts
2.Luke Ensor	 NSW	  83 pts
3.Timothy Butler	 VIC	  61 pts
4.Leon Pudebat	 VIC	  51 pts
5.Andrew Rigoni	 VIC	  48 pts
6.Lewis Walker	 SA	  43 pts
7.James Moriarty	 QLD	  37 pts
8.Joshua Brodie	 NSW	  35 pts
9.Bill Simpson	 VIC	  29 pts
10.Luke Britten	 NSW	  25 pts

UNDER 17 WOMEN

1.Jade Haines	 WA	  123 pts
2.Brooke Tucker	 QLD	  92 pts
3.Chloe Heffernan	 NSW	  78 pts
4.Natasha Mullany	 NSW	  78 pts
5.Sarah Gigante	 VIC	  51 pts
6.Chelsea Oaten	 NSW	  37 pts
7.Morgan Gillon	 TAS	  33 pts
8.Charlotte Thompson	 VIC	  28 pts
9.Selina Ho	 NSW	  27 pts
10.Georgia O'Rourke	 VIC	  27 pts

UNDER 15 WOMEN

1.Olivia Wheeler	 SA	  151 pts
2.Alysha Torr	 QLD	  127 pts
3.Katarina Chung-Orr	 SA	  119 pts
4.Kate Vickers	 NSW	  65 pts
5.Laura Hodges	 WA	  45 pts
6.Ashlee Jones	 NSW	  42 pts
7.Lilianne McClimont	 VIC	  31 pts
8.Neve Bradbury	 VIC	  29 pts
9.Isabelle Kelly	 SA	  26 pts
10.Amy Wight	 SA	  24 pts

TEAM RESULTS

1.Brunswick Orange 		  405 pts
2.Brunswick Purple 		  211 pts
3. Port Adelaide 		  208 pts
4.Blackburn 		  195 pts
5.Illawarra Orange 		  191 pts
6.WA Combine 		  176 pts
7.Queensland One 		  171 pts
8.Queensland Two 		  171 pts
9.ST George 		  166 pts
10.Kilkenny Red 		  142 pts

2015  NATIONAL CYCLO-CROSS SERIES

MEN

1.Christopher Aitken	 NSW	  765 pts
2.Tom Chapman	 SA	  672 pts
3.Paul Redenbach	 VIC	  619 pts
4.Shaun Lewis	 SA	  587 pts
5.Allan Iacuone	 VIC	  521 pts
6.Jack Hogan	 SA	  500 pts 
7.Paul van der Ploeg	 VIC	  467 pts
8.John Groves	 VIC	  459 pts
9.Chris Jongewaard	 SA	  380 pts
10.Garry Millburn	 NSW	  380 pts

WOMEN

1.Melissa Anset	 VIC	  750 pts
2.Josie Simpson	 VIC	  661 pts
3.Lisa Jacobs	 VIC	  600 pts
4.Therese Rhodes	 SA	  385 pts
5.Emily Parkes	 NSW	  180 pts
6.Oenone Wood	 NSW	  185 pts
7.April McDonough	 VIC	  175 pts
8.Jenny MacPherson	 SA	  170 pts
9.Penny Hosken	 VIC	  170 pts
10.Helene Blackwell	 ACT	  160 pts
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TEAM LISTINGS
TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
PARIS, FRANCE  18 - 22 FEBRUARY 2015

MEN		

Matt	 Glaetzer	 SA
Nathan	 Hart	 SA
Jack	 Bobridge	 WA
Luke	 Davison	 NSW
Alex	 Edmondson	 SA
Scott	 Law	 NSW
Peter	 Lewis	 SA
Mitchell	 Mulhern	 QLD
Glenn	 O'Shea	 SA
Shane	 Perkins	 SA
Jacob	 Schmid	 SA
Miles	 Scotson	 SA

WOMEN		

Ashlee	 Ankudinoff	 NSW
Amy	 Cure	 TAS
Annette	 Edmondson	 SA
Melissa	 Hoskins	 WA
Kaarle	 McCulloch	 NSW
Anna	 Meares OAM	 SA
Stephanie	 Morton OAM	 SA

Rebecca	 Wiasak	 ACT

OFFICIALS				    	  
Kevin	 Tabotta	 SA	 National Technical  
			   Director
Tim	 Decker	 SA	 Coach
Matthew	 Gilmore	 TAS	 Coach
Gary	 Sutton OAM	 SA	 Coach
Gary	 West	 SA	 Coach
John	 Keegan	 IRL	 Mechanic
Michael	 Winter	 SA	 Mechanic
Jason	 Bartram	 SA	 Sports Science
Nick	 Flyger	 SA	 Sports Science
Katie	 Slattery	 NSW	 Sports Science
Mark	 Fisher	 SA	 Doctor
Patrick	 Custance	 SA	 Physiotherapist
Davide	 Cappelletto	 ITA	 Soigneur
Berthy	 May	 SA	 Soigneur
Ken	 Dudek	 SA	 Administrator
Amy	 McCann	 VIC	 Media	
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ROAD WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
RICHMOND, USA  19 - 27 SEPTEMBER 2015

ELITE MEN		
Simon	 Clarke	 VIC
Rohan	 Dennis	 SA
Mitchell	 Docker	 VIC
Luke	 Durbridge	 WA
Simon	 Gerrans	 VIC
Adam	 Hansen	 QLD
Heinrich	 Haussler	 NSW
Mathew	 Hayman	 ACT
Michael	 Hepburn	 QLD
Michael	 Matthews	 ACT
Jay	 McCarthy	 QLD

U23 MEN				  
Harry	 Carpenter	 SA
Alistair	 Donohoe	 VIC
Jack	 Haig	 VIC
Nicholas	 Schultz	 QLD

Miles	 Scotson	 SA

ELITE WOMEN				   		

Tiffany	 Cromwell	 SA
Gracie	 Elvin	 ACT
Katrin	 Garfoot	 QLD
Lauren	 Kitchen	 NSW
Rachel	 Neylan	 SA
Loren	 Rowney	 QLD
Amanda	 Spratt	 NSW
Elizabeth	 Williams	 VIC

JUNIOR MEN		
Sam	 Jenner	 NSW
Michael	 Storer	 WA
Harrison	 Sweeny	 QLD

JUNIOR WOMEN		
Anna-Leeza	 Hull	 NSW
Jessica	 Pratt	 QLD

		

OFFICIALS		

Kevin	 Tabotta	 SA	 Technical Director
Greg	 Boorer	 ACT	 Team Manager
Bradley	 McGee OAM	 NSW	 Coach (Elite Men)
Martin	 Barras	 VIC	 Coach (Elite Women)
Gene	 Bates	 SA	 Coach (Elite Women)
James	 Victor	 QLD	 Coach (U23 Men)
Clay	 Worthington	 WA	 Coach (U19)
Fausto	 Oppici	 ITA	 Mechanic (Elite Men)
Wayne	 Nichols	 NSW	 Mechanic (Elite Women)
Patrick	 Ryan	 VIC	 Mechanic (Elite Women)
John	 Keegan	 IRL	 Mechanic (U23 Men)
Asier	 Atxa	 ESP	 Soigneur (Elite Men)
Sandra	 Nihodnae	 ESP	 Soigneur (Elite Men)
Mattia	 Bizzaro	 ITA	 Soigneur (U23 Men)
Goretti	 Font	 ESP	 Soigneur (Elite Women)
Russel	 Lenhoff	 NSW	 Soigneur (Elite Women)
Mark	 Fisher	 SA	 Doctor
Andrew	 Gerrans	 VIC	 Chiropractor
Sarah	 Blake	 NZL	 Administrator
Garikoytz	 Atxa	 ESP	 Bus Driver
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TEAM LISTINGS
BMX WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
ZOLDER, BELGIUM  21 - 25 JULY 2015

MEN - ELITE		

Anthony	 Dean	 SA
Corey	 Frieswyk	 QLD
Bodi	 Turner	 VIC
Sam	 Willoughby	 SA

WOMEN - ELITE		

Caroline	 Buchanan	 ACT
Melinda	 McLeod	 QLD
Lauren	 Reynolds	 WA

JUNIOR TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
ASTANA, KAZAKHSTAN  19 - 23 AUGUST 2015

MEN		

Kelland	 O'Brien	 VIC
Derek	 Radzikiewicz	 SA
Alex	 Rendell	 WA
James	 Robinson	 TAS
Conor	 Rowley	 VIC
Cameron	 Scott	 NSW
James	 Tickner	 VIC
Rohan	 Wight	 SA

WOMEN		  		

Tahlay	 Christie	 WA
Courtney	 Field	 VIC
Nicola	 Macdonald	 NSW
Danielle	 McKinnirey	 SA
Chloe	 Moran	 SA
Tori	 Saunders	 NSW
Brooke	 Tucker	 QLD

OFFICIALS		

Paul	 Brosnan	 SA	 Team Manager
Wade	 Bootes	 QLD	 Coach
Eric	 Haakonsen	 QLD	 Physiologist
David	 Hayes	 SA	 Physiotherapist

		

OFFICIALS		

Rik	 Fulcher	 NSW	 Team Manager
Matt	 Gilmore	 TAS	 Coach
Jason	 Niblett	 SA	 Coach
Christian	 Moore	 SWE	 Mechanic
Michael	 Winter	 SA	 Mechanic
Alanna	 Martin	 TAS	 Sports Science
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PARA-CYCLING TRACK WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
APELDOORN, NETHERLANDS  26 - 29 MARCH 2015

MEN		
Mick	 Curran	 NSW	 Pilot for Formston
Alistair	 Donohoe	 VIC	 C5
Matt	 Formston	 NSW	 B
Michael 	 Gallagher OAM	 VIC	 C5
Mark	 Jamieson	 TAS	 Pilot for Lindores
Paul	 Kennedy	 ACT	 B
Bryce	 Lindores	 QLD	 B
Nick	 Yallouris	 NSW	 Pilot for Kennedy

WOMEN				    		

Alex	 Green	 NSW	 C3
Breanna	 Hargrave	 SA	 Pilot for O'Connor
Simone	 Kennedy	 NSW	 C3
Brandie	 O'Connor	 ACT	 B
Sue	 Powell OAM	 ACT	 C4

PARA-CYCLING ROAD WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
NOTTWIL, SWITZERLAND  29 JULY - 2 AUGUST 2015

MEN		
Nigel	 Barley	 WA	 HC
Kyle	 Bridgwood	 QLD	 C4
Alistair	 Donohoe	 VIC	 C5
Michael 	 Gallagher OAM	 VIC	 C5
David	 Nicholas OAM	 QLD	 C3
Grant	 Nickel	 NSW	 H1
Stuart	 Tripp	 VIC	 H4

WOMEN				    		

Carol	 Cooke AM	 VIC	 T2
Alex	 Green	 NSW	 C3
Simone	 Kennedy	 NSW	 C3
Emilie	 Miller	 NSW	 H1
Sue	 Powell OAM	 ACT	 C4
Bianca	 Woolford	 SA	 T1

OFFICIALS		

Murray	 Lydeamore OAM	 SA	 Team Manager
Peter	 Day	 QLD	 Coach
Nick	 Formosa	 QLD	 Coach
Tom	 Skulander	 NSW	 Coach
Will	 Dickeson	 SA	 Mechanic
Peter	 Giessauf	 SA	 Mechanic
Michael	 Winter	 SA	 Mechanic
Keren	 Faulker	 ACT	 Physiotherapist
Berthy	 May	 SA	 Soigneur

		

OFFICIALS		

Murray	 Lydeamore OAM	 SA	 Team Manager
Peter	 Day	 QLD	 Coach
Nick	 Formosa	 QLD	 Coach
Paul	 Martens	 QLD	 Coach
Tom	 Skulander	 NSW	 Coach
Dan	 Brent	 NSW	 Mechanic
Peter	 Giessauf	 SA	 Mechanic
Peter	 Steggall	 VIC	 Physiotherapist
Kwan	 Eliza 	 ACT	 Physiotherapist
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OFFICE BEARERS AND STAFF
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

PATRON	 Peter Bartels AO

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT 

(Appointed 15 September 2014)

President/Chairperson	 Malcolm Speed AO

Director	 David Ansell

Director	 Matthew Dever

Director	 Linda Evans

Director	 Leeanne Grantham

Director	 Anthony Griffin

Director	 Justin Quill

Appointed Director	 Gerry Ryan OAM (Resigned 19 May 2015)

 
STATE PRESIDENTS

Australian Capital Territory	 Adrian Marshall (to 25 May 2015)

		  Lisa Keeling (from 29 June 2015)

New South Wales	 Tony Green (to 9 June 2015)

		  Peter Beaumont (from 9 June 2015)

Northern Territory	 Mandy Hargreaves (to 29 November 2014)

		  Ben Kaethner (from 9 August 2015)

Queensland	 Mike Victor OAM (to March 2015)

		  Greg Bateson (March - June)

		  David Cook (from June)

South Australia	 Lynette Collins (to 28/05/2015)

		  Harry Burke (from 28/05/2015)

Tasmania	 Noel Pearce

Victoria	 Glen Pearsall

Western Australia	 Daniel o’Donoghue

 
MANAGEMENT

Chief Executive Officer	 Nicholas Green OAM

Chief Financial Officer	 John McDonough

Chief Operating Officer	 Melinda Tarrant (to July 2015)

General Manager – Commercial	 Matthew Roberts

National Performance Director	 Kevin Tabotta 

General Manager – Participation & AustCycle	 Gareth Watkins 

General Manager – High Performance	 Paul Brosnan 

General Manager – Sport	 Rik Fulcher

		  Sean Muir (to May 2015)

General Manager – Events	 Steve Peterson (to March 2015)
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ADMINISTRATION

Executive Assistant	 Gillian Brewster

 
FINANCE		

Accounts Officer	 Sylvia Armstrong 

Finance Manager 	 Munira Rayan

Finance and Administration Manager	 Joanne Cameron (to March 2015)

 
MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS 

National Manager – Communications 	 Amy McCann 

Media Officer	 Lucy Hinchey (to June 2015)

Executive – Marketing and Communications	 Claire Brinkley (to March 2015)

MEMBERSHIP		

Administrator	 Liz Tonini

Administrator	 Carly Lennon

Administrator	 Todd Pengilly

Administrator	 Dean Coxall

PARTICIPATION		

National Participation Coordinator	 Alexandra Bright 

National Participation Coordinator - Junior Program	 Kieran Donohue 

National Coordinator - Coaching & Development 	 Emma Grant (part time)

National Participation Administrator	 Caitlin Turner (part time) 
 

EVENTS 

Venue Operations Manager	 Chris Ball

Cycling Operations Manager	 Adam Smith

Event Workforce Manager	 Jennifer Dwyer

Project Manager 	 Karin Jones (KSJ Events) (to February 2015)

Senior Project Manager	 Penny Matkin-Hussey (to March 2015)

Administration Coordinator - Events 	 Elizabeth Georgeson (to March 2015)
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NATIONAL COACHES 

National Performance Director	 Kevin Tabotta (all HP disciplines)
Track Sprint 	 Gary West (Senior Coach), Nick Flyger (Assistant Coach), Alex Bird (Scholarship Coach)
Track Endurance  	 Ian McKenzie (Senior Endurance Coach), Matthew Gilmore (Omnium Coach /Junior Director), 	  
	 Tim Decker (Men’s Track Endurance), Gary Sutton OAM (Women’s Track Endurance Coach)
Men’s Road 	 Bradley McGee OAM (National Director)
Men’s U23 Road 	 James Victor (Coach)
Women’s Road 	 Martin Barras (Senior Coach), Gene Bates (Assistant Coach)
BMX 	 Wade Bootes (Senior Coach)
Junior Track 	 Matthew Gilmore (Senior Coach), Jason Niblett (Sprint Coach)
Junior Road 	 Clay Worthington (Coach)
Para-cycling 	 Peter Day (Senior Coach), Tom Skulander (Assistant Coach)

NATIONAL SELECTORS

Track  	 Mark Fulcher, Murray Hall, Kevin Tabotta (NPD) and coaches:  Gary West (sprint) and Ian 
	 McKenzie (endurance); Tim Decker (endurance men); Gary Sutton (endurance women)  
	 and Matthew Gilmore (U19 men/women)
Road  	 Rik Fulcher, David McPartland, Kristy Scrymgeour (women), Kevin Tabotta (NPD)  
	 and coaches: Brad McGee (men), Martin Barras (women), James Victor (U23),  
	 Andrew Christie-Johnson (U23), Matthew Gilmore (U19 men/women)
Para-cycling  	 Peter Day (Coach), Glenn Doney, Nick Formosa, Kevin Tabotta (NPD)

NATIONAL TEAM MANAGERS

Road	 Greg Boorer
Track	 Kevin Tabotta
BMX	 Paul Brosnan
Junior Track	 Rik Fulcher
Para-cycling	 Murray Lydeamore OAM
		

HIGH PERFORMANCE STAFF

National Performance Director	 Kevin Tabotta
General Manager, High Performance	 Paul Brosnan
Para-cycling Performance Director	 Peter Day
National Junior Manager & Logistics	 Rik Fulcher 
 & Admin Team Leader
Finance & Anti-Doping Manager	 Sonya Simpson
Performance Services Manager	 Andy Warr
Sponsorship Manager	 Paula Barras
Athlete & Coach Pathways Coordinator	 Joshua Sear
Senior Program Administrator	 Kenny Dudek
Italian Base Coordinator/	 Sarah Blake 
Road Administrator
Executive Administrator	 Lyriane Beuzeville
Special Projects	 Max Stevens
Physical Therapies Coordinator	 David Hayes
Soigneur/Soft Tissue Therapist	 Berthy May
Strength & Conditioning	 Scott Baker 
	 Dr Kristie Lee-Taylor

Sports Science - Track	 Jason Bartram (PhD Student)
	 Nicholas Flyger 
	 Dr Katie Slattery
Sports Science – Road	 Paolo Menaspa
Para-cycling Sports	 Keren Faulkner 
Science Coordinator
Sports Medicine/Team Doctor	 Dr Mark Fisher
Sports Physiologist (BMX)	 Eric Haakensen
Nutritionist	 Olivia Warnes
Sports Psychologist	 John Baranoff
Welfare Coordinator	 Murray Lydeamore OAM
Personal Excellence Manager	 Mark Gregory
Head Bicycle Technician	 Bryan Hayes
Mechanics	 Will Dickeson, John Keegan,  
	 Wayne Nichols, Patrick Ryan, 
	 Michael Winter

BUSINESS PARTNERS

Auditor	 Pitcher Partners
Insurance 	 AON
Solicitors 	 Lander & Rogers
Bank 	 Commonwealth

OFFICE BEARERS AND STAFF
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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COMMISSIONS

ROAD COMMISSION 

Chairman	 Jon Leighton
Member	 John Craven
Member	 Rik Fulcher
Member	 Kipp Kaufmann
Member	 Stuart Shaw
Coach	 David Sanders
Coordinator	 Sean Muir

COACHING COMMISSION

Member	 John Armstrong
Member	 Ben Cook
Member	 Kim Palmer
Member	 Donna Rae-Szalinski
Member	 Sharon Willoughby
Nat Perf Dir	 Kevin Tabotta

MASTERS COMMISSION

Member	 Peter Barnard
Member	 Stuart Campbell
Member	 Mike O’Reilly
Member	 Billy Wright
Co-opted Member	 Stuart Vaughan

ATHLETE'S COMMISSION		

Chairperson	 Lisa Jacobs
Member	 Katherine Bates
Member	 Alexandra Carle
Member	 Carol Cooke
Member	 Tom Leaper
Member	 Stuart Shaw
Member	 Sid Taberlay

CYCLO-CROSS COMMISSION		

Chairperson	 Gemma Kernich
Member	 Kipp Kaufmann
Member	 Rob Parberry
Coordinator	 Una McKay

		

TRACK COMMISSION 

Member	 Phill Bates AM
Member	 Mark Fulcher
Member	 Murray Hall
Member	 Rik McCaig
Member	 Stephen Wooldridge OAM
Co-opted Member	 Laurie Norris
National Jnr Director	 Matt Gilmore
Coach	 Gary Sutton OAM
Ex Officio	 Max Stevens
Coordinator	 Lyriane Beuzeville

TECHNICAL COMMISSION

Member	 Greg Griffiths
Member	 Garry House
Member	 Karen O’Callaghan
Member	 Greg Vincent
Member	 Janet White

PARA-CYCLING COMMISSION

Member	 Lindy Hou OAM
Member	 Chris Nunn
Member	 Chris Scott OAM
Program Manager	 Peter Day
Asst Coach	 Tom Skulander

WOMEN’S COMMISSION		

Chairperson	 Monique Hanley
Member	 Katherine Bates
Member	 Lynette Collins
Member	 Rebecca Doolan
Member	 Deb Richards
CA Board Rep	 Leeanne Grantham
Coordinator	 Alexandra Bright

ETHICS & INTEGRITY PANEL		

Chairperson	 Heather Park
Member	 John Atkins
Member	 Andrew Fitzgerald
Member	 Justin Quill
Member	 Malcolm Patterson
Member	 Guy Underwood
National Integrity M’ger	 Sonya Simpson
Coordinator	 Lyriane Beuzeville

		

Sports Science - Track	 Jason Bartram (PhD Student)
	 Nicholas Flyger 
	 Dr Katie Slattery
Sports Science – Road	 Paolo Menaspa
Para-cycling Sports	 Keren Faulkner 
Science Coordinator
Sports Medicine/Team Doctor	 Dr Mark Fisher
Sports Physiologist (BMX)	 Eric Haakensen
Nutritionist	 Olivia Warnes
Sports Psychologist	 John Baranoff
Welfare Coordinator	 Murray Lydeamore OAM
Personal Excellence Manager	 Mark Gregory
Head Bicycle Technician	 Bryan Hayes
Mechanics	 Will Dickeson, John Keegan,  
	 Wayne Nichols, Patrick Ryan, 
	 Michael Winter

The board of Cycling Australia (CA) has been considering the role of the commissions, given the changes to the governance structure.

The commissions have an important role to play in cycling and have been critical in providing support to CA as the national 
body, as, no doubt, state and territory commissions have been in providing support to the state and territory organisations.  
 We see commissions as having an important role to play going forward.

We acknowledge the contribution of the following commission members:
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HONOUR ROLL

HONORARY LIFE PRESIDENT 

Mr V N Gailey AM MBE *

LIFE MEMBERS

1979	 Mr V Norm Gailey AM MBE*	 1997	 Mr Eddie Martin*
1979	 Mr Bill Young AM MBE *		  1998	 Mr George Nelson
1980	 Mr Ron O’Donnell OAM *		  1999	 Mr Ray Godkin OAM
1981	 Mr Dennis ‘Dini’ Ryan *		  2000	 Mr Alex Fulcher MBE
1985	 Mr Bill Herley *			   2002	 Mr Jim Nevin OAM
1986	 Mr Les Dunn OAM *		  2004	 Mr Alf Walker
1987	 Mr Stan Robins OAM *		  2006	 Mr Lyle Baird
1987	 Mr Eric Webster *		  2007	 Mr Alex Dustan OAM
1992	 Mr Bill Long OAM *		  2012	 Mr Mike Victor OAM
1994	 Mr Charlie Walsh OAM		  2013	 Mr Phill Bates AM
1996	 Mr Sid Freshwater OAM		  2013	 Mr Gerry Ryan OAM

MERITORIOUS MEDAL 
SERVICE DIVISION

Mrs Helen Baird * 	 (SA)
Mr Lyle Baird 	 (SA)
Mr Shayne Bannan 	 (NT)
Mr Ces J Baxter * 	 (QLD)
Mr Howard Bergstrom MBE* 	 (SA)
Mr Daniel Bessell * 	 (VIC)
Mrs Joyce Bestwick * 	 (TAS)
Mr Jock Bullen 	 (NSW)
Mr Nelson Burton * 	 (WA)
Mr Joe Ciavola * 	 (VIC)
Mr Clarrie Collier * 	 (VIC)
Mr Eric Cook *	 (SA)
Mr James W Culley OAM * 	 (TAS)
Mrs Betty Dakin * 	 (TAS)
Mr Les Dunn OAM * 	 (VIC)
Mr Alex Dustan OAM 	 (TAS)
Mr Jim Ferguson * 	 (NSW)
Mr Alex Fulcher OAM, MBE 	 (NSW)
Mr V Norm Gailey AM MBE * 	 (QLD)
Mr Ray Godkin OAM 	 (NSW)
Mr C J ‘Mick’ Gray * 	 (VIC)
Mr Les Hall * 	 (NSW)
Mr Bill Herley * 	 (QLD)
Mr Sam Hutton * 	 (TAS)
Mr Sid Kerr * 	 (VIC)

Mr Barry Langley 	 (VIC)
Mr Merv McDonald OAM 	 (QLD)
Mr Charlie Mannins * 	 (NSW)
Mr Eddie Martin *	 (VIC)
Mr John Meagher * 	 (QLD)
Mr Russell Miller	 (WA)
Mr George Nelson 	 (VIC)
Mr Jim Nevin OAM 	 (TAS)
Mr J ‘Tiny’ Nichols * 	 (VIC)
Mr Ron O’Donnell OAM * 	 (SA)
Mr Mike O’Dwyer * 	 (VIC)
Mr Noel Pearce 	 (TAS)
Mrs Maureen Robins 	 (NSW)
Mr Stan Robins OAM * 	 (TAS)
Mr Dennis ‘Dini’ Ryan *	 (VIC)
Mr Norm Sargent 	 (NSW)
Mr Ed Scalley * 	 (NSW)
Mr John Scott	 (NT)
Mr Richard ‘Richie’ Small * 	 (NSW)
Mr Bernard Sweetman * 	 (SA)
Mr Anthony ‘Tony’ Teideman * 	 (NSW)
Mr Mike Victor OAM 	 (QLD)
Mr Alf Walker 	 (VIC)
Mr Bill Young AM MBE * 	 (NSW)
* Deceased
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MERITORIOUS MEDAL 
SPORT DIVISION

Mr Brett Aitken OAM 	 (SA)
Ms Ashlee Ankudinoff 	 (NSW)
Mr Greg Ball OAM 	 (QLD)
Ms Katherine Bates 	 (NSW)
Mr Ryan Bayley OAM 	 (WA)
Mr Anthony Biddle OAM 	 (NSW)
Mr Steele Bishop OAM 	 (WA)
Mr Jack Bobridge 	 (SA)
Mr Peter Brooks OAM 	 (NSW)
Mr Graeme Brown OAM 	 (NSW)
Mr Ian Browne OAM 	 (VIC)
Ms Caroline Buchanan 	 (ACT)
Ms Sara Carrigan OAM 	 (QLD)
Mr Danny Clark OAM 	 (TAS)
Mr Paul Clohessy OAM 	 (WA)
Ms Carol Cooke AM 	 (VIC)
Mr Lionel Cox OAM * 	 (NSW)
Mr Robert Crowe 	 (VIC)
Ms Amy Cure 	 (TAS)
Mr Jobie Dajka * 	 (SA)
Mr Luke Davison 	 (SA)
Mr Peter Dawson OAM 	 (WA)
Mr Rohan Dennis 	 (SA)
Mr Luke Durbridge 	 (WA)
Mr Sean Eadie 	 (NSW)
Mr Alexander Edmondson 	 (SA)
Mr Cadel Evans AM 	 (VIC)
Mr Michael Freiberg 	 (WA)
Mr Graeme French 	 (TAS)
Mr Michael Gallagher OAM 	 (VIC)
Mr Matthew Glaetzer 	 (SA)
Ms Kerry Golding OAM 	 (SA)
Mr Matthew Goss 	 (TAS)
Mr Jared Graves 	 (QLD)
Mr E L “Dunc” Gray * 	 (NSW)
Mr Mathew Gray OAM 	 (WA)

Mr Michael Grenda OAM 	 (TAS)
Mr Darren Harry OAM 	 (WA)
Mr Michael Hepburn 	 (QLD) 
Mr Darryn Hill 	 (WA)
Mr Sam Hill 	 (WA)
Mr Peter Homann OAM 	 (VIC) 
Mr Jack Hoobin * 	 (QLD)
Ms Lindy Hou OAM 	 (NSW)
Mr Leigh Howard 	 (VIC)
Mr Ashley Hutchinson 	 (QLD)
Mr Mark Jamieson 	 (TAS)
Ms Felicity Johnson OAM 	 (SA) 
Mr Gordon Johnson 	 (VIC)
Mr Shane Kelly OAM 	 (VIC)
Ms Sarah Kent 	 (WA)
Mr Paul Lake OAM 	 (VIC)
Mr Brett Lancaster OAM 	 (VIC)
Mr Tyson Lawrence OAM	 (WA)
Mr Mark LeFlohic OAM 	 (WA)
Ms Lyn Lepore OAM 	 (WA)
Ms Janelle Lindsay OAM 	 (NSW)
Ms Kaarle McCulloch 	 (NSW)
Mr Bradley McGee OAM 	 (NSW)
Mr Rodney McGee	 (NSW)
Mr Stephen McGlede 	 (NSW)
Mr Scott McGrory OAM 	 (VIC)
Mr Scott McPhee OAM 	 (SA)
Ms Katie Mactier 	 (VIC)
Mr Anthony Marchant 	 (VIC)
Ms Anna Meares OAM 	 (QLD)
Mr Cameron Meyer 	 (WA)
Mr Russell Mockridge * 	 (VIC)
Mr Kieran Modra AM 	 (SA)
Ms Tania Modra OAM 	 (SA)
Mr Alexander Morgan 	 (SA)
Ms Stephanie Morton OAM 	 (SA)

Mr Mitchell Mulhern 	 (QLD)
Mr Gary Neiwand 	 (VIC) 
Mr David Nicholas OAM 	 (QLD) 
Mr Kevin Nichols OAM 	 (NSW)
Mr John Nicholson 	 (VIC)
Ms Lynnette Nixon OAM 	 (WA) 
Mr Stuart O’Grady OAM 	 (SA)
Mr Glenn O’Shea 	 (SA)
Ms Sarnya Parker OAM 	 (SA)
Mr Sid Patterson * 	 (VIC)
Mr Shane Perkins 	 (VIC) 
Mr Daniel Polson OAM 	 (WA)
Ms Teresa Poole OAM 	 (WA)
Ms Susan Powell OAM 	 (ACT)
Mr Luke Roberts OAM 	 (SA)
Mr Michael Rogers 	 (ACT)
Mr Miles Scotson 	 (SA)
Mr Christopher Scott OAM 	 (QLD)
Ms Kathleen Shannon 	 (NSW)
Mr Billy-Joe Shearsby 	 (VIC)
Mr David Short OAM 	 (NSW)
Ms Sandra Smith OAM 	 (WA)  
Mr Robert Spears * 	 (NSW)
Mr Kial Stewart OAM 	 (ACT)
Mr Scott Sunderland 	 (WA)
Mr Gary Sutton OAM 	 (NSW)
Ms Josephine Tomic 	 (WA)
Mr Michael Turtur OAM 	 (SA)
Ms Lucy Tyler-Sharman	 (WA)
Mr Paul van der Ploeg 	 (VIC)
Mr Martin Vinnicombe 	 (NSW)
Ms Kathy Watt OAM 	 (VIC)
Mr Sam Willoughby 	 (SA)
Mr Dean Woods OAM 	 (VIC)
Mr Stephen Wooldridge OAM 	 (NSW)
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2014 PERPETUAL TROPHY WINNERS

Norm Gailey Trophy	 Victoria
National Club Premiership	 Carnegie Caulfield CC
Men’s National Road Series Team	 Avanti Racing Team
Women’s National Road Series Team	 Holden Women's Cycling Team

2015 PERPETUAL TROPHY WINNERS	

Southcott Cup	 South Australia
W.J. “Bill” Young Trophy	 South Australia
Robina Joy Trophy	 New South Wales
J.J “Tiny” Nichols Trophy	 Victoria
Ray Godkin Shield	 Victoria
Ride of the Series	 Matthew Glaetzer 	 (SA)
Senior Track Champion of Champions	 Anna Meares 		  (SA)
U19 Track Champion of Champions	 Rohan Wight		  (SA)
Junior Track Champion of Champions	 Graeme Frislie 		 (VIC)
Para-cycling Track Champion of Champions	 Alistair Donohoe 	 (VIC)
Ron Webb Trophy	 Nicholas Yallouris / Jackson Law 	 (NSW)
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AWARD WINNER  
JAYCO 2014 CYCLIST OF THE YEAR

SIR HUBERT OPPERMAN MEDAL 
JAYCO AUSTRALIAN CYCLIST OF THE YEAR   

SIMON GERRANS

Subaru People’s Choice 	 Simon Gerrans (VIC)
Elite Road Male 	 Simon Gerrans (VIC)
Elite Road Female 	 Tiffany Cromwell (SA)
Elite Track Male	 Alex Edmondson (SA)
Elite Track Female 	 Amy Cure (TAS)
Elite MTB Male 	 Jared Graves (QLD)
Elite MTB Female 	 Janine Jungfels (QLD)
AIS Under 23 Road Male 	 Caleb Ewan (NSW)
Junior Cyclist of the Year 	 Macey Stewart (TAS)
Junior Track Male 	 Sam Welsford (WA)
Junior Road Male 	 Michael Storer (WA)
Junior Track Female 	 Macey Stewart (TAS)
Junior Road Female 	 Macey Stewart (TAS)
Junior MTB Male 	 Max Warshawsky (QLD)
Junior MTB Female 	 Tegan Molloy (NSW)
Elite Para-cycling Female 	 Jayme Richardson (NSW)
Elite Para-cycling Male 	 Alistair Donohoe (VIC)
Cycling Australia Domestic 	 Warren McDonald (QLD) 
Coach of the Year
Cycling Australia International 	 Tim Decker 
Coach of the Year	 (Track - Men's Endurance)   	

Masters Cyclists Overall 	 Gary Mandy (NSW)
Masters Road Male 	 Stephen Fairless (VIC)
Masters Track Male 	 Gary Mandy (NSW)
Masters Road Female 	 Laurelea Moss (QLD)
Masters Track Female 	 Jessica Laws (VIC)
Masters MTB Male 	 Garry James (ACT)
Masters MTB Female 	 Catherine Kelaher (ACT)

SUBARU NRS WINNERS
Champion Male	 Joe Cooper
Champion Female 	 Ruth Corset
Champion Team Men’s 	 Avanti Racing
Champion Team Women’s 	 Holden Women’s Cycling

Cycling Australia Merit Award  	 CJ Farquharson
Subaru Australian Club Premiership 	 Caulfield Carnegie CC
Norm Gailey Trophy 	 Victoria 
Champion State

131Simon Gerrans with the 2014 Oppy Medal 



SYDNEY
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